AMERICAN FORK CITY COUNCIL
JANUARY 12, 2021
REGULAR SESSION AGENDA

*NOTICE OF ELECTRONIC MEETING*
In accordance with Resolution No. 2020-07-20R, Mayor Frost has determined that conducting
meetings of the City Council with an anchor location, such as the City Council Chambers or
Administration Conference Room, presents a substantial risk to the health and safety of those
who may be present there. The following are facts upon which this determination has been made:

e Utah declared state of emergency on November 8, 2020 due to an increase in case counts
of COVID-19, a virus outbreak that has been recognized by the World Health
Organization, federal, state and local leaders as a pandemic.

e The Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) has stated that COVID-19 is
easily spread from person to person between people who are in close contact with one
another through respiratory droplets when an infected person coughs, sneezes, or talks.
This virus can also be spread by people who are asymptomatic.

e Federal, state, and local authorities recommend that individuals limit public gatherings,
wear face masks, and follow social distancing guidelines.

e Itis difficult to anticipate the number of attendees at any meeting in order to maintain
social distancing to comply with Utah Health Guidance levels. Further, regardless of the
number of attendees, social distancing measures for Council, staff, and attendees will be
difficult to maintain in the City Council Chambers and Administration Conference Room.

e COVID-19 continues to pose an immediate threat to the health, safety, and welfare of
American Fork City residents.

e American Fork City can provide a way for the public to hear, or hear and view, open
portions of City Council meetings and to provide a way to participate in public hearings.

For the next 30 days, all City Council meetings will be conducted via electronic means. The
meetings are broadcast live-streamed, and available at a later time, at
https://www.americanfork.gov/AgendaCenter. To make a public comment, email comments to
publiccomment@americanfork.gov prior to 5:00 p.m. the day of the meeting for the comment to
be read into record. Please indicate in the subject line which item your comment refers to. You
may also make public comment in person at City Hall (31 N. Church Street). No more than ten
individuals will be allowed in City Hall at one time to ensure social distancing guidelines are
capable of being followed. Masks shall be worn inside City Hall.

The American Fork City Council will meet in a regular session on Tuesday, January 12, 2021,
commencing at 7:00 p.m. The agenda shall be as follows:

REGULAR SESSION

1. Pledge of Allegiance; Invocation by Council Member Barnes; roll call.

2 Twenty-minute public comment period - limited to two minutes per person.
3. City Administrator's Report

4. Council Reports

5 Mayor's Report

COMMON CONSENT AGENDA

(Common Consent is that class of Council action that requires no further discussion or which is routine in nature.
All items on the Common Consent Agenda are adopted by a single motion unless removed from the Common
Consent Agenda.)
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1. Approval of the December 1, 2020 work session minutes.

2. Approval of the December 8, 2020 city council minutes.

3. Approval of the authorization to release the Improvements Durability Retainer of
$1,492,887.00 for 900 WEST 1.1, located at 900 West 200-350 South.

4. Approval of the authorization to release the Improvements Construction Guarantee in the
amount of $95,111.00 and issue a Notice of Acceptance for the GARDNER BATT
WAREHOUSE construction of public improvements located at 398 East 1100 South.

5. Ratification of city payments (December 2, 2020 to January 5, 2021) and approval of
purchase requests over $25,000.

ACTION ITEMS

1. Presentation and acceptance of the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020 audited annual
financial statements.

2. Review and action on the Water Banking Agreement for Water Rights with Tace, LLC
for 86.128 acre-feet of water.

3. Review and action on the Water Banking Agreement for Water Rights with Millpond
Apartments, LLC for 27.958 acre-feet of water.

4. Review and action on a resolution indicating the city’s intent to annex the AF Utah LLC
Addition, consisting of 19.40 acres at approximately 1000 West 200 South.

5. Review and action on a resolution indicating the city’s intent to annex the Silverado
Annexation, consisting of 26.04 acres at approximately 1000 West 150 South.

6. Review and action on a resolution indicating the city’s intent to annex the North Binch
Annexation, consisting of 26.02 acres at approximately 800 West 500 South.

7. Review and action of a Reimbursement Agreement for 700 South with Woodside Homes
of Utah.

8. Review and action on a revised agreement with Union Pacific Rail Road (UPRR) for the
Construction of a Water Line in 200 South.

9. Review and action on approval of an amended agreement with National Buick GMC.

10.  Consideration and action to enter into a closed session to discuss items described in Utah
State Code 52-4-204 and 52-4-205.

11.  Adjournment.

Dated this 7th day of January 2021.

Terilyn Lurker
City Recorder

In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, the City of American Fork will make reasonable
accommodations to participate in the meeting. Requests for assistance can be made by contacting the City
Recorder at 801-763-3000 at least 48 hours in advance of the meeting.

The order of agenda items may be changed to accommodate the needs of the City Council, staff, and the
public.
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3.3

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION
CITY OF AMERICAN FORK
JANUARY 12, 2021

AMERICA

sFORK:s:
Department___Public Works Director Approval _Scott Qpnqanhaughpr

AGENDA ITEM Common Consent Consideration regarding authorization to release the
Improvements Durability Retainer of $ 1,492,887.00 for 900 WEST 1.1, located at 900 West
200-350 South.

SUMMARY RECOMMENDATION  The City Engineer recommends that the Improvements
Durability Retainer be released. The improvements were found in a condition meeting City
standards for workmanship and performance after one (1) year of service.

BACKGROUND  Pursuant to the terms of Sections 17.9.100 and 17.9.403 of the City
Development Code, the City Council may authorize the release of the Improvements Durability
Retainer following the one (1) year durability testing period. The release is based on a finding
that the quality of construction and materials have endured without evidence of unusual
depreciation, wear, non-conformance of City standards or need for remedial action.

BUDGET IMPACT Following the release of the Improvements Durability Retainer, the City
is responsible for all future maintenance and replacement costs for any publicly-owned property

or improvement. In developments with Home-Owners or Unit-Owners Associations, all common
area maintenance and replacement responsibilities will then fall to the Association. All privately-
owned improvements will be the responsibility of the owner of the given parcel.

SUGGESTED MOTION  Move to authorize the City Engineer to issue documents and/or
payments to release the Improvements Durability Retainer of $ 1,492,887.00 for 900 West 1.1.
Find that the quality of construction and materials have endured without evidence of unusual
depreciation, wear, non-conformance of City standards, or need for remedial action.

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS

Bond Release Request - 900 West Durability(PDF)
Durability_Release_Authorization 900 West (PDF)
900 West Performance-Payment Bond (PDF)
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BOND RELEASE REQUEST

Development Name: Yoo W.

3.3.a

ﬂmEEﬁ : Development Address: 950 ,y JIso §.

*All outstanding fees must be paid prior to any release.

w FEORKs
M Partial Improvement Final Improvement v’ Improvement Warranty Release
Assurance Release Assurance Release (10% Durability Release)
Inspector Use Only
Complete?
Description of Item Quantity | Units | Unit Price Total ~ Yes/No
Wassoury Qeenss / LS 41,992 893.0

Total |f7 Y97 §5 3.0

Bond Type: [ cash Deposit D Escrow Account [ Letter of Credit

Please send check/bank letter to:

Name: (Zep PIvE ((amyTrwcTION

&Surety Bond

Bank (if applicable):

Address: §28 S. ¥s° € swutE AY
.

bl B B

City:  Lewy Mte: ur Zip
Phone:  £o)-991-5 mail: mrl_tgt)@ﬂ{%ﬁm[c- CONST- U TION . Com

Signature: Date:

J2-3-T>

[ L
(& ’ City Official Use Only

Fees paid and current

/2 -7-50

Administrative Signature: /)”/ M ?%ﬂﬁ Date:

Inspector Signature: 7),9 JL‘%QSLV;M / Date:
™ p =

)30

Page 1 of 2

Attachment: Bond Release Request - 900 West Durability (Durability Release- 900 WEST 1.1)
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H mEmEH " IMPROVEMENT WARRANTY RELEASE

 EFOR K- AUTHORIZATION

The City Council of American Fork City, a Municipal Corporation and Body Politic in
the State of Utah, hereby authorizes the release of the Improvement Warranty for

900 WEST 1.1 pursuant to the terms of Section 17.9.100 and 17.9.403 of the City
Development Code. The City Council finds that the quality of construction and materials
have endured without evidence of unusual depreciation, wear, non-conformance to City
standards, or need for remedial action.

The City Council hereby authorizes the City Engineer to issue a letter to the financial
guarantee institution authorizing release of the Improvement Warranty or to issue an
authorized City check as appropriate for the type of guarantee provided.

Amount Released: $ 1,492,887.00

PASSED THIS 12 DAY OF JANUARY_ , 2021

City Representative, American Fork City

ATTEST:

Terilyn Lurker, City Recorder

3.3.b

Attachment: Durability Release_Authorization 900 West (Durability Release- 900 WEST 1.1)
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3.3.c

'ATA bocument A312™ - 2010

Performance Bond Bond No. 2623062
CONTRACTOR: SURETY:
(Name, legal status and address) (Name, legal status and principal place
Red Pine Construction, LLC of business) Great American Insurance Company
520 South 850 East #A4 301 E. Fourth Street This document has impor?ant legal
Lehi, UT 84043 Cincinnati, OH 45202 consequences. Consultation with
OWNER: an attorney is encouraged with

' respect to its completion or
(Name, legal status and address) modification.

ADG Partners
Any singular reference to

Contractor, Surety, O
520 S 850 E Suite A1 on rety, Owner or

Lehi. UT 84043 other party shall be considered
CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT PliElwhere abplioabi
Dale: Aprll 09, 2019 AlA Document A312-2010
’ combines two separate bonds, a

Amount: One Million Four Hundred Ninety-two Thousand Eight Hundred Performance Bond and a

Eighty-seven And No/100 ($1,492,887.00) Payment Bond, into one form.
Description: This is not a single combined
(Name and location) P1916American Fork 900 West Road Phase 1.1 Petfomencerand RaymentBond.
BOND

Date: April 17, 2019
(Not earlier than Construction Contract Date)

Amount: One Million Four Hundred Ninety-two Thousand Eight Hundred Eighty-seven
And No/100 ($1,492,887.00)

Modifications to this Bond: X None O See Section 16
CONTRACTOR AS PRINCIPAL SURETY
Company: (Corporate Seal) Company:

Corporate Seal)
Red Pine Construction, LLC Great American In: }

Signature: ﬁ/g/ﬁ/ﬂé"‘ Slgnauue

Name My ( B~ Name
< ve
and Title: 9% /a h and Title:

(Any additional Slql?jfl( tres appear on the last page of this Performance Bond.)

Adon Dotson Attorney in-Fact

(FOR INFORMATION ONLY — Name, address and telephone)

AGENT or BROKER: OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE:

Cobb Strecker Dunphy & Zimmermann (Architect, Engineer or other party:)
225 South Sixth Street, Suite 1900

Minneapolis,MN 55402

Init AIA Document A312™ — 2010. The American Institute of Architects. 061110

Attachment: 900 West Performance-Payment Bond (Durability Release- 900 WEST 1.1)
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§ 1 The Contractor and Surely, jointly and severally, bind themselves, their heirs, executors, administrators, successors

and assigns (o the Owner for the performance of the Construction Contract, which is incorporated herein by reference.

§ 2 If the Contractor performs the Construction Contract, the Surety and the Contractor shail have no obligation under
this Bond, except when applicable to participate in a conference as provided in Section 3.

§ 3 If there is no Owner Defauit under the Construction Contract, the Surety’s obligation under this Bond shall arise
after
A the Owner first provides notice to the Contractor and the Surety that the Owner is considering declaring
a Contractor Default. Such notice shall indicate whether the Owner is requesting a conference among
the Owner, Contractor and Surety to discuss the Contractor’s performance. If the Owner does not
request a conference, the Surety may, within five (5) business days afler receipt of the Owner’s notice
request such a conference. I the Surety timely requests a conference, the Owner shall attend, Unless
the Owner agrees otherwise, any conference requested under this Section 3.1 shall be held within ten
(10) business days of the Surety’s receipt of the Owner’s notice. If the Owner, the Contractor and the
Surety agree, the Contractor shall be allowed a reasonable time to perform the Construction Contract,
but such an agreement shall not waive the Owner’s right, if any, subsequently to declare a Contractor
Default;
2 the Owner declares a Contractor Default, terminates the Construction Contract and notifies the Surety;
and
3 the Owner has agreed to pay the Balance of the Contract Price in accordance with the terms of the
Construction Contract to the Surety or to a contractor selected to perform the Construction Contract.

£}

§ 4 Failure on the part of the Owner to comply with the notice requirement in Section 3.1 shall not constitute a failure
to comply with a condition precedent to the Surety’s obligations, or release the Surety from its obligations, except to
the extent the Surety demonstrates actual prejudice.

§ 5 When-the Owner-has-satisfied-¢ H

3.3.c

Init.

en-t d-the-cotnditions-of Section 35 the-Surcty shaltpromptiy-and-at the Surety”s CXPEnse
take one of the following actions:

§ 5.1 Arrange for the Contractor, with the consent of the Owner, to perform and complete the Construction Contract;

§ 5.2 Undertake to perform and complete the Construction Contract itself, through its agents or independent
contractors;

§ 5.3 Obtain bids or negotiated proposals from qualified contractors acceptable to the Owner for a contract for
performance and completion of the Construction Contract, arrange for a contract to be prepared for execution by the
Owner and a contractor selected with the Owner’s concurrence, to be secured with performance and payment bonds
executed by a qualified surety equivalent to the bonds issued on the Construction Contract, and pay to the Owner the
amount of damages as deseribed in Section 7 in excess of the Balance of the Contract Price incurred by the Owner as
a result of the Contractor Default; or

§ 5.4 Waive its right to perform and complete, arrange for completion, or obtain a new contractor and with reasonable
prompness under the circumstances:
A After investigation, determine the amount for which it may be liable 1o the Owner and, as soon as
practicable after the amount is determined, make payment to the Owner; or
2 Deny liability in whole or in part and notify the Owner, citing the reasons for denial.

§ 6 If the Surety does not proceed as provided in Section 5 with reasonable prompiness, the Surety shall be deemed to
be in default on this Bond seven days after receipt of an additional written notice from the Owner to the Surety
demanding that the Surety perform its obligations under this Bond, and the Qwner shall be entitled to enforce any
remedy available to the Owner., If the Surety proceeds as provided in Section 5.4, and the Owner refuses the payment
ot the Surety has denied liability, in whole or in part, without further notice the Owner shail be entitled to enforce any
remedy available to the Owner,

AlA Document A312™ — 2010, The American Institute of Architects.

Attachment: 900 West Performance-Payment Bond (Durability Release- 900 WEST 1.1)
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§ 7 If the Surety elects to act under Section 5.1, 5.2 or 5.3, then the responsibilities of the Surety to the Owner shall not
be greater than those of the Contractor under the Construction Contract, and the responsibilities of the Owner to the
Surely shall not be greater than those of the Owner under the Construction Contract. Subject to the commitment by the
Owner lo pay the Balance of the Contract Price, the Surety is obligated, without duplication, for
A the responsibilities of the Contractor for correction of defective work and completion of the
Construction Contract;
2 additional legal, design professional and delay costs resuiting from the Contractor’s Default, and
resulting from the actions or failure 1o act of the Surety under Section 5; and
3 liquidated damages, or if no liquidated damages are specified in the Construction Contract, actual
damages caused by delayed performance or non-performance of the Contractor.

§ 8 1f the Surety elects to act under Section 5.1, 5.3 or 5.4, the Surety’s liability is limited to the amount of this Bond.

§ 9 The Surety shall not be liable to the Owner or others for obligations of the Contractor that are unrelated 1o the
Construction Contract, and the Balance of the Contract Price shall not be reduced or set off on account of any such
unrelated obligations. No right of action shall accrue on this Bond 1o any person or entity other than the Owner or its
heirs, exccutors, administrators, successors and assigns.

§ 10 The Surety hereby waives notice of any change, including chan ges of time, (o the Construction Contract or 1o
related subcontracts, purchase orders and other obligations.

§ 11 Any proceeding, legal or equitable, under this Bond may be instituted in any court of competent jurisdiction in
the location in which the work or part of the work is located and shall be instituted within two years afler a declaration
of Contractor Default or within two years after the Contractor ceased working or within two years after the Surety
refuses or fails to perform its obligations under this Bond, whichever oceurs first, 1f the provisions of this Paragraph
are void or prohibited by faw, the minimum period of limitation available to sureties as a defense in the jurisdiction of
the suit shal] be applicable,

3.3.c

Init.

§ 12 Notice to the Surety, the Owner or the Contractor shall be mailed or delivered to the address shown on the page
on which their sighature appears.

§13 When this Bond has been furnished to comply with a statutory or other legal requirement in the focation where
the construction was to be performed, any provision in this Bond conflicting with said statutory or legal requirement
shall be deemed deleted herefrom and provisions conforming Lo such statutory or other legal requirement shalf be
deemed incorporated herein. When so furnished, the intent is that this Bond shall be construed as a statutory bond and
not as a common law bond.

§ 14 Definitions

§ 14.1 Balance of the Contract Price. The total amount payable by the Owner to the Contractor under the Construction
Contract after all proper adjustments have been made, including allowance to the Contractor of any amounts received
or to be received by the Owner in settlement of insurance or other claims for damages to which the Contractor is
entitled, reduced by all valid and proper payments made to or on behalf of the Contractor under the Construction
Contract.

§ 14.2 Construction Contract. The agreement between the Owner and Contractor identified on the cover page,
including all Contract Documents and changes made to the agreement and the Contract Documents,

§14.3 Contractor Default. Failure of the Contractor, which has not been remedied or waived, to perform or otherwise 1o
comply with a material term of the Construction Contract.

§14.4 Owner Default. Failure of the Qwner, which has not been remedied or waived, to pay the Contractor as required
under the Construction Contract or to perform and complete or comply with the other material terms of the
Construction Contract.

§ 14.5 Contract Documents. All the documents that comprise the agreement between the Owner and Contractor.

§ 15 If this Bond is issued for an agreement between a Contractor and subcontractor, the term Contractor in this Bond
shall be deemed to be Subcontractor and the term Owner shall be deemed 1o be Contractor.

AIA Document A312™ — 2010. The American Institute of Archilecls.

Attachment: 900 West Performance-Payment Bond (Durability Release- 900 WEST 1.1)

Packet Pg. 8




§ 16 Modifications to this bond are as follows:

3.3.c

Init.

/

(Space is provided below for additional signatures of added parties, other than those appearing on the cover page.)

CONTRACTOR AS PRINCIPAL SURETY

Company: (Corporate Seal)  Company: (Corporate Seal)
Signature: Signature:

Name and Title: Name and Title:

Address Address

CAUTION: You should sign an original AIA Contract Document, on which this text appears in RED. An original assures that
changes will not be obscured.

AIA Document A312™ — 2010. The American Institute of Architects.

Attachment: 900 West Performance-Payment Bond (Durability Release- 900 WEST 1.1)
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3.3.c

._.AIA Document A312™ - 2010

Payment Bond Bond No. 2623062

CONTRACTOR: SURETY:
(Name, legal status and address) (Name, legal status and principal place
Red Pine Construction, LLC of business)Great American Insurance Company

520 South 850 East #A4 301 E. Fourth Street This document has important legal
Lehi, UT 84043 Cincinnati, OH 45202 consequences. Consultation with

) an attorney is encouraged with
OWNER: respect to its completion or

(Name, legal status and address)

modification.
ADG Partners

Any singular reference to

3 Contractor, Surety, Owner or
520 S 850 E Suite A1

Lehi, UT 84043 other party shall be considered
CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT plralwhers:applioabie:
Date: April 09, 2019 AlA Dpcument A312-2010
combines two separate bonds, a
Amount: One Million Four Hundred Ninety-two Thousand Eight Hundred Performance Bond and a
Eighty-seven And No/100 ($1,492,887.00) Payment Bond, into one form.

This is not a single combined

Description: Performance and Payment Bond.

(Name and location) P1916American Fork 900 West Road Phase 1.1

Init.

BOND
Date: April 17, 2019
(Not earlier than Construction Contract Date)

Amount: One Million Four Hundred Ninety-two Thousand Eight Hundred Eighty-seven
And No/100 ($1,492,887.00)

Modifications to this Bond: X None [ See Section 18
CONTRACTOR AS PRINCIPAL SURETY
Company: (Corporate Seal)  Company: orate Seal)

Red Pine Construction, L Great American |
Signature: ;/%’M Signature: ¢

Name %tl £. Hp’/‘/; Name
M

and T!H(‘)l. . f”a,&/‘/ and Tllle:‘
(Any additional signaditres appear on the last page of this Payment Bond.)

(IFOR INFORMATION ONLY — Name, address and telephone)

AGENT or BROKER: OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE:

Cobb Strecker Dunphy & Zimmermann (Architect, Engineer or other party:)
225 South Sixth Street, Suite 1900

Minneapolis,MN 55402

AlA Document A312™ — 2010. The American Institute of Architects. 051110

Attachment: 900 West Performance-Payment Bond (Durability Release- 900 WEST 1.1)
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3.3.c

§ 1 The Contractor and Surety, jointly and severally, bind themselves, their heirs, executors, administrators, successors
and assigns to the Owner to pay for labor, materials and equipment furnished for use in the performance of the
Construction Contract, which is incorporated herein by reference, subject to the following terms.

§ 2 If the Contractor promptly makes payment of all sums due to Claimants, and defends, indemnifies and holds
harmless the Owner from claims, demands, liens or suits by any person or entity seeking payment for labor, materials
or equipment furnished for use in the performance of the Construction Contract, then the Surety and the Contractor
shall have no obligation under this Bond.

§ 3 If there is no Owner Default under the Construction Contract, the Surety’s obligation to the Owner under this Bond
shall arise after the Owner has promptly notified the Contractor and the Surety (at the address described in Section 13)
of claims, demands, liens or suits against the Owner or the Owner’s property by any person or entity seeking payment
for labor, materials or equipment furnished for use in the performance of the Construction Contract and tendered
defense of such claims, demands, Jiens or suits to the Contractor and the Surety.

§ 4 When the Owner has satisfied the conditions in Section 3, the Surety shall promptly and at the Surety’s expense
defend, indemnify and hold harmless the Owner against a duly tendered claim, demand, lien or suit.

§ 5 The Surety’s obligations to a Claimant under this Bond shall arise after the following;

§ 5.1 Claimants, who do not have a direct contract with the Contractor,

.1 have furnished a written notice of non-payment to the Contractor, stating with substantial accuracy the
amount claimed and the name of the party to whom the materials were, or equipment was, furnished or
supplied or for whom the labor was done or performed, within ninety (90) days after having last
performed labor or last furnished materials or equipment included in the Claim; and

2 have sent a Claim to the Surety (at the address described in Section 13).

§5:2-Claimants, whoare employed by orhave a direct contract with the Contractor, have sent a Claim to the Surety (at
the address described in Section 13).

§ 6 If a notice of non-payment required by Section 5.1.1 is given by the Owner 1o the Contractor, that is sufficient to
satisfy a Claimant’s obligation to furnish a written notice of non-payment under Section 5.1.1.

§ 7 When a Claimant has satisfied the conditions of Sections 5.1 or 5.2, whichever is applicable, the Surety shall
promptly and at the Surety’s expense take the following actions:

§7.1 Send an answer to the Claimant, with a copy to the Owner, within sixty (60) days after receipt of the Claim,
stating the amounts that are undisputed and the basis for challenging any amounts that are disputed; and

§ 7.2 Pay or arrange for payment of any undisputed amounts,

§ 7.3 The Surety’s failure to discharge its obligations under Section 7.1 or Section 7.2 shall not be deemed to
constitute a waiver of defenses the Surety or Contractor may have or acquire as (o a Claim, except as to undisputed
amounts for which the Surety and Claimant have reached agreement. 1f, however, the Surety fails to discharge its
obligations under Section 7.1 or Section 7.2, the Surety shall indemnify the Claimant for the reasonable attorney’s
fees the Claimant incurs thereafter to recover any sums found to be due and owing to the Claimant.

§ 8 The Surety’s total obligation shall not exceed the amount of this Bond, plus the amount of reasonable attorney’s
fees provided under Section 7.3, and the amount of this Bond shall be credited for any payments made in good faith
by the Surety.

Attachment: 900 West Performance-Payment Bond (Durability Release- 900 WEST 1.1)

§ 9 Amounts owed by the Owner (o the Contractor under the Construction Contract shall be used for the performance
of the Construction Contract and to satisfy claims, if any, under any construction performance bond. By the
Contractor furnishing and the Owner accepting this Bond, they agree that all funds carned by the Contractor in the
performance of the Construction Contract are dedicated to satisfy obligations of the Contractor and Surety under this
Bond, subject to the Owner’s priority to use the funds for the completion of the work.

Init AlA Document A312™ — 2010. The American Institute of Architects.

Packet Pg. 11




§ 10 The Surety shall not be fiable to the Owner, Claimants or others for obligations of the Contractor that are
unrelated to the Construction Contract. The Owner shall not be liable for the payment of any costs or expenses of any
Claimant under this Bond, and shall have under this Bond no obligation to make payments o, or give notice on behalf
of, Claimants or otherwise have any obligations to Claimants under this Bond.

§ 11 The Surety hereby waives notice of any change, including changes of time, to the Construction Contract of to
related subcantracts, purchase orders and other obligations.

§ 12 No suit or action shall be commenced by a Claimant under this Bond other than in a court of competent
Jurisdiction in the state in which the project that is the subject of the Construction Contract is located or after the
expiration of one year from the date (1) on which the Claimant sent a Claim to the Surety pursuant o

Section 5.1.2 or 5.2, or (2) on which the last labor or service was performed by anyone or the last materials or
equipment were furnished by anyone under the Construction Contract, whichever of (1) or (2) first occurs. 1f the
provisions of this Paragraph are void or prohibited by law, the minimum period of limitation available Lo sureties as a
defense in the jurisdiction of the suit shall be applicable.

§ 13 Notice and Claims to the Surety, the Owner or the Contractor shall be mailed or delivered to the address shown
on the page on which their signature appears. Actual receipt of notice or Claims, however accomplished, shall be
sufficient compliance as of the date received.

§ 14 When this Bond has been furnished to comply with a statutory or other legal requirement in the location where
the construction was to be performed, any provision in this Bond conflicting with said statutory or legal requirement
shall be deemed deleted herefrom and provisions conforming to such statutory or other legal requirement shall be
deemed incorporated herein. When so furnished, the intent is that this Bond shall be construed as a statutory bond and
not as a common law bond.

§ 15 Upon request by any person or entity appearing (o be a potential beneficiary of this Bond, the Contractor and
4 Y g Y

3.3.c

Ownerstrattpromptlyfurnistracopy of this Bond or shall permit a copy 1o be made.

§ 16 Definitions
§16.1 Claim. A written statement by the Claimant including at a minimum:
Jd the name of the Claimant;
.2 the name of the person for whom the labor was done, or materials or equipment furnished;
3 acopy of the agreement or purchase order pursuant to which labor, materials or equipment was
furnished for use in the performance of the Construction Contract;
A abrief description of the labor, materials or equipment furnished;
S the date on which the Claimant last performed labor or last furnished materials or equipment for use in
the performance of the Construction Contract;
6 the total amount earned by the Claimant for labor, materials or equipment furnished as of the date of
the Claim;
1 the total amount of previous payments received by the Claimant; and
8 the total amount due and unpaid to the Claimant for labor, materials or equipment furnished as of the
date of the Claim.

§ 16.2 Claimant. An individual or entity having a direct contract with the Contractor or with a subcontractor of the
Contractor to furnish labor, materials or equipment for use in the performance of the Construction Contract. The term
Claimant also includes any individual or entity that has rightfully asserted a claim under an applicable mechanic’s lien
or similar statute against the real property upon which the Project is located. The intent of this Bond shall be to
include without limitation in the terms “labor, materials or cquipment” that part of water, gas, power, light, heat, oil,
gasoline, telephone service or rental equipment used in the Construction Contract, architectural and engineering
services required for performance of the work of the Contractor and the Contractor’s subcontractors, and all other
items for which a mechanic’s lien may be asserted in the jurisdiction where the labor, materials or equipment were
furnished,

§16.3 Construction Contract. The agreement between the Owner and Contractor identified on the cover page,
including all Contract Documents and all changes made to the agreement and the Contract Documents.

AlA Document A312™ - 2010. The American Instilute of Architects.

Attachment: 900 West Performance-Payment Bond (Durability Release- 900 WEST 1.1)
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3.3.c

§ 16.4 Owner Default. Failure of the Owner, which has not been remedied or waived, to pay the Contractor as required
under the Construction Contract or to perform and complete or comply with the other material terms of the
Construction Contract.

§ 16.5 Contract Documents. All the documents that comprise the agreement between the Owner and Contractor.

§ 17 If this Bond is issued for an agreement between a Contractor and subcontractor, the term Contractor in this Bond
shall be deemed to be Subcontractor and the term Owner shall be deemed to be Contractor.

§ 18 Modifications to this bond are as follows:

Init.

(Space is provided below for additional signatures of added parties, other than those appearing on the cover page.)

Attachment: 900 West Performance-Payment Bond (Durability Release- 900 WEST 1.1)

CONTRACTOR AS PRINCIPAL SURETY

Company: (Corporate Seal)  Company: (Corporate Seal)
Signature: Signature:

Name and Title: Name and Title:

Address Address

CAUTION: You should sign an original AIA Contract Document, on which this text appears in RED. An original assures that
changes will not be obscured.

AlA Document A312™ — 2010. The American Institute of Architects.
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GREAT AMERICAN INSURANCE COMPANY®
Administrative Office: 301 E 4TH STREET ©® CINCINNATI, OHIO 45202 ® 513-369-5000 ® FAX 513-723-2740

The number of persons authorized by
this power of attorney is not more than FIVE
No.0 21064
POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOWALLMEN BY THESE PRESENTS: That the GREAT AMERICAN INSURANCE COMPANY, a corporation organized and existing under
and by virtue of the laws of the State of Ohio, does hereby nominate, constitute and appoint the person or persons named below, each individually if more than
one is named, its true and lawful attorney-in-fact, for it and in its name, place and stead to execute on behalf of the said Company, as surety, any and all bonds,
undertakings and contracts of suretyship, or other written obligations in the nature thereof; provided that the liability of the said Company on any such bond,
undertaking or contract of suretyship executed under this authority shall not exceed the limit stated below.

Name Address Limit of Power
GRAYDON DOTSON HEATHER JOHNSON ALL OF ALL
CLIFFORD ORTON NANCY OLIVER SALT LAKE CITY, $100,000,000.00
GRADEN MARSHALL UTAH

This Power of Attorney revokes all previous powers issued on behalf of the attorney(s)-in-fact named above.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF the GREAT AMERICAN INSURANCE COMPANY has caused these presents to be signed and attested by its appropriate

officers and its corporate seal hereunto affixed this 24th day of JULY 5 2018

Attest GREAT AMERICAN INSURANCE COMPANY

ST, -
<, ~ (.3 (@ il
%.th 5 [ - ’ é £ é&:ﬁ
Assistant Secretary Divisional Senior Vice President

STATE OF OHIO, COUNTY OF HAMILTON - ss: DAVID C. KITCHIN (877-377-2405)

On this 24th day of JULY , 2018 , before me personally appeared DAVID C. KITCHIN, to me

known, being duly sworn, deposes and says that he resides in Cincinnati, Ohio, that he is a Divisional Senior Vice President of the Bond Division of Great
American Insurance Company, the Company described in and which executed the above instrument; that he knows the seal of the said Company; that the seal
affixed to the said instrument is such corporate seal; that it was so affixed by authority of his office under the By-Laws of said Company, and that he signed his
name thereto by like authority.

Susan A. Kohorst
I o Brsoan 4o

This Power of Attorney is granted by authority of the following resolutions adopted by the Board of Directors of Great American Insurance Company
by unanimous written consent dated June 9, 2008.

RESOLVED: That the Divisional President, the several Divisional Senior Vice Presidents, Divisional Vice Presidents and Divisonal Assistant Vice
Presidents, or any one of them, be and hereby is authorized, from time to time, to appoint one or more Attorneys-in-Fact to execute on behalf of the Company,
as surety, any and all bonds, undertakings and contracts of suretyship, or other written obligations in the nature thereof: to prescribe their respective duties and
the respective limits of their authority; and to revoke any such appointment at any time.

RESOLVED FURTHER: That the Company seal and the signature of any of the aforesaid officers and any Secretary or Assistant Secretary of the
Company may be affixed by facsimile to any power of attorney or certificate of either given for the execution of any bond, undertaking, contract of suretyship,

or other written obligation in the nature thereof, such signature and seal when so used being hereby adopted by the Company as the original signature of such
officer and the original seal of the Company, to be valid and binding upon the Company with the same force and effect as though manually affixed.

CERTIFICATION

I, STEPHEN C. BERAHA, Assistant Secretary of Great American Insurance Company, do hereby certify that the foregoing Power of Attorney and
the Resolutions of the Board of Directors of June 9, 2008 have not been revoked and are now in full force and effect.

Signed and sealed this day of

Assistant Secretary

Attachment: 900 West Performance-Payment Bond (Durability Release- 900 WEST 1.1)

S1029AF (06/15)
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REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION
CITY OF AMERICAN FORK
JANUARY 12, 2021

AMERICA

sFORK:s:
Department___Public Works Director Approval _Scott Qpnqanhaughpr

AGENDA ITEM (Common Consent Agenda) - Consideration regarding authorization to
release the Improvements Construction Guarantee in the amount of $95,111.00 and issue a
Notice of Acceptance for the GARDNER BATT WAREHOUSE construction of public
improvements located at 398 East 1100 South.

SUMMARY RECOMMENDATION The City Engineer recommends that the Improvements
Construction Guarantee (ICG) be released. The improvements were found in a condition meeting
City standards and specifications and in conformance with the approved project construction
plans.

BACKGROUND  Pursuant to the terms of Sections 17.9.100 and 17.9.304 of the City
Development Code, the City Council may authorize the release of the ICG and issue a "Notice of
Acceptance” of the project improvements. Following the issuance of the Notice of Acceptance,
the City accepts ownership of the project improvements. The project will then enter the one (1)
year Durability Testing Period as specified in section 17.9.400 of the City Development Code.

In issuing a Notice of Acceptance, the City Council finds that:
e The condition of the improvements are found to be satisfactory.
o All liens have been released, all outstanding fees paid, costs of administration paid, and
reimbursement payments to prior developers (if any) have been made.
e The project clean-up is found to be satisfactory.

The City may request a current title report or other such measures or reports as deemed
appropriate by the City as a means of determining the existence of any unreported liens or other
claims upon the project. All financial information (if any) provided by the developer is attached.
The Council may request additional information as deemed necessary.

BUDGET IMPACT Following the release of the ICG, there is a one (1) year Durability
Testing Period wherein ten percent (10%) of the total ICG is held to ensure the durability of the
constructed improvements.

SUGGESTED MOTION Move to accept the improvements and authorize the Mayor to
execute the Notice of Acceptance for the GARDNER BATT WAREHOUSE public
improvements located at 398 East 1100 South. To authorize the issuance of documents and/or

Packet Pg. 15




3.4

payments to release the Improvement Construction Guarantee (ICG). Commence the Durability
Testing Period by retaining ten percent (10%) of the ICG. To find that the project improvements
are in a condition meeting City ordinances, standards, and specifications and are in conformance
with the approved project construction plans.

Note: With passage of the Common Consent Agenda items, the City Council will enact the
motion and findings as noted in the "Suggested Motion™ heading found above.

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS

Bond Release Request Form 8-1-20 -Signed (PDF)

Gardner Batt Warehouse Final Bond Release Amount (PDF)
Notice of Completion 12.16.2020  (PDF)

Notice of Acceptance-Gardner Batt Warehouse (PDF)
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BOND RELEASE REQUEST

Development Name: Gardner Batt Warehouse

3.4.a

Development Address: 398 E 1100 S

*All outstanding fees must be paid prior to any release. E)T
.1 Partial Improvement 1 Final Improvement E Improvement Warranty Release 8
=~ Assurance Release 7— Assurance Release (10% Durability Release) E
Inspector Use Only [
Complete? g
Description of Item Quantity | Units | Unit Price Total Yes/No |l:
<
m
i
| el Tmprve venl” =
[a)
nd
<
O
©
<
[}
©
x
°
c
o
m
IS
c
T
o]
o}
c
2
Total [ @4, (((. (D @
o
o
-
©
Bond Type: ];éCash Deposit D Escrow Account D Letter of Credit D Surety Bond =
S
L
Please send check/bank letter to: g
Name: AF INDUSTRIAL, LLC ]
o}
Bank (if applicable): o
o
Address: 423 W Broadway, Ste #230 a
o}
City: SLC State: UTAH Zip: 84101 o
Phone: 208-293-2301 Email:  Mbatt@gardnerbatt.com -
c
o
r m
Signature: // [t (LN,O D s Date: __ 7/29/20 s
City Official Use Only <
%Fees paid and curent 2
Administrative Signature: ﬁ . Iﬂ/ﬂ( Date: /2 -%0- 20| <
7N
Inspector Signature: Aﬂu ./Hn“ A L Date:
2 2 o g v
Page 1 of 2
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Lisa Halversen

3.4.b

From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

Anna & Lisa,

The check they provided was for $1,156,227.15. Here is the breakdown of what was already released and what is the

Tana Uyema

Wednesday, December 16, 2020 1:59 PM
Lisa Halversen; Anna Montoya

RE: Gardner Batt

remaining balance available to be released.
o Street light fee = $76,460.00
e #1 Partial Release = $512,242.50
e #2 Partial Release = $279,877.99
e Revised Improvement Warranty = $192,535.66
e Final Bond Release = $95,111.00

Thank you,

AMERICA)

sFORKs

*** FOR DEVELOPMENT RELATED SUBMITTALS OR QUESTIONS, PLEASE EMAIL

Tana Uyemal| E.I.T.
Public Works|Engineering Division
P (801) 763-3060 Ext. 627

F (801) 763-3005
275 East 200 North, American Fork, UT 84003

DEVELOPMENT@AFCITY.NET, ***

***DUE TO THE INCREASE EXPOSURE RISKS TO COVID-19, OUR FRONT LOBBY WILL
BE OPEN, BUT IS LIMITED TO 3 PERSONS IN THE LOBBY AT TIME AND FACE MASKS

ARE ENCOURAGED. ***

From: Lisa Halversen <lhalversen@americanfork.gov>
Sent: Wednesday, December 16, 2020 1:56 PM

To: Anna Montoya <AMontoya@americanfork.gov>
Cc: Tana Uyema <Tuyema@americanfork.gov>
Subject: Gardner Batt

Hi Anna,

Attachment: Gardner Batt Warehouse Final Bond Release Amount (Final Bond Release - GARDNER BATT WAREHOUSE)

Just to clarify, the original amount of their bond was the $1,156,227.15. Of this amount, $55,000 was for streetlights.
There was an additional charge from Black and MacDonald for another $21,460.00. So the total amount to subtract
from their bond for streetlights is $76,460.00.
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AMERICA

s FORK:== NOTICE OF COMPLETION AND REQUEST FOR RELEASE

Projects and/or subdivisions completed within the corporate limits of American Fork City
Mayor of American Fork

51 East Main

American Fork, UT 84003

Re: American Fork Amazon

Dear Mayor:

As the project and/or subdivision construction has now been completed in full, | request that the
Improvement Completion Assurance be released in full up to one hundred percent (100%) of the
initial construction costs. Following the release of the Improvement Completion Assurance, |
understand that the one (1) year Improvement Warranty period will commence wherein ten
percent (10%) of the total Improvement Completion Assurance is held to ensure the durability of
the constructed improvements per City Ordinance Section 17.9.

I, Michael Batt , the owner, developer, and authorized representative of

American Fork Amazon Subdivision/Project, do hereby request the release of
the Improvement Completion Assurance. | certify that all liens have been released, all
outstanding fees paid, costs of administration paid, and reimbursement payments to prior
developers (if any) have been made, and the project clean-up is complete.

Project: American Fork Amazon

Address: 398 E 1100 S

Requested Amount: $95,111.00

/(/{.M D. Bt 12/16/20

Owner/Developer Date

Attachment: Notice of Completion 12.16.2020 (Final Bond Release - GARDNER BATT WAREHOUSE)
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AMERICA

sFORK::

NOTICE OF ACCEPTANCE/
IMPROVEMENT COMPLETION ASSURANCE

RELEASE AUTHORIZATION

The City Council of American Fork City, a Municipal Corporation and Body Politic in the State of Utah, hereby
authorizes the release of the Improvement Completion Assurance for GARDNER BATT WAREHOUSE.
Council accepts the improvements completed with the finding that said improvements are in a condition
meeting City ordinances, standards, and specifications, are in conformance with the approved project
construction plans, and all conditions for release as detailed in section 17.9.304 of the City Code have been

satisfied.

The City Council hereby authorizes the issuance of a letter to the financial guarantee institution authorizing
release of the Improvement Completion Assurance or to issue an authorized City check as appropriate for the
type of guarantee provided. Upon issuance of this Notice of Acceptance, the Improvement Warranty Period
shall commence as detailed in section 17.9.400 of the City Development Code. An amount totaling ten percent
(10%) of the Improvement Completion Assurance funds will be held as the Improvement Warranty pursuant to

the City Performance Guarantee ordinance.

Amount Released: $ 95,111.00

JANUARY , 2021

PASSED THIS __ 12 DAY OF

ATTEST:

Terilyn Lurker, City Recorder

City Representative, American Fork City

3.4d

Attachment: Notice of Acceptance-Gardner Batt Warehouse (Final Bond Release - GARDNER BATT WAREHOUSE)
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Department___Administration Director Approval David Bunker

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION
CITY OF AMERICAN FORK
JANUARY 12, 2021

AMERICA

s FORK:=:

AGENDA ITEM Presentation and acceptance of the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020 audited
annual financial statements.

SUMMARY RECOMMENDATION
The Finance Director recommends acceptance of the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020 financial statements.

BACKGROUND

The Uniform Fiscal Procedures Act for Utah Cities, UCA 10-6-101 et seq., requires an annual
independent audit of the American Fork City’s finances. These audits are performed by certified public
accountants, Larson & Company.

This audit, including the Auditor’s communication with those charged with governance letter as required
by professional auditing standards, will be presented by Jon Haderlie of Larson & Company, PC. The
audited financial report was submitted to the State Auditor’s Office by December 31, as required by the
State. A printed copy of the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) has been previously
provided to the Council and Mayor and an electronic copy is available on Dropbox. An electronic version
of the CAFR will be posted on the City's website shortly after acceptance by the Council.

BUDGET IMPACT
N/A

SUGGESTED MOTION
I move to accept the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020 audited annual financial statements.

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS

FY 2020 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (PDF)
Communication with governance  (PDF)
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City of American Fork
State of Utah

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
For the Fiscal Year Ended
June 30, 2020

AMERICA]]

s FORK-:

4.1.a

Attachment: FY 2020 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (Presentation and acceptance of the June 30, 2020 financial audit)
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CITY OF AMERICAN FORK
Table of Contents
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020
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December 21, 2020

AMERICAN
1: FORKSs:
The Honorable Mayor and

OFFICE: (801) 7633000 Members of the City Council
Fax:  (8o1) 7633033 American Fork, Utah
WEB: www.americanfork.gov

o RE: Finance Officer’s Transmittal Letter and Report on Financial Statements

American Fork, UT 84003
The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the City of American Fork
(the City) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, is hereby submitted
as mandated by both local ordinances and state statutes. These ordinances and statutes require the City
to issue a report on its financial position and activity, and this report must be annually audited by an
independent firm of certified public accountants. We believe the information, as presented, is accurate
in all material aspects, and is presented in a manner designed to set forth fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position and results of operations of the City as measured and reported by the financial
activity of its various funds; and that all disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an adequate
understanding of the City’s financial affairs have been included.

This CAFR has been prepared by the City’s Finance Director. Management assumes full responsibility for
the completeness and reliability of the information contained in this report, based upon a
comprehensive framework of internal control established for this purpose. Because the cost of internal
control should not exceed anticipated benefits, the objective is to provide reasonable, rather than
absolute, assurance that the financial statements are free of any material misstatements.

Generally accepted accounting principles require that management provide a narrative introduction,
overview, and analysis to accompany the basic financial statements in the form of Management’s
Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This letter of transmittal is designed to complement the MD&A and
should be read in conjunction with it. The City’s MD&A can be found immediately following the report
of the independent auditors.

The financial reporting entity (the City) includes all the funds of the primary government (i.e., the City as
legally defined), as well as all its component units. Component units are legally separate entities for
which the primary government is financially accountable. Blended component units, although legally
separate entities, are, in substance, part of the primary government’s operations and are included as
part of the primary government. Accordingly, the American Fork Redevelopment Agency and American
Fork Municipal Building Authority are reported in this CAFR as special revenue fund

GOVERNMENTAL STRUCTURE, LOCAL ECONOMIC CONDITION, AND OUTLOOK
Governmental Structure

The City has operated under the mayor-council form of government since incorporation. Policy making
and legislative authority are vested in a governing council consisting of a mayor and five council
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members. The governing council is responsible, among other things, for passing ordinances, approving
the budget, and providing “advice and consent” for Mayoral appointments. The City Council is elected
on a non-partisan basis. All Council members serve four-year terms, in addition to the Mayor.

The City Administrator is responsible for carrying out the policies and ordinances of the governing
council, and for overseeing day-to-day operations of the City.

Economic Condition and Outlook

The City of American Fork, incorporated in 1853, is located in the northern region of Utah County along
the Wasatch Front. The City is situated approximately 28 miles from Salt Lake City, the capital of Utah.
The City is a growing suburban community encompassing approximately 10.38 square miles. The City’s
population is estimated at 33,161 (U.S. Census Bureau). This is a 26.3 percent increase since 2010, and a
year-over-year increase of 2.0 percent. We anticipate the population in American Fork will continue to
increase as the City remains a desirable place to live and businesses are attracted to the technology
corridor along 1-15 in Utah County.

The added population has placed increased demands on services, but the City has adopted a
conservative approach to the expansion of these services. The general philosophy of the City is that
increased revenues from existing taxes and other revenue sources must provide the base for the
expansion of public expenditures. As demonstrated over the past several years, the City is committed to
this philosophy.

The City has experienced an economic expansion in recent years and many developers have expressed
interest in developing in American Fork. In addition, American Fork is located along the “Silicon Slopes,”
a collection of information technology, software development, hardware manufacturing, and research
firms along the Wasatch front. The City also anticipates additional growth along Utah Transit Authority’s
Frontrunner commuter rail line. In fact, the City is actively pursuing creation of a Community
Reinvestment Area (CRA) in this region to facilitate development. During fiscal year 2019 The City Council
passed a revised Transit Oriented Development (TOD) zoning code for this area, further setting a vision
for development of this area.

Recent challenges and changes brought about by the COVID-19 pandemic have impacted American Fork
City during fiscal year 2020. Management has evaluated the impact of these challenges through a variety
of factors including:

e Current and future reductions in sales tax-based revenues, charges for services, and/or state-
shared revenues.

¢ Prolonged accounts receivable and utility collections.

¢ Delayed vendor performance, project suspensions and revised completion dates.

e Adjustments to the workforce including layoffs, furloughs and/or job-reassignments.

e Changes to processes and internal controls for critical operations, including accounts payable,
procurement, payroll, and/or IT systems.
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Although long-lasting effects of the pandemic are unknown, the City took a conservative approach to
operations and fiscal management during the current year. Several facilities and programs were closed
or postponed during the months of April and May 2020, including the fitness center, library, recreation,
and parks due to State mandates. This resulted in the reduction of part-time staffing as well as the delay
of several capital projects.

Despite the expectation of an economic slowdown, the City received $9,971,598 in the General Fund
Sales Tax, and increase of $1,089,954 or 12.2%. The city also received an increase in building permit
revenue of 14.4% or $152,253. Management will continue to monitor closely the financial and operation
impact of the pandemic throughout the next fiscal year.

Additional information regarding the City’s economic factors can be found on page 29 of the MD&A.

MAJOR INITIATIVES

City Council Strategic Goals. The City Council prioritized five areas to support the mission of the
American Fork City. These goals are as follows:

1. Public Safety
e Build another Public Safety building to house a second fire station and police substation.
e Status — The City issued General Obligation Bonds, Series 2020 in May 2020 for 58.35 million
for the construction of the fire station and police substation.
2. Fiscal Responsibility
e Develop a fund balance policy for the General Fund.
e Status — A fund balance policy was adopted by resolution on May 28, 2019.
3. Infrastructure Improvements
e Create and fund a plan that maps out road, sidewalk, and utility needs in the City.
e Status — The City’s Public Works Department is currently revising the pavement management
plan, transportation master plan, and impact fee facility plan.
4. Communication
e Set up a technology committee to inventory the City’s technology needs and evaluate
solutions.
e Status — The technology committee members have been established and initial technology
recommendations are under review.

Capital Projects. The City’s staff, following specific directives of the City Council and Mayor, have been
involved in a variety of projects throughout the year. These projects reflect the City’s commitment to
ensure the citizens of American Fork can live and work in a desirable environment. During fiscal year
2020, the City had several significant new and ongoing projects. Some of these projects are listed below:

1. Road Projects. Fiscal year 2020 was the third year of the 10-year pavement management
plan. However, most fiscal year 2020 projects will not be completed until fiscal year 2021. A
total of $182,592 was spent on projects during the fiscal year, and purchase orders totaling
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$2,309,433 were outstanding at the end of the year and will be added to the fiscal year 2020
pavement management plan budget. In addition to the pavement management plan, the
Streets Department spent $397,642 on general road maintenance and repair and $193,978
was spent on sidewalk repair. In addition to the continued design of 200 South, other road
projects started in fiscal year 2020 included the widening of 300 North at 100 East and
reconstruction of 860 East.

2. Park Projects. Construction on the expansion of Art Dye park continued during the fiscal year.
A bond was issued to finance Art Dye expansion in fiscal year 2018. This bond provided over
S3 million towards expansion of the park. Bond proceeds, PARC tax funds, and park impact
fees financed construction. A total of $1,687,867 was spent during the year. Construction is
anticipated to be completed in fiscal year 2021.

3. Equipment. The City purchased multiple vehicles during fiscal year 2020. A ladder truck,
ambulance and brush truck were all purchased for the fire department and financed through
a capital lease. Eight police vehicles were purchased as part of the public safety vehicle
replacement program. In addition, two trucks and a loader were purchased for the public
works department.

4. Water Projects. The Water Fund spent $5663,668 to rehabilitate the Upper Water Tank,
$485,870 on Main and State to 100 East betterments, and $250,385 on the completion of the
spring line from American Fork canyon. An additional $471,779 was spent on water line
replacement projects partially funded through a federal Community Development Block
Grant (CDBG). Preliminary design and engineering work totaling $74,747 was also spent for
the City’s 36-inch waterline project.

5. Broadband. The City spent $146,486 on a continued study to determine strategic
opportunities for the City’s current broadband infrastructure and to determine if City-owned
fiber infrastructure is feasible. This project will continue into fiscal year 2021.

One of the major initiatives of the City is to improve its road infrastructure. Fiscal year 2020 marked the
third year of a 10-year pavement management plan. Much of the budget for the 2020 improvements are
carried forward to be completed during the 2021 fiscal year. The public works department is currently
revising the pavement management plan, which will spur discussions on long-term financing of the plan.

Economic Development. The Mayor, City Council, and administration recognizes the need to develop
the City’s economic base to provide the necessary services, i.e., recreation, roads, public safety, etc., to
its citizens. Efforts are being made by the City to attract new businesses and to promote the type of
activities that will enhance the quality of life in the community. These businesses include restaurants,
office buildings, retail, and industrial space.

American Fork currently has a mix of retail, light manufacturing, professional office, and commercial
space, and has successfully used its Redevelopment Agencies to expand this base. Located along
Interstate 15, “The Meadows,” a large shopping and entertainment center located in American Fork,
provides a large sales tax base for the City, and has become a destination retail hub in northern Utah
County. The City is also home to several automobile dealerships and repair facilities.
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North Pointe Business Park, located in American Fork, is a 100-acre business park offering high image,
class A industrial space and has become a very attractive location due to its proximity to I-15 and
American Fork’s well-educated workforce.

Many large businesses and government entities, such as Alpine School District, Utah State
Developmental Center, Domo, and American Fork Hospital, to name a few, have significant operations
in American Fork.

The City’s success in recruiting a diverse commercial base demonstrates the City’s dedication to the
establishment of long-term, sustained economic growth. The City will continue to encourage

development using redevelopment areas when appropriate.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

American Fork’s financial statements reflect a robust and growing City. From fiscal year 2015 to 2020,
the City’s governmental funds revenues increased from $27,137,819 to $42,111,931, and expenditures
increased from $30,587,869 to $34,324,266. In recent years, the City has been focusing its efforts on
controlling costs in an effort to fund the City’s strategic priorities. It is also important to note that much
of the revenue increase is due to impact fees received and other restricted revenues. Property tax rates
have not been increased since 2007. Proprietary fund operating revenues have increased as well, going
from $12,908,896 to $18,887,241, while operating expenses increased from $9,597,331 to $14,873,732.
Some of this increase is due to the addition of Fleet and Sanitation Funds in fiscal year 2018 and the
Technology Fund in 2020. In addition, the City recognized the need to ensure future capital projects were
funded in the utility funds, and approved appropriate rate increases to accomplish this. The expense
increases are also due to servicing a larger population, addressing deferred capital infrastructure repairs,
and increased maintenance costs due to aging infrastructure.

As a recipient of federal and state financial assistance, the City is also responsible for ensuring an
adequate internal control structure and for documenting compliance with applicable laws and
regulations related to these programs. This internal control structure is subject to periodic evaluations.
The audit for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, disclosed no instances of internal control weaknesses.

The City’s budget serves as the foundation for its financial planning and control. The City Administrator,
in conjunction with City staff, Mayor, and City Council, proposes an annual budget which is presented to
the City Council for review no later than the first council meeting in May. The Council is required to hold
a public hearing on the proposed budget and to adopt the final budget prior to June 30, unless the City
proposes a property tax rate in excess of its certified tax rate. In that case, a tentative budget is adopted
and is in force until a public hearing is held to approve the increase.

A budget is prepared for each fund, and the General Fund is further divided into departments.
Department heads may request to the Finance Director transfers of appropriations within a department.
Transfers of appropriations between funds or increases in revenues require the approval of the City
Council. Activities of the General Fund, special revenue funds, Debt Service fund, capital project funds,
and proprietary funds are included in the annual appropriated budget. The level of budgetary control
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(i.e., the level where expenditures cannot legally exceed the appropriated amount) is at the department
level within the General Fund and the fund level for all other funds.

As demonstrated by the statement included in the financial section of this report, the City continues to
meet its responsibility for sound financial management.

OTHER INFORMATION

Independent Audit

State statutes require an annual audit by independent certified public accountants. The firm of Larson &
Company, PC was selected by the City to perform this audit. This audit was designed to meet the
requirements set forth in the Utah state statutes. Generally accepted auditing standards and the
standards set forth in the General Accounting Office’s Government Auditing Standards were used by the
auditors in conducting the engagement. The auditor’s report on the financial statements is included in
the financial section of this report.

Awards

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City for its Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report (CAFR) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019. To be awarded a Certificate of
Achievement, a government must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized comprehensive
annual financial report. This report must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and
applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe our current CAFR continues
to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program requirements, and we are submitting it to the GFOA to
determine its eligibility for another certificate.

Acknowledgments
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4 J.arso

I
‘. CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Honorable Mayor and
Members of the City Council
American Fork City, Utah

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of American Fork City, Utah (the City)
as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of
the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’'s judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of American Fork City, Utah, as of June 30, 2020, and the respective changes in
financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Larson & Company Member of
765 North Main, Spanish Fork, Utah 84660 13 CPAM ERICA
Main: (801) 798-3545 | Fax: (801) 798-3678 INTERNATIONAL

“ M\ Crowe Horwath Intemational
‘V\V\V.LIYSCO.COIH
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Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis and other required supplementary information as listed in the table of contents be
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational,
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which
consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the
information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and
other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or
provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise
the City’s basic financial statements. The introductory section, combining and individual nonmajor fund financial
statements, and statistical section are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of
the basic financial statements. The schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of
additional analysis as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, and is also not a required part of the
basic financial statements.

The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and the schedule of expenditures of federal
awards are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.
In our opinion, the combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and the schedule of expenditures
of federal awards are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of
the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 30, 2020,
on our consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that
report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.
That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering the City’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Larson & Company, PC

Spanish Fork, Utah
December 30, 2020

14
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CITY OF AMERICAN FORK
Management Discussion and Analysis
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020

As management of the City of American Fork, we offer readers of the City’s financial statements this
narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City for fiscal year ended June 30, 2020.
We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction with additional
information that we have furnished in our letter of transmittal, which can be found on page 2 of this
report.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

e The assets and deferred outflows of resources of the City exceeded its liabilities and deferred inflows
of resources at the close of fiscal year 2020 by $231,524,598 (net position). Of this amount,
$29,767,206 (unrestricted net position) may be used to meet the government’s ongoing obligations
to citizens and creditors.

e Total net position of the City of American Fork increased by $21,925,674. Of this increase,
$11,400,108 (52 percent) is attributable to governmental activities, mainly from donated capital
assets and unspent impact fee collections. Business-type activities provided a $10,525,566 increase
to the City’s net position primarily due to donated infrastructure and assets.

e As of the close of fiscal year 2020, the City’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund
balances of $45,781,599, an increase of $16,040,636 (56 percent). Most of this increase is due to
unspent impact fees in the Capital Projects Fund, along with revenues exceeding expenditures in the
General Fund. Of the total fund balance, $31,709,808 (69 percent) is restricted or committed for
certain projects.

e At the end of fiscal year 2020, assigned and unassigned fund balance of the General Fund was
$6,243,556, or 23 percent of General Fund revenues (excluding other financing sources). This is an
improvement of 13 percent compared to fiscal year 2019. Utah state law allows any balance of
unrestricted funds (committed, assigned and unassigned fund balance) in excess of 5 percent of the
total revenues to be utilized for budget purposes. The maximum unrestricted fund balance allowed
is 25 percent of total revenues.

e The City’s total long-term obligations increased $3,788,209 (7 percent). The City issued General
Obligation bonds in the amount of $8,035,000 for the construction of a new fire station and capital
leases in the amount of $2,079,500 for fire and ambulance vehicles. This increase was reduced by
regularly scheduled debt service payments and the reduction of the City’s pension liability.

e At the end of fiscal year 2020, the City recognized total net pension assets of $320,299 (increase of
SO from fiscal year 2019) and total net pension liabilities of $3,339,817 (a decrease of 47 percent
from fiscal year 2019). Much of this increase is due the difference between projected and actual
earnings on pension plan investments. More information regarding the City’s retirement plans can
be found in Note 10 beginning on page 67 and in the Required Supplementary Information beginning
on page 80.
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CITY OF AMERICAN FORK
Management Discussion and Analysis
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020

REPORT OVERVIEW

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City’s basic financial
statements. The City’s basic financial statements are comprised of three components: 1) government-
wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. This
report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the
City’s finances in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

The Statement of Net Position presents information on all of the City’s assets, liabilities, and deferred
inflows/outflows of resources, with the difference reported as net position. Over time, increases or
decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City is
improving or deteriorating. However, other non-financial factors should also be considered.

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the City’s net position changed during the
fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported when the underlying event giving rise to the change
occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are taken into
account regardless of when cash is received or paid.

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are principally
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that
are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-
type activities). The governmental activities of the City include general government, community services,
public safety, public works, recreation, culture, and other. The business-type activities of the City include
public utilities (water, sewer, storm drain, sanitation) and a broadband network.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 33-34 of this report.

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been
segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City also uses fund accounting to ensure and
demonstrate compliance with finance-related requirements. All of the City’s funds can be divided into
two categories: Governmental funds and proprietary funds.

Governmental Funds — Governmental funds are used to account for the same functions reported as
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. These fund statements focus on
how money flows into and out of these funds and the balances left at year end that are available for
spending. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government’s near-term financing
requirements.
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CITY OF AMERICAN FORK
Management Discussion and Analysis
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By
doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term financing
decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison
between governmental funds and governmental activities.

Governmental funds report the difference between their assets, deferred outflows of resources,
liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources as fund balance, which is divided into nonspendable,
restricted, committed, assigned, and unassigned portions. Nonspendable balances include inventories
and prepaid expenditures that are not expected to be converted to cash. Restricted balances include net
fund resources of the City that are subject to external constraints due to state or federal laws or
externally imposed conditions by grantors or creditors. Restrictions include debt service cash held in
trust, bond proceeds, donations, grant proceeds, impact fees collected, redevelopment agency funds,
and perpetual care. Committed balances reflect the City’s self-imposed limitation on the use of otherwise
available expendable financial resources in governmental funds. Committed balances include cemetery
plot sale revenue allocated for cemetery expansion. Assigned balances in the General Fund and other
governmental funds are those that do not meet the requirements of restricted or committed but are
intended to be used for specific purposes. In addition, fund balances appropriated in a subsequent fiscal
year are also recorded as assigned fund balance. Unassigned balances in the General Fund are all other
available net resources. On June 30, 2020, the City’s combined governmental fund balance is
$45,781,599 (520,041 in nonspendable, $31,485,053 in restricted, $224,756 in committed, $7,808,193
in assigned, and $6,243,556 in unassigned fund balances). There are no significant restrictions,
commitments, or limitations that affect the availability of fund resources for future use. Additional detail
regarding governmental fund balances can be found on the governmental funds balance sheet located
on page 38 of this report.

Governmental funds are reported using an accounting method called modified accrual accounting, which
measures cash and other financial assets readily convertible to cash. The governmental fund statements
provide a detailed short-term view of the City’s general government operations and the basic services it
provides. Governmental fund information helps users determine the financial resources that can be
spent in the near future to finance the City’s programs. The relationship (or differences) between
governmental activities and governmental funds is detailed in a reconciliation included with the fund
financial statements.

The City maintains the following ten individual governmental funds:

e General e Redevelopment Agency

e Capital Projects e Downtown Redevelopment
e Debt Service e PARC Tax

e Fitness Center e Building Authority

e Celebration e Cemetery Care
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Information is presented separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental
fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the General and Capital
Projects Funds, which are classified as major funds. In addition, due to its importance to financial
statement users, the Debt Service Fund is also presented as a major fund. Data from the other
governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each
of these non-major governmental funds is elsewhere in this report.

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 36-39 of this report.

Proprietary Funds — The City maintains two different types of proprietary funds. Enterprise funds are
used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial
statements. The City uses enterprise funds to account for its water, sewer, storm drain, sanitation, and
broadband funds.

Internal service funds are an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs internally among
the City’s various functions. The City uses an internal service fund to account for its fleet of vehicles.
Because this service predominantly benefits governmental rather than business-type functions, it has
been included within governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.

The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate information for the water and sewer
services, which are considered major funds of the City. Conversely, the internal service fund is combined
into a single, aggregated presentation in the proprietary fund financial statements.

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 41-43 of this report.

Notes to the financial statements — The notes provide additional information essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes
to the financial statements begin on page 45 of this report.

Required Supplementary Information (RSI) — This section contains budget to actual comparison
statements for the City’s General Fund. This section also contains required supplementary information
for the City’s pension program. The RSI section begins on page 77.

Other Information — In addition to the above-mentioned statements and reports, this report also
presents other supplementary information and a statistical section which give additional and more
detailed information to the reader. The supplemental section includes individual fund financial
statements for the City’s nonmajor funds, as well as budget to actual statements for major funds not
reported as RSI. The statistical section gives various financial and demographic data of the City, including
trend analysis for certain financial data. The supplementary section begins on page 85, and the statistical
section begins on page 105.
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GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial
position. In the case of the City of American Fork, assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded
liabilities and deferred inflows of resources by $231,669,469 as of June 30, 2020.

By far the largest portion of the City’s position (79.2 percent) reflects its investments in capital assets
(e.g., land, water shares, buildings and structure, machinery and equipment, improvements,
construction in progress, and right of way), less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is still
outstanding. The City uses these capital assets to provide services; consequently, these assets are not
available for future spending. Although the City’s investments in capital assets is reported net of related
debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other
sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

The following table summarizes the City’s net position:

CITY OF AMERICAN FORK
Summary of Net Position
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

Current and Other Assets $ 59,998,012 5 44,597,371 § 27,370,933 $22,520,858 S 87,368,945 S 64,118,229
Capital Assets 98,724,528 93,981,789 115,420,124 112,085,714 214,144,652 206,067,503

Total Assets 158,722,540 135,579,160 142,791,057 134,606,572 301,513,597 270,185,732
Total Deferred Quiflows

of Resources 1,450,234 2,926,789 2,466,480 2,890,591 3,916,714 5,817,380
Current Liabilities Qutstanding 6,344,093 5,421,694 1,623,705 2,215,917 7,967,798 7,637,611
Long Term Liabilities 18,148,853 12,107,825 37,913,854 40,166,673 56,062,707 52,274,498

Total Liabilities 24,492,946 17,529,519 39,537,559 42,382,590 64,030,505 59,912,109
Total Deferred Inflows

of Resources 9,557,054 6,398,635 173,283 93,444 9,730,337 6,492,079

Net Investment in Capital Assets 93,665,386 90,845,044 80,253,639 75,253,929 173,919,025 166,098,973

Restricted 22,448,878 18,527,450 5,389,489 2,232,191 27,838,367 20,759,641
Unrestricted 10,008,510 5,205,301 19,903,567 17,535,009 29,912,077 22,740,310
Total Net Position $126,122,774 $114,577,795 $105,546,695 $95,021,129 $231,669,469 & 209,598,924

An additional portion of the City’s net position (12 percent) represents resources that are subject to
external restriction on how they may be used. The remaining balance of unrestricted net position of
$29,912,077 may be used to meet the government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

As of June 30, 2020, the City can report positive balances in all three categories of net position for the
government as well as for its separate governmental-type activities. Positive balances for all three
categories are also reported for the water, sewer, storm drain, and sanitation funds. The Broadband
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the year ended June 30, 2020:

CITY OF AMERICAN FORK

summary of Changes in Net Position

For the Period Ended lune 30, 2020

Revenues
Program revenues:
Charges for Services
Operating Grants and
Contributions
Capital Grants and
Contributions
General Revenues:
Property Taxes
Other Taxes
Other

Total Revenues

Expenses:
General Government
Community Services
Public Safety
Public Works
Recreation and Culture
Redevelopment/Public

Improvements

Other
Interest on Long-Term Debt
Water
Sewer
Storm Drain
Sanitation
Broadband

Total Expenses

Gain on Sale of Capital Assets

Increase (Decrease) in Met
Position Before Transfers
Transfers

Increase in Net Position
Met Position - Beginning

Met Position - Ending

Fund, however, reports negative restricted fund balance. The City is evaluating long-term options for 5
. o ge . . . . >
this fund and began subsidizing current year operations from the General Fund in fiscal year 2020. ]
<

. o, . . . . ) . e
Analysis of the City’s Operations — The following table provides a summary of the City’s operations for =
c

S

o

AN

o

N

o

™

()

c

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total ,3
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 o

o

o

()

$ 11,286,431 § 11,330,710 $ 17,406,763 & 16815343 §$ 28,693,194 & 28146053 ©
8

1,620,919 210,911 - - 1,620,919 210,911 &

o

Q

10,129,814 8,350,932 7,130,448 12,239,099 17,260,262 20,590,031 g

S

6,595,930 6,433,001 - - 6,595,930 6,433,001 -
14,634,015 12,453,863 - - 14,634,015 12,453,863 °
660,147 813,766 - - 660,147 813,766 o

c

44,927,256 39,593,183 24537,211 29,054,442 69,464,467 68,647,625 o

ot

o

N

2,197,343 2,452,330 - - 2,197,343 2,452,330 £
3,633,976 3,471,468 - - 3,633,976  3,471,468.00 <Y
10,411,791 10,648,298 - - 10,411,791 10,648,298 %
11,645,677 8,701,583 - - 11,645,677 8,701,583 o
3,592,816 3,056,814 - - 3,592,816  3,956,814.00 S

g

627,987 581,388 - - 627,987 581,388 i
922,355 1,189,608 - - 922,355 1,189,608 =
198,317 187,983 - - 198,317 187,983 2

- - 6,956,281 6,624,070 6,956,281 6,624,070 =

- - 4,323,263 4,474,585 4,323,263 4,474,585 o

- - 1,039,367 1,060,060 1,039,367 1,060,060 =

- - 1,460,830 1,284,101 1,460,830 1,284,101 S

- - 550,118 476,902 550,118 476,902 <
33,230,262 31,189,472 14,329,859 _ 13,919,718 47,560,121 45,109,190 S

S

o

21,328 24,085 - - 21,328 24,085 g

S

11,718,322 8,427,796 10,207,352 15,134,724 21,925,674 23,562,520 N
(318,214 (251,723 318,214 351,723 - - o
11,400,108 8,176,073 10,525,566 _ 15,386,447 21,925,674 23,562,520 =
114,577,795 _ 106,401,722 95,021,129 _ 79,634,682 _ 209,598,924 _ 186,036,404 e
$ 125,977,903 § 114,577,795 S 105546,695 §95021,120 § 231,524,508 § 200,598,924 <
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<

Governmental Activities — Governmental activities increased the City’s net position by $11,400,108. Key
elements affecting governmental activities net position are as follows:
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e General Fund revenues exceeded expenditures by $3,253,056 during fiscal year 2020. The increase
can be attributed to several factors. The City received more revenues than anticipated, including
$1.2 million in Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act (“CARES Act”) and tax revenue
exceeding budgeted estimates by $1,145,510. The coronavirus pandemic also resulted in facility
closures and reduced services. Consequently, the City experienced expenditures below budgeted
appropriations, resulting in a savings of $1.1 million.

Program Revenues & Expenses
$14 Governmental Activities
Fiscal Year 2020
$12
M Revenue
$10
Ml Expense
S8
$6
S4
* n II II
“ ml
General Community Public Public Recreation Redevelopment
Government  Services Safety Works and Culture & Other

e The City’s governmental funds capital projects funds increased net position by $12,846,111. Capital
projects fund highlights are as follows:

>

American Fork City Comprehensive Annual Financial Report

The City issued general obligations bonds in May 2020 in the amount of $8 million. Proceeds
from the bonds are recorded in capital projects for the construction of a new fire station. The
project start has been delayed due to timing of the property acquisition.

Impact fee net revenue in the amount of $3,131,274 was received in governmental impact
fee funds during the fiscal year. Reserves are being accumulated for a number of projects
identified in the Impact Fee Facilities Plans (IFFP), including 200 South Bike/Pedestrian Path
and developer infrastructure upsizing reimbursements.

During fiscal year 2020, the City’s governmental funds expensed $6,947,007 of capital outlay,
which Projects totaling $5,968,887 were in progress at year end, including the expansion of
Art Dye Park and road improvement projects that are also being carried forward for
completion into the next fiscal year.
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Business-Type Activities — Business-type activities increased the City’s net position by $10,525,566, which
represents an decrease of $4,860,881 over the previous year’s change. Key elements of the change in

business-type net position are as follows:

Revenues by Source
Business-Type Activities
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020

Capital
Contributions,
$7,130,448

Charges for
Services,
$17,406,763

adds to the net position to be used for
future capital purposes. The Broadband
Fund experienced a current year loss of
$52,235 in net position for a June 30,
2020 ending net position of
(52,101,844).

FUND FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

Governmental Funds - The focus of the City’s
governmental fund statements is to provide
information on near-term inflows, outflows,
and balances of spendable resources. Such
information is useful in assessing the City’s
financing  requirements.  In  particular,
unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful
measure of a government’s net resources
available for spending at the end of the fiscal
year.

. During fiscal year 2020, the City’s
utility funds received $4,010,855 of capital
contributions from developers which
includes water, sewer, and storm drain
lines and donated water rights.

. Impact fee revenue of $3,119,593
was received. This revenue offsets
previous negative impact fee balances in
the Water Fund, and is being accumulated
in the Sewer and Storm Drain Funds for
future projects identified in the Impact Fee
Facilities Plans (IFFP), including the 36”
water line budgeted in fiscal year 2021.

° Operating income was $4,194,964 in
the utility funds during the year, which

Revenues by Source
Governmental Activities
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020

Other,
$660,147

Other Taxes,
$14,634,015

Charges for
Services,
$11,286,431

Property
Taxes,
$6,595,930Q

Capital
Contributions,

$10,129,814 Operating

Contributions,
$1,620,919

As of June 30, 2020, The City’s governmental funds (general, capital projects, debt service, and nonmajor
funds) reported combined fund balances of $45,781,599. This represents an increase of $16,040,635
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from last year’s ending balances. This increase is due largely to bond proceeds from the issuance of
General Obligation Bonds in May 2020 to construct the new fire station in the capital projects funds.
$6,243,556, or (14 percent) of the total fund balance constitutes unassigned fund balance and is
therefore available for spending at the City’s discretion. Committed fund balance totals $224,756, or 0.5
percent of fund balance. This balance is committed for cemetery expansion projects. Assigned fund
balance totals $7,808,193 (17 percent), meaning the City intends to use this amount for specific purposes
which may include capital projects, debt service, PARC tax grant awards, downtown redevelopment,
celebration, municipal building authority, and/or subsequent year appropriations. Fund balance of
$31,934,564 (70 percent) is restricted to indicate it is not available for new spending because it has
already been committed to pay for debt service, capital projects, grant projects, redevelopment, and
cemetery perpetual care. The City also has prepaid items and inventory in the amount of $20,041, which
is classified as nonspendable fund balance.

General Fund
The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the City. All activities which are not required to be
accounted for in separate funds either by state or local ordinance or by a desire to maintain a matching
of revenues and expenditures are

accounted for in this fund. Revenues Revenue by Source
exceeded expenditures (including other General Fund
financing sources and uses) in the General Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020
Fund by $3,253,056 during the year. Total
general fund balance at June 30, 2020 is
$6,245,169, or 22.8 percent of general
fund revenues.

Other Revenue,
$1,262,994

Taxes continue to be the largest source of

revenue in the General Fund and C:::\g/iecs;;or
represent 60.4 percent of total General $6,608 28'1 Taxes,

Fund revenues. The largest component of $16,536,603
tax revenue is sales tax, which represents
60.3 percent of total tax revenues and 36.4 Intergovernmental,
percent of total General Fund revenues. $1,609,518
This compares with 38.5 percent of total
General Fund revenues in the prior fiscal
year ended June 30, 2019.

Licenses & Permits,
$1,367,011

General Fund expenditures increased during fiscal year 2020, going from $19,603,672 in 2019 to
$22,158,563 in 2020, an increase of 13 percent. Public safety accounted for much of the increase due
electing to contribute an additional 4% to Utah Retirement System for Tier 2 Hybrid Public Safety and
Firefighter personnel. Vehicle replacement charges, merit raises for eligible employees, health insurance
increases, and additional ambulance personnel also contributed to the higher expenditures.
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. . Other Governmental Funds
Expenditures by Function .
Property tax collections from
General Fund
redevelopment areas
$12 decreased 26.7 percent to a
é . total of $1,291,184 compared
= S10 u Fiscal Year 2020 with fiscal year 2019. This
2 M Fiscal Year 2019 decrease is attributable the
58 expiration of the North Valley
6 RDA Project Area in tax year
2019, which reduced the tax
$4 increment revenue received
& during fiscal year 2019-2020.
.l Il Despite the decrease in
$0 -- revenues, the RDA Fund
General Community  Public Public Other balance increased $779,168
Government Services Works Safety to a total of 4,897,580, an
18.96  percent increase.

Redevelopment fund balance is aside for future housing and planned infrastructure projects, as outlined
in the project area plans. Included in future projects is the reconstruction of 860 East and widening of
1100 South. Of the $4.9 million fund balance, $1,628,068 is reserved for affordable housing projects as
required by state statute. These monies will be disbursed or expended in a future fiscal year.

Fund balance in the Capital Projects Fund increased $12,846,111 to $33,015,346 for fiscal year ending
June 30, 2020. Most of the fund balance is restricted, including $16,223,179, or 49.1 percent, for impact
fee eligible capital projects, and $9,036,174, or 27.3 percent, is restricted bond proceeds for a new fire
station construction and Art Dye expansion. In addition, $2,411,022 is assigned for projects to be finish
completion in the fiscal year 2020-2021.

PARC (Parks, Arts, Recreation, and Culture) Tax Fund balance increased $238,210 during the fiscal year
2019-2020. This increase was due to a reduction in PARC tax grants being expended because of the
uncertainty surrounding the Coronavirus pandemic. The increased fund balance will allow additional
grants to be awarded in fiscal year 2020-2021.

Fitness Center Fund balance decreased by $100,688. Revenue decreased because of facility closures and
fewer fitness pass sales as a result of COVID-19.

Debt service fund balance decreased by $941,411 due to a transfer to the capital projects fund. This
transfer was due to bond proceeds earmarked for capital improvement projects.

Proprietary Funds - The City’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the
government-wide financial statements, but in more detail. In summary, unrestricted net position for the
Water Fund was $11,289,638, $8,131,650 for the Sewer Fund, $2,758,834 for the Storm Drain Fund,
$362,322 for the Sanitation Fund, and ($2,639,662) for the Broadband Fund. Unrestricted net position
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is accumulated for current and future capital projects, along with funding target operating reserves (20
percent of revenues).

The Water Fund’s unrestricted net position increased slightly by $51,773 during fiscal year 2020. Of the
total net position of $75,738,451, $62,534,040 is restricted for investment in capital assets, with
$1,914,773 being restricted for impact fees capital improvements. Also, during fiscal year 2020,
unrestricted net position in the Sewer Fund increased by $1,442,217, mainly due to delaying $1.4 million
in capital projects until fiscal year 2021.

During fiscal year 2020 the Storm Drain Fund saw an increase in unrestricted net position of $687,186,
which will be used for future capital projects. The Sanitation Fund saw net position increase $35,194,
which will be used to fund target operating reserves. Finally, the Broadband Fund saw a modest decrease
in unrestricted net position of $3,801. The City is currently evaluating long-term opportunities for the
Broadband Fund to address the net position deficit the fund is currently experiencing. Current deficits
are being subsidized by a transfer from the General Fund.

During fiscal year 2020, the City moved information technology from the general fund to the internal
service funds. Unrestricted net position in the Information Technology Fund was $132,809 on June 30,
2020, which will be used for future equipment replacement. Unrestricted net position in the Fleet Fund
increased $93,020 during fiscal year 2020. This is mainly due to the remaining capital lease proceeds to
equip the purchase of a new ladder truck for the fire department. Equipment will be purchased in fiscal
year 2021.

Additional factors concerning the finances of these funds have already been addressed in the discussion
of the City’s business-type activities.

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

During the fiscal year, General Fund budgeted expenditures were amended from an original budget total
of $22,764,971 to a final budget total of $23,257,745, a 2.2 percent difference. All departments monitor
their budgets closely and are required to stay within their allotment. Budget adjustments made during
the year can be summarized as follows:

e General Government increased by $12,460. The City was in the process of completing its
comprehensive financial sustainability plan at the end of fiscal year 2019. The proposed carryover
request is to complete this project.

e Community Services increased by $13,250. The City was in the process of completing its
comprehensive financial sustainability plan at the end of fiscal year 2019. The proposed carryover
request is to complete this project.

e Public Works increased by $324,565. Of this increase, $200,656 is due to street and sidewalk
maintenance being carried forward from fiscal year 2019 and $124,678 was for an increase in
development inspections billed to developers (offset by related revenue).
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e Public Safety increased by $110,999. $42,600 of this increase is due to overtime and part-time
wages for increased service calls and $53,619 is due to the K-9 program and police grants
awarded from outside agencies. In the fire department, $14,781 was added for fire prevention
education, grant programming and overtime for higher calls for service.

e Other departments increased by $31,500 due to the recreation department adding club baseball
to their baseball program.

General Fund budgeted revenues were amended from $24,466,682 to $24,674,850, an increase of
$208,168, or .8 percent. Highlights of this increase include:

e Grants revenue increased by $76,674, the majority being grants awarded to the Police
Department.

e Development inspection revenue increased by $95,994. This revenue offsets the increase in
development inspection expense mentioned above.

e Recreation fees increased $31,500 due to higher participation in the baseball program.

During the year, actual revenues were more than budgeted revenues by $2,709,557. Sales tax received
was higher than anticipated by $971,598, despite the economic uncertainty surrounding the coronavirus
pandemic. Additionally, the City received federal funding for the pandemic, accrued in the amount of
$1,287,592 for fiscal year ended June 30, 2020. Property taxes received were higher than anticipated by
$224,781 due to higher growth and payment of delinquent property tax revenue.

Actual expenditures were less than budgeted expenditures by $1,099,182. Of this savings, $657,864 was
realized in public safety due in part to employee retirement and health benefits and dispatch fees being
less than expected. Community Services had $331,318 less expenditures than budgeted due to
reduction in programming, facility closures, and part-time wages due to the Coronavirus pandemic.

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital assets - The City of American Fork’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and
business-type activities as of June 30, 2019, amounts to $206,067,503 (net of accumulated depreciation).
This investment in capital assets includes land, water shares, buildings, improvements, machinery &
equipment, right of way, and construction in progress. The total increase in the City’s investment in
capital assets for the current year was 4.5 percent (a 1.4 percent increase for governmental activities
and a 7.2 percent increase for business-type activities).
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CITY OF AMERICAN FORK
Capital Assets, Net of Depreciation
June 30, 2020

Governmental Business-type
activities activities Total
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
Land 524,890,527 £24,890,527 & 777,614 & 777,614 & 25,668,141 S 25,668,141
Water Shares - - 32,979,223 30,911,220 32,979,223 30,911,220
Buildings 17,270,522 17,849,120 714,310 761,735 17,984,832 18,610,855
Improvements 43,597,744 42,824,116 78,319,905 76,428,120 121,917,649 119,252,236
Machinery and Equip. 6,269,920 4,150,452 225,322 143,143 6,495,242 4,293,595
Const. in Progress 5,968,887 3,540,645 2,393,155 3,063,882 8,362,042 6,604,527
Right of Way 726,929 726,929 - - 726,929 726,929

Total Capital Asset= $98,724,529 $93,981,789 &115409,529 5112085714 §$214,134,058 % 206,067,503

Major capital asset events during fiscal year 2020 include the following:

e Addition of $2,690,456 to fleet inventory under machinery and equipment. Included in the
additions were a ladder truck, an ambulance, and a brush truck for the fire department all
financed through capital leases, and eight vehicles purchased for the police department.

e Water rights valued at $2,068,003 were deeded to the City as part of several development
projects.

e Improvements increased due to donated infrastructure and capital assets, which include
$677,922 in roads, $524,757 in sidewalks, $533,963 in curb and gutter, $1,386,246 of donated
water and sewer lines, and $291,710 in donated storm drain infrastructure.

e Construction in progress increased due to the nearly completed expansion of Art Dye Park as of
June 30, 2020.

Additional information on the City’s capital assets can be found in Note 7 on page 61-62 of this report.

Long-term debt - As of June 30, 2020, the City had total long-term bonded debt outstanding of
$48,978,327, including unamortized bond premium. This debt represents both general obligation bonds
and revenue bonds secured solely by specified revenue sources. In addition, the City had $2,745,833 in
capital leases outstanding.
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CITY OF AMERICAN FORK
Outstanding Debt
June 30, 2020

Governmental Business-type
activities activities Total
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
General Obligation Bonds  $ 8,210,000 $ 940,000 536,916,327 §38,700,082 545,126,327 539,640,082
Revenue Bonds 3,285,000 3,645,000 567,000 603,000 3,852,000 4,248,000
Capital Leases 2,745,833 1,136,929 - - 2,745,833 1,136,929
Total Debt $14,240,833 $5,721,929 537,483,327 ’S 39,303,082 551,724,160 545,025,011

The City’s total long-term bonded and capital lease debt outstanding increased by $6,699,149 during the
fiscal year, an increase of 14.8 percent. Major debt events during fiscal year 2020 include the following:

The City issued $8,035,000 General Obligation Bonds, Series 2020 for the purpose of constructing
a new fire station.

Capital Leases in the amount of $2,079,500 were issued to finance the purchase of a ladder truck,
ambulance, and brush truck for the fire station.

Debt was retired in the amount of $2,944,755, including the completion of the 2014 General
Obligation Refunding Bonds.

State statutes (Utah State Constitution, Article XIV, Section 4) limit the amount of general obligation debt
a governmental entity may issue to 12 percent of the “reasonable fair cash value” of property within the
City. Of this percent, a maximum of 4 percent may be used for general purposes, with the remaining 8
percent (and any remaining portion of the 4 percent for general purposes) may be used for water and/or
sewer purposes. The current limitation of the City is $487,331,605. The total general obligation debt of
the City is $42,070,000, excluding bond premium.

The City has an “Aa3” rating for its general obligation debt from Moody’s Investor Service.

Additional information on the City’s long term-debt can be found in Note 9 on pages 63-67 of this report.

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGET AND RATES

American Fork City Comprehensive Annual Financial Report

The 2019 unemployment rate for the City of American Fork was 3.8 percent. This compares with
a national unemployment rate of 6.9 percent and a state of Utah unemployment rate of 4.1
percent. The 2018 unemployment rate for the City of American Fork was 3.2 percent. (Source:
Bureau of Labor Statistics.)

General Fund budgeted revenues (excluding transfers in) for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021
of $22,718,079 reflects a decrease of 7.2 percent over the final budgeted revenues for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2020 of $24,466,682. Most of this decrease is due to conservative sales tax
revenue estimates because of economic uncertainties resulting from the coronavirus pandemic.
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4.1.a

CITY OF AMERICAN FORK
Management Discussion and Analysis
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020

Estimates will be evaluated throughout the next fiscal year for determine if revenues will be
returned to fiscal year 2020 levels.

e A revised fee schedule was passed for fiscal year 2020, with only minor changes. A number of
residential and commercial building fees were increased to account for inflation and actual costs
of providing service. Culinary water rates also increased per a resolution adopted on May 8, 2018,
which allows for rate increases every other year.

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City of American Fork’s finances for
all those with an interest in the City’s finances. Questions concerning any information provided in this
report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to: City of American Fork,
Finance Director, 51 E Main St, American Fork, UT 84003-2381, or call (801) 763-3000, or e-mail
amontoya@americanfork.gov.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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CITY OF AMERICAN FORK
Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2020

ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Restricted Cash
Receivables
Internal Balances
Inventories
Prepaid Expenses
Net Pension Asset
Capital Assets Net of Depreciation:
Land
Water Shares and Rights
Buildings and Structures
Improvements
Machinery and Equipment
Construction in Progress
Right of Way
Total Assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Charge on Refunding
Resources Related to Pensions

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources

LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities
Construction Bonds and Deposits
Accrued Interest Payable
Unearned Revenues
Long-term Liabilities

Due Within One Year

Due in More Than One Year

Total Liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Revenue - Property Taxes
Resources Related to Pensions

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted For:
Expendable
Debt Service
Capital Improvements-Impact Fees
Grants and Donations
Redevelopment
Nonexpendable - Perpetual Care
Unrestricted
Total Net Position

Governmental
Activities

Business-type
Activities

Total

$ 37,327,615
9,181,692
12,989,339
(785)

18,428
161,424
320,299

24,890,527

17,270,522
43,597,744
4,687,726
7,551,080
726,929

$ 26,037,801
1,332,347
785

777,614
32,979,223
714,310
78,330,499
225,322
2,393,156

S 63,365,416
9,181,692
14,321,686

18,428
161,424
320,299

25,668,141
32,979,223
17,984,832
121,928,243
4,913,048
9,944,236
726,929

158,722,540

142,791,057

301,513,597

- 2,316,842 2,316,842
1,450,234 149,638 1,599,872
1,450,234 2,466,480 3,916,714
2,557,680 1,047,730 3,605,410
3,024,263 328,340 3,352,603

48,405 247,635 296,040
713,745 - 713,745
2,109,433 1,770,912 3,880,345

16,039,420 36,142,942 52,182,362

24,492,946 39,537,559 64,030,505
7,805,656 - 7,805,656
1,751,398 173,283 1,924,681
9,557,054 173,283 9,730,337

93,810,257 80,253,639 174,063,896

647 - 647
16,223,179 5,389,489 21,612,668
496,414 - 496,414
4,897,580 - 4,897,580
831,058 - 831,058
9,718,768 19,903,567 29,622,335

$ 125,977,903

$ 105,546,695

$ 231,524,598

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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GOVERNMENTAL FUND
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

General Fund

4.1.a

The General Fund is used to account for resources traditionally associated with a government
which are not required legally or by sound financial management to be accounted for in
another fund.

Capital Projects Fund

The Capital Projects Fund is used to account for the construction of budgeted capital projects of
the City. Impact fees, intergovernmental grants, transfers from the General Fund, and interest
earnings are the principal sources of funding for these projects.

Debt Service Fund

This fund is used to accumulate resources for and payment of bond principal and interest for
governmental funds.

Nonmajor Funds

Nonmajor governmental funds are presented by fund type beginning on page 93.

MERICA
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CITY OF AMERICAN FORK
Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds

June 30, 2020

4.1.a

ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Restricted Cash

Receivables

Inventories

Prepaid Items

Due From Other Funds
Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities
Construction Bonds and Refunds
Unearned Revenue
Due to Other Funds
Total Liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable Revenue - Property Taxes

FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable
Inventories
Prepaid Items
Restricted
Debt Service
Bond Proceeds
Impact Fees
Boat Harbor Grant
PARC Tax Distribution
Redevelopment
Redevelopment-Affordable Housing
Perpetual Care
Committed - Cemetery Expansion
Assigned
Subsequent Year Appropriation
Capital Projects
Debt Service
Fitness Center
PARC Tax
Downtown Redevelopment
Celebration
Municipal Building Authority
Unassigned
Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of
Resources, and Fund Balances

Nonmajor Total
Capital Debt Governmental  Governmental

General Projects Servce Funds Funds
$ 6,060,811 S 24,358,108 S 352,235 S 5,946,076 S 36,717,230
- 9,036,174 647 - 9,036,821
9,718,728 882,157 756,078 1,632,376 12,989,339
- - - 18,428 18,428
1,613 - - - 1,613
- - - 426,954 426,954
S 15,781,152 $ 34,276,439 § 1,108,960 S 8,023,834 $ 59,190,385
$ 1,390,350 $ 287,927 $ 1,500 $ 472,136 $ 2,151,913
2,975,214 49,049 - - 3,024,263
- 426,954 - - 426,954
4,365,564 763,930 1,500 472,136 5,603,130
5,170,419 497,163 756,078 1,381,996 7,805,656
- - - 18,428 18,428
1,613 - - - 1,613
- - 647 - 647
- 9,036,174 - - 9,036,174
- 16,223,179 - - 16,223,179
- 7,655 - - 7,655
- 488,759 - - 488,759
- - - 3,269,512 3,269,512
- - - 1,628,068 1,628,068
- - - 831,058 831,058
- 224,756 - - 224,756
- 2,411,022 - - 2,411,022
- 4,623,800 - - 4,623,800
- - 350,735 - 350,735
- - - (18,428) (18,428)
- - - 333,994 333,994
- - - 103,757 103,757
- - - 2,422 2,422
- - - 891 891
6,243,556 - - - 6,243,556
6,245,169 33,015,346 351,382 6,169,702 45,781,599
$ 15,781,152 $§ 34,276,439 $ 1,108960 S 8,023,834 $ 59,190,385

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

American Fork City Comprehensive Annual Financial Report

Attachment: FY 2020 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (Presentation and acceptance of the June 30, 2020 financial audit)

Packet Pg. 63




CITY OF AMERICAN FORK

Reconciliation of The Governmental Funds Balance Sheet
to the Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2020

4.1.a

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position
are different because:

Total Fund Balances - Governmental Funds S 45,781,599

Capital assets used in governmental activites are not financial resources

and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. 93,432,551

Other items, including resources related to pensions, are not available to pay
for current period expenditures and, therefore, are either deferred or not
applicable to funds.

Internal service funds are used by the City to charge the costs of the fleet
operations to the individual funds. The assets and liabilities of the
internal service funds are included in the governmental activities
in the statement of net position.

A portion of the excess expenses incurred by the internal service funds
must be collected from the business-type activities.

Other items, including net pension liabilities, are not due and payable in the
current period and, therefore, are either deferred or not reported in the
funds.

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in
the current period, and accordingly, are not reported in the funds, but
rather as an expenditure when due. All liabilities, both current and

long-term, are reported in the statement of net position. (13,168,793)

1,770,533

2,896,768

(785)

(4,733,970)

Net Position of Governmental Activities S 125,977,903

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF AMERICAN FORK

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

4.1.a

REVENUES

Taxes
Licenses and Permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for Services
Fines and Forfeitures
Interest Earnings
Impact Fees
Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current
General Government
Community Services
Public Works
Public Safety
Recreation and Culture
Redevelopment and Public Improvement
Other
Capital Outlay
Debt Service
Principal
Interest and Fees
Total Expenditures
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Sale of Capital Assets
Capital Contributions
Issuance of Debt
Cost of Issuance of Debt
Transfers In
Transfers Out
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balances
Fund Balances - July 1
Fund Balances - June 30

Nonmajor Total
Capital Debt Governmental  Governmental

General Projects Service Funds Funds
$ 16,536,603 $ 1,450,457 S 784,125 S 2,486,014 $ 21,257,199
1,367,011 - - - 1,367,011
1,609,518 1,562,201 350,000 - 3,521,719
6,608,281 - - 1,538,455 8,146,736
353,424 - - - 353,424
89,884 425,297 13,877 127,373 656,431
- 5,943,233 - - 5,943,233
819,686 40,000 - 6,492 866,178
27,384,407 9,421,188 1,148,002 4,158,334 42,111,931
2,155,129 - - 11,800 2,166,929
2,759,080 - - 558,100 3,317,180
4,748,529 - - - 4,748,529
11,424,309 - - - 11,424,309
647,930 - - 2,764,365 3,412,295
- - - 627,498 627,498
423,586 - - - 423,586
- 6,947,007 - - 6,947,007
- - 1,125,000 - 1,125,000
- - 131,933 - 131,933
22,158,563 6,947,007 1,256,933 3,961,763 34,324,266
5,225,844 2,474,181 (108,931) 196,571 7,787,665
8,880 - - - 8,880
- 84,794 - - 84,794
- 8,665,261 - - 8,665,261
- (63,895) - - (63,895)
297,566 2,209,190 108,931 836,856 3,452,543
(2,279,234) (523,420) (941,411) (150,548) (3,894,613)
(1,972,788) 10,371,930 (832,480) 686,308 8,252,970
3,253,056 12,846,111 (941,411) 882,879 16,040,635
2,992,113 20,169,235 1,292,793 5,286,823 29,740,964
S 6,245,169 $ 33,015346 S 351,382 $ 6,169,702 S 45,781,599

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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4.1.a

CITY OF AMERICAN FORK

Reconciliation of The Statement of Revenues,

Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
To The Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

American Fork City Comprehensive Annual Financial Report

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities

are different because:

Net Change in Fund Balance - Total Governmental Funds S 16,040,635

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However,
in the statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated
over their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense. This is the
amount by which capital outlays exceeded depreciation in the current
period. 1,050,561

Capital assets donated by outside parties are not reported as revenues
in the funds. 1,907,694

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial
resources are not reported as revenues in the funds. (27,254)

The Statement of Activities reports net pension expense from the application
of GASB 68 which is not shown in the fund statements. 18,864

Bond proceeds and capital leases provide current financial resources to
governmental funds by issuing debt which increases long-term liabilities in the
statement of net position. Repayments of bond and capital lease principal are
expenditures in the governmental funds but reduce liabilities in the statement
of net position. (7,628,927)

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of
current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in
governmental funds. (92,444)

Internal service funds are used by the City to charge the costs of various
activities to individual funds. A portion of the internal service funds net
revenues is reported with governmental activities. 130,979

Change in net position of governmental activities $ 11,400,108

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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4.1.a

PROPRIETARY FUND
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Water Fund

The Water Fund is used to account for the activities of the City’s culinary and secondary water
systems.

Sewer Fund

The Sewer Fund is used to account for the activities of the City’s sewer system.

Fleet Fund

The Fleet Fund, an internal service fund, is used to account for repair and replacement of the
City’s vehicles.

Nonmajor Funds

Nonmajor proprietary funds are presented by fund type beginning on page 105.
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4.1.a

CITY OF AMERICAN FORK
Statement of Net Position
Proprietary Funds

June 30, 2020 e
©
Governmental %
Business-Type Activities-Enterprise Funds Activities - =
Water Sewer Nonmajor Internal Service 'S
Fund Fund Funds Total Funds S
ASSETS =
Current Assets ;
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 11,332,226 S 9,693,067 S 5,012,508 S 26,037,801 S 610,385 8
Accounts Receivable Net of Allowance 504,987 505,420 321,940 1,332,347 - N_
Prepaid Expenses - - - - 159,811 8
Due From Other Funds 2,583,962 - - 2,583,962 - GCJ
Total Current Assets 14,421,175 10,198,487 5,334,448 29,954,110 770,196 3
Capital Assets g
Land 762,054 - 15,560 777,614 - e
Water Shares and Rights 32,979,223 - - 32,979,223 - o
Buildings and Structures 1,473,429 18,198 368,960 1,860,587 - 8
Improvements - Other than Buildings 95,155,615 14,889,764 11,927,746 121,973,125 - %
Machinery and Equipment 616,105 42,907 166,198 825,210 10,457,436 g
Construction in Progress 2,168,690 143,818 80,648 2,393,156 1,582,194 o
Less Accumulated Depreciation (35,454,591) (5,829,754) (4,104,446) (45,388,791) (6,747,652) %
Capital Assets (Net of Accum Depreciation) 97,700,525 9,264,933 8,454,666 115,420,124 5,291,978 'g
Total Noncurrent Assets 97,700,525 9,264,933 8,454,666 115,420,124 5,291,978 ©
c
Total Assets 112,121,700 19,463,420 13,789,114 145,374,234 6,062,174 .g
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES *g
Deferred Charge on Refunding 2,316,842 - - 2,316,842 - 3
Resources Related to Pensions 70,958 21,928 56,752 149,638 - o
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 2,387,800 21,928 56,752 2,466,480 - a
LIABILITIES 5
Current Liabilities %
Accounts Payable 405,907 332,860 266,215 1,004,982 405,767 x
Accrued Liabilities 28,901 4,213 9,634 42,748 - ©
Interest Payable 247,635 - - 247,635 13,805 g
Deposits Payable 328,340 - - 328,340 - g
Compensated Absences 25,365 12,872 30,675 68,912 - iT
Bonds and Leases Payable 1,387,000 - - 1,702,000 537,242 =
Due to Other Funds - - 2,583,962 2,583,962 - g
Total Current Liabilities 2,423,148 349,945 2,890,486 5,978,579 956,814 é
Noncurrent Liabilities 0>->
Compensated Absences - 1,363 3,008 4,371 - 7
Bonds and Leases Payable 36,096,327 - - 35,781,327 2,208,592 GC)
Net Pension Liability 169,404 52,351 135,489 357,244 - g
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 36,265,731 53,714 138,497 36,142,942 2,208,592 o
Total Liabilities 38,688,879 403,659 3,028,983 42,121,521 3,165,406 g
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES g
Resources Related to Pensions 82,170 25,393 65,720 173,283 - §
NET POSITION >
Net Investment in Capital Assets 62,534,040 9,264,933 8,454,666 80,253,639 2,546,144 LL
Restricted for: =
Capital Improvements-Impact Fees 1,914,773 1,659,713 1,815,003 5,389,489 - GE)
Unrestricted 11,289,638 8,131,650 481,494 19,902,782 350,624 f;
Total Net Position $75,738,451  $19,056,296 $10,751,163  $105,545910 S 2,896,768 i
Adjustments to Reflect the Consolidation of Internal Service Fund Activities to Enterprise Funds 785 Z
Net Position of Business-Type Activies (Page 35) $ 105,546,695

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF AMERICAN FORK

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

4.1.a

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for Services
Miscellaneous

Total Operating Revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries and Wages
Supplies and Materials
Professional and Technical
Contracted Services
Interfund Charges
Depreciation
Other

Total Operating Expenses

Operating Income (Loss)

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Interest Earnings
Gain (Loss) on Sale of Capital Assets
Interest and Fees
Total Non-Operating Revenue (Expenses)

Income (Loss) Before Contributions
and Transfers

CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS
Capital Contributions
Impact Fees
Transfers In
Total Contributions and Transfers

Change in Net Position

Net Position - Beginning
Net Position - Ending

Adjustments to Reflect the Consolidation of Internal Service Fund Activities to Enterprise Funds
Change in Net Position of Business-Type Activies (Page 36)

=

=}

Governmental c_u

Business-Type Activities-Enterprise Funds Activities - -g

Water Sewer Nonmajor Internal Service %
Fund Fund Funds Total Funds <
o

I

&

S 8,012,048 $ 5,817,529 S 3,083,636 S 16,913,213 S 1,923,998 S
29,822 1,310 15,090 46,222 3,808 ™
8,041,870 5,818,839 3,098,726 16,959,435 1,927,806 GC’
=

S

2

639,719 217,470 492,451 1,349,640 - i
455,825 61,157 80,930 597,912 - g
279,697 126,783 308,377 714,857 108,630 g
- - 1,342,479 1,342,479 - I
736,756 538,858 422,786 1,698,400 44,100 %
2,231,216 374,608 330,239 2,936,063 892,420 3
1,295,559 3,119,429 80,581 4,495,569 693,662 _‘g
5,638,772 4,438,305 3,057,843 13,134,920 1,738,812 %
c

2,403,098 1,380,534 40,883 3,824,515 188,994 .g
©

c

o

209,898 157,326 80,104 447,328 3,716 g
- - - - 12,448 25y
(1,350,928) - - (1,350,928) (42,045) +
(1,141,030) 157,326 80,104 (903,600) (25,881) 8_
)

o

T

1,262,068 1,537,860 120,987 2,920,915 163,113 'S
s

=

LL

3,329,698 389,447 291,710 4,010,855 - =
2,159,628 443,545 516,420 3,119,593 - g
- - 318,214 318,214 123,856 c
5,489,326 832,992 1,126,344 7,448,662 123,856 i
>

6,751,394 2,370,852 1,247,331 10,369,577 286,969 %
D

68,987,057 16,685,444 9,503,832 2,609,799 s
$ 75,738,451 $ 19,056,296 S 10,751,163 S 2,896,768 e
155,989 S

$ 10,525,566 8

o

I3V

>

LL

1<

[}

£

<

5}

8

<

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF AMERICAN FORK
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds

For The Year Ended June 30, 2020

4.1.a

i)

Enterprise Funds Governmental %

Nonmajor Activities - ]

Water Sewer Proprietary Internal Service g

Fund Fund Funds Totals Funds g

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES =
Receipts from Customers and Users S 8,038,395 §$ 5,775,180 S 2,967,445 $16,781,020 S 3,808 8
Payments to Suppliers (2,773,684) (3,312,169) (1,701,322) (7,787,175) (534,552) 8
Interfund Services (677,060) (515,913) (298,919) (1,491,892) 1,879,899 o
Payments to Employees (693,727) (241,434) (496,218) (1,431,379) - 2
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 3,893,925 1,705,664 470,986 6,070,574 1,349,155 c
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES -3
Transfers In - - 318,214 318,214 123,856 g
Interfund Loans (24,696) - 24,696 - - e
Net Cash Used by Noncapital Financing Activities (24,696) - 342,909 318,214 123,856 g
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES o
Impact Fees 2,159,628 443,545 516,420 3,119,593 - %
Grants and Interlocal Contributions 3,329,697 389,447 291,710 4,010,855 - g
Purchase of Capital Assets (5,354,255) (533,265) (382,950)  (6,270,470) (2,707,338) Q
Principal Paid on Capital Debt (1,616,000) - - (1,616,000) (321,722) @
Interest and Fees Paid on Capital Debt (1,412,508) - - (1,412,508) (42,045) g
Capital Lease Proceeds - - - - 1,930,627 ©
Proceeds From Sale of Capital Assets - - - - 12,448 g
Net Cash Used by Capital and Related =
Financing Activities (2,893,438) 299,727 425,180 (2,168,530) (1,128,031) 1=

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 3
Payment of Loan Receivable 433,736 - - 433,736 - élj
Interest Income 190,284 157,326 80,105 427,715 3,717 ~
Net Cash Used by Investing Activities 624,020 157,326 80,105 861,451 3,717 put
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,599,811 2,162,717 1,319,180 5,081,708 348,697 8_
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Year 9,732,415 7,530,350 3,693,328 20,956,093 116,816 ,qx')
Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of Year $ 11,332,226 $ 9,693,067 S 5,012,508 $26,037,801 S 465,513 =
‘©

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash Provided %
(Used) by Operating Activities: L%
Operating Income (Loss) S 2,403,098 $ 1,380,534 S 40,883 $ 3,824,515 $ 188,994 =
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income to Net Cash g
Provided (Used) by Operating Activities: c
Depreciation Expense 2,231,216 374,608 330,239 2,936,063 892,420 25
(Increase) Decrease in Receivables 1,625 (20,714) (7,415) (26,504) - >
(Increase) Decrease in Prepaid Assets - - - - (107,004) 2
(Increase) Decrease in Deferred Outflows g
Related to Pensions 128,341 43,523 97,791 269,656 - o
Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable (751,635) (6,162) 110,846 (646,951) 374,745 g'
Increase (Decrease) in Accrued Liabilities 64,774 119 2,127 67,019 - o
Increase (Decrease) in Accrued Vacation and g
Sick Leave (49,127) (17,243) (5,421) (71,790) - S
Increase (Decrease) in Net Pension Liability (172,122) (59,808) (129,342) (361,272) - N
Increase (Decrease) in Deferred Inflows E
Related to Pensions 37,754 10,807 31,278 79,839 - o

Total Adjustments 1,490,826 325,130 430,103 2,246,059 1,160,161 qC)

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities S 3,803,924 $ 1,705,664 S 470,986 $ 6,070,574 S 1,349,155 =
Noncash Investing, Capital, and Financing Activities: f;
Contributions of Capital Assets From Developers S 3,135,568 $§ 389,447 S 291,710 $ 3,816,725 S - g

<

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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4.1.a

CITY OF AMERICAN FORK
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2020

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The City of American Fork’s (the City) financial statements are prepared in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles (GAAP). The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is
responsible for establishing GAAP for state and local governments through its pronouncements
(Statements and Interpretations). The more significant accounting policies established in GAAP and used
by the City are discussed below.

A.

American Fork City Comprehensive Annual Financial Report

Reporting Entity

The City of American Fork was incorporated under the laws of the Territory of Utah in 1853.
Under the present council-mayor form of government, administrative and legislative powers are
vested in a governing body, consisting of the Mayor and a five-member City Council. They are
assisted by a City Administrator. The City offers a wide range of services to its citizens: General
administrative services, public safety (police and fire), highways and streets, sanitation,
recreation and parks, public improvements, and planning and zoning. It also operates water,
sewer, storm drain, and sanitation utilities, and provides a digital service network.

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the City includes the financial statements for all
activities of the City based upon the criteria set forth in Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB) Statement 14, as amended. The primary criterion for including a board or an agency
in this report is financial accountability, which determines whether an entity is a component unit
of the financial reporting entity. Blended component units, although legally separate entities, are
in substance, part of the government’s operations, and so data from these units are combined
with data of the primary government. Discretely presented component units, if any, are reported
in a separate column in the combined financial statements to emphasize they are legally separate
from the City.

Blended Component Units

The Municipal Building Authority was created by the City and is governed by the City’s Mayor and
Council. The Authority uses the proceeds of its tax-exempt bonds to finance the construction or
acquisition of general capital assets for the City. The bonds are secured by a lease agreement
with the City and will be retired through lease payments from the City. The financial statements
of the Municipal Building Authority are included in the accompanying financial statements as a
blended component unit.

The Redevelopment Agency is governed by a separate governing board, who are the City’s Mayor
and Council. The financial statements of the Redevelopment Agency are included in the
accompanying financial statements as a blended component unit.

The Municipal Building Authority and Redevelopment Agency are considered blended
component units because the governing board in each case is the same governing board of the
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4.1.a

CITY OF AMERICAN FORK
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2020

City. In addition, the primary government has operational responsibility for both the Municipal
Building Authority and the Redevelopment Agency. There is also a direct financial benefit/burden
relationship between the Municipal Building Authority and the Redevelopment Agency with the
primary government.

Both the Municipal Building Authority and Redevelopment Agency are presented as special
revenue funds.

Complete financial statements for each of the individual component units may be obtained at
the entity’s administrative offices or online at www.afcity.org.

City of American Fork Municipal Building Authority
51 E Main St
American Fork, Utah 84003-2381

City of American Fork Redevelopment Agency
51 E Main St
American Fork, Utah 84003-2381

Other Component Units

The Fox Hollow Golf Course and Timpanogos Special Service District (TSSD) are excluded from
the accompanying financial statements because the entities are autonomous and have a self-
elected board of directors responsible for their operations and the hiring of management
personnel. The City pays TSSD for its share of services received. TSSD also receives payments
from other cities receiving these same services. Fox Hollow Golf Course was established in 1973
by American Fork City, Pleasant Grove City, and Lehi City. The City has representation on the
board. The City has guaranteed one third of a $3,315,000 bond.

B. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement
of activities) report information on all activities of the primary government and its component
units. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements.
Governmental activities, which are normally supported by taxes and intergovernmental
revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent
on fees and charges for support. Likewise, the primary government is reported separately from
certain legally separate component units, if any, for which the primary government is financially
accountable.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given
function or segment is offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly
identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to
customers or applicants who purchase or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges
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4.1.a

CITY OF AMERICAN FORK
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2020

provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to
meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and
other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general
revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and
internal service funds. Major individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise

funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund financial
statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is
incurred, regardless of the timing of the related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized in the
year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all
eligibility requirements have been met.

Governmental Funds

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized when
susceptible to accrual (i.e., when they are “measurable and available”). “Measurable” means the
amount of the transaction can be determined, and “available” means the amount is collectible
within the current period or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current
period. The government considers all revenues available if they are collected within 60 days after
the year end. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for
unmatured interest on general long-term debt as well as expenditures related to compensated
absences, claims, and judgments, which are recorded only when payment is due.

Property taxes, sales taxes, franchise taxes, and earned but unreimbursed state and federal
grants associated with the current fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and
so have been recognized as revenue of the current fiscal period. All other revenue items are
considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received by the government.

The government reports the following major governmental funds:

e The General Fund is the general operating fund of the City. It is used to account for all financial
resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

e The Capital Projects Fund accounts for financial resources to be used for the acquisition or
construction of major capital facilities (other than those financed by the proprietary funds).

e The Debt Service Fund is used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and the
payment of, long-term debt principal, interest, and related costs. While this fund does not
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CITY OF AMERICAN FORK
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2020

meet the financial tests to be classified as a major fund, the City elects to report this fund as
a major fund due to its importance to financial statement users.

Additionally, the City reports the following governmental fund types:

e Special Revenue Funds are used to account for proceeds of specific revenue sources (other
than sources for major capital projects) that are legally restricted to expenditures for
specified purposes.

Proprietary Funds

The focus of proprietary fund measurement is upon the determination of net income, changes in
net position, financial position, and cash flows. The generally accepted accounting principles
applicable are those similar to businesses in the private sector. The City’s proprietary funds
consist of both enterprise and internal service funds.

Enterprise funds are required to be used to account for operations for which a fee is charged to
external users for goods or services and the activity is (a) financed with debt that is solely secured
by a pledge of the net revenues, (b) has third party requirements that the cost of providing
services, including capital costs, be recovered with fees and charges or (c) establishes fees and
charges based on a pricing policy designed to recover similar costs. The government reports the
following major Enterprise funds:

e The Water Fund accounts for the operations of the City’s culinary and secondary water utility
services.
e The Sewer Fund accounts for the operations of the City’s sewer utility.

Activities of these funds include administration, operations, and maintenance of the water and
sewer systems, which include billing and collection activities. The fund also accounts for the
accumulation of resources for, and the payment of, long-term debt and capital improvements.
The majority of costs are financed through charges to utility customers.

Internal service funds are used to account for the City’s fleet maintenance and information
technology services. Internal Service Funds account for the financing of goods or services
provided by one department or agency to other departments or agencies of the City on a cost
reimbursement basis. The City operates a fleet internal service fund, which is used to account for
the acquisition and maintenance of City vehicles and an information technology internal service
fund, which is used to account for the acquisition and maintenance of all hardware, software and
technology contract services.

The internal service fund activities have been combined into a single aggregated presentation in
the proprietary fund financial statements. Individual fund data for the internal service funds are
provided with the combining data elsewhere in this report.
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CITY OF AMERICAN FORK
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2020

As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide
financial statements. Exceptions to this general rule are payments to the general fund by the
various enterprise funds for providing administrative services for such funds. Elimination of these
charges would distort the direct costs and program revenue reported for the various functions
concerned.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and

delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations.

D. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources, and Net Position/Fund Balance

1. Deposits and Investments

The City’s cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and
investments. Investments consist of amounts deposited with Utah Public Treasurers’ Investment
Fund. Investments are stated at fair value.

2. Receivables and Payables

Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding
at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as either “due to or due from other funds”. Legally
authorized transfers are treated as interfund transfers and are included in the results of
operations in both governmental and proprietary funds.

3. Inventories and Prepaid Items

All inventories are valued at cost using the first-in/first-out (FIFO) method. Inventories of
governmental funds are recorded as expenditures when consumed rather than when purchased
(consumption method). Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future
accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid items in both government-wide and fund
financial statements. Prepaid expenditures are recorded as expenditures when purchased using
the purchases method.

4, Restricted Assets/Restricted Net Position

Restricted assets are comprised of cash restricted for future payments of principal and interest
on debt service. It is the policy of the City to use restricted assets first and then use unrestricted
assets. Restricted net position represents resources that are subject to external restrictions on
how they may be used. Of the $27,838,367 reported as restricted net position in the statement
of net position, $27,341,306 is restricted due to enabling legislation.
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5. Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads,
bridges, sidewalks, and similar items) are reported in the applicable governmental or business-
type activities columns in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined
by the government as assets with an initial individual cost of more than $5,000 (amount not
rounded) and an estimated useful life in excess of two years. Such assets are recorded at
historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets,
donated works of art (and similar items), and capital assets received in a service concession
arrangement are reported at acquisition value. The costs of normal maintenance and repairs
that do not add to the functionality of the asset or materially extend assets’ lives are not
capitalized.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed.
Interest incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is
included as part of the capitalized cost of the assets constructed. In the governmental funds,
$6,947,007 has been capitalized during the construction period on property, plant, and
equipment.

Property, plant, and equipment of the primary government are depreciated using the straight
line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Assets Years
Buildings and structures 10-50
Infrastructure 40-60
Improvements other than buildings 5-50
Machinery and equipment 5-20
Furniture and fixtures 5-20
6. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred outflows of resources. This financial statement element represents a consumption of
net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of
resources (expense/expenditure) until then. The City has two items that qualify for reporting in
this category — a deferred charge on refunding and resources related to pensions, both of which
are reported in the government-wide statement of net position. A deferred charge on refunding
results from the difference in the carrying value of refunded debt and its reacquisition price. This
amount is deferred and amortized over the shorter of the life of the refunded or refunding debt.
Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions results from the difference between
projected and actual earnings on pension plan investments.
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In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate
section for deferred inflows of resources. This financial statement element represents an
acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an
inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The City has one item, deferred revenue, which
qualifies for reporting in this category on both the government-wide statement of net position
and governmental funds balance sheet. Both statements report unavailable revenue due to
property taxes. In addition, the statement of net position reports resources related to pensions,
which relates to the differences between expected and actual experience along with changes in
assumptions for the City’s pensions. These amounts are deferred and recognized as an inflow of
resources in the period the amounts become available.

7. Compensated Absences

City employees accrue earned vacation and sick leave throughout the year. They are allowed to
carry forward into the next calendar year accrued vacation up to 240 hours and all sick leave but
are encouraged to take their vacation leave within the calendar year in which it is earned. Upon
termination of employment, an employee will be compensated for all unused vacation leave and
may be compensated for 50 percent of sick leave hours in excess of 320 hours, up to a maximum
of 160 hours.

All vacation pay is accrued when incurred in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial
statements. A liability for these amounts is reported in governmental funds only if they have
matured, for example, as a result of employee resignations and retirements. For governmental
funds, any compensated absence liability has typically been liquidated by the General Fund.

8. Taxes

In Utah, county governments assess, levy, collect and disburse two principal types of tax: (1)
personal, which is assessed on business assets other than real estate, and (2) tax on real estate
and improvements. Business personal property and real estate taxes attach as an enforceable
lien on property as of January 1. Taxes are levied on all business personal property on January
1%, and real estate and improvement taxes are levied on January 1% and are payable by
November 30%™. The real property taxes that are due in November are reported as a receivable
from property taxes on the financial statements. Because these taxes are not considered
available to liquidate liabilities of the current period, they are offset by a deferred inflow.

The City Council is authorized by state statute to levy a tax against all real and personal property
located within its boundaries. The Council must set a tax rate by June 22" each year. The County
Treasurer, acting as a tax collector, must settle and disburse all tax collections to all taxing entities
on a routine basis.
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9. Long-Term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund types in the fund financial
statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the
applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement
of net position. Bond premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the
bonds. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and
discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt
issued is reported as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported
as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses.
Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the accrual debt proceeds received, are reported
as debt service expenditures.

10. Fund Balance

The City implemented GASB Statement 54, Fund Balance Reporting in Governmental Fund Types
Definitions, in fiscal year 2011. The governmental fund financial statements present fund balances
based on a hierarchy that shows, from highest to lowest, the level or form of constraints on fund
balance resources and the extent to which the City is bound to honor them. The City first determines
and reports nonspendable balances, then restricted, then committed, and so forth. Fund balance
classifications are summarized as follows:

* Nonspendable. This category includes fund balance amounts that cannot be spent because
they are either a) not in spendable form or b) legally or contractually required to be maintained
intact. Fund balance amounts related to inventories and prepaid expenditures are classified
as nonspendable.

* Restricted. This category includes net fund resources that are subject to external constraints
that have been placed on the use of the resources either a) imposed by creditors (such as
through a debt covenant), grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments
or b) imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. Restricted
fund balance amounts include debt service, bond proceeds, impact fees, grant revenue,
state liquor fund allotment, donations, Redevelopment Agency fund balance, and
perpetual care.

* Committed. This category includes amounts that can only be used for specific purposes
established by formal action (resolution) of the City Council. Fund balance commitments can
only be removed or changed by the same type of action of the City Council. Per Resolution
2014-11-42R, 5400 of each cemetery lot sale is to be used for expansion of the City’s cemetery.
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for other governmental funds. The City has assigned debt service, municipal building authority,
PARC tax, downtown redevelopment, celebration, and capital projects. Currently, there is no
body or official authorized to assign amounts for a specific purpose.

* Unassigned. Residual balances in the general fund are classified as unassigned. The General
Fund is the only fund that reports a positive unassigned fund balance. However, in
governmental funds other than the General Fund, if expenditures incurred for specific purposes
exceed the amounts that are restricted, committed, or assigned, it may be necessary to report
a negative unassigned fund balance in that fund.

When an expenditure is incurred for which amounts from both restricted and unrestricted
resources could be used, it is the City’s policy to use restricted resources first before using
unrestricted resources. Further, when components of unrestricted fund balance can be used for
the same purpose, committed fund balance is depleted first, then assigned, and finally
unassigned.

On May 28, 2019, the City Council passed a fund balance policy for the General Fund. The policy
follows state code § 10-6-116(4) in regards to minimum fund balance required. Utah Code
requires a minimum fund balance of 5 percent of total revenues to be maintained in the General
Fund. For fiscal year 2020, this amount is $1,369,220.

11. Use of Estimates

Presenting financial statements in conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
requires management to make certain estimates concerning assets, liabilities, revenues, and
expenses. Actual results may vary from these estimates.

12. Pensions

For purposes of measuring net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary
net position of the Utah Retirement Systems Pension Plan (URS) and additions to/deductions
from URS’ fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported
by URS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are
recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are
reported at fair value.

NOTE 2 — RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANICAL STATEMENTS

A. Explanation of Certain Differences Between the Governmental Fund Balance Sheet and the
Government-Wide Statement of Net Position
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The governmental fund balance sheet includes a reconciliation between total fund balances —
governmental funds and net position — governmental activities as reported in the government-
wide statement of net position.

This difference primarily results from the long-term economic focus of the statement of net
position versus the current financial resources focus of the governmental fund balance sheets.

One element of that reconciliation explains that “capital assets used in governmental activities
are not financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds.” The details of this
$93,432,551 adjustment is as follows:

Cost of capital assets $132,133,986
Accumulated depreciation (_38,701,435)
Net adjustment to increase fund balance — total governmental
funds to arrive at net position - governmental activities S 93,432,551

Another element of the reconciliation explains that “other items, including resources related to
pensions, are not available to pay for current period expenditures and, therefore, are either
deferred or not applicable to the funds.” The details of the $1,770,533 difference are as follows:

Resources related to pensions S 1,450,234
Net pension asset 320,299
Net adjustment to increase fund balance — total governmental
funds to arrive at net position - governmental activities S 1,770,533

Another element of the reconciliation states “other items, including net pension liabilities, are
not due and payable in the current period and, therefore, are either deferred or not reported in
the funds.” The details of the $799,767 difference is as follows:

Net pension liability S 2,982,572
Deferred inflows related to pensions 1,751,398
Net adjustment to reduce fund balance — total governmental
funds to arrive at net position — governmental activities S 4,733,970

The final element of the reconciliation states that “long term liabilities, including bonds payable,
are not due and payable in the current period, and accordingly, are not reported in the funds,
but rather as an expenditure when due. All liabilities, both current and long-term, are reported
in the statement of net position.” The details of this $18,702,530 difference is as follows:
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Compensated absences 925,448
Net adjustment to reduce fund balance — total governmental
funds to arrive at net position — governmental activities S 13,168,792

Explanation of Certain Differences Between the Governmental Fund Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances and the Government-Wide Statement of Activities

The governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances
includes a reconciliation between net change in fund balance — total governmental funds and
change in net position of governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement
of activities.

One element of that reconciliation explains that “Governmental funds report capital outlays as
expenditures. However, in the statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over
their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense.”

Capital outlay S 5,708,134
Depreciation expense (04,662,756)

Net adjustment to reduce net changes in fund balances-
total governmental funds to arrive at changes in net position
of governmental activities S 1,045,378

Another element of that reconciliation states that revenues in the statement of activities that do
not provide current financial resources are not reported as revenues and are shown as a deferred
inflow of resources in the funds. However, in the statement of activities revenue is reported when
earned. Thus, the change is to reduce revenue by the amount of the previously reported revenue
and to increase revenue by the amount of accrued revenue.

Delinquent property taxes S 27,254
Another element of that reconciliation states that “The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds,
leases) provides current financial resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the
principal of long-term debt consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds.”
Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net position. Also, governmental funds report
the effect of premiums, discounts, and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these
amounts are deferred and amortized in the statement of activities.

Bond and lease principal payments $(1,125,000)
Deferred charge on refunding 5,183
Proceeds from issuance of new debt 8,665,261
Cost of issuing new debt 83,484

Net adjustments to decrease net changes in fund balances-total
governmental funds to arrive at changes in net position of
governmental activities $ 7,628,928
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NOTE 3 — BUDGETS AND BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING

Another element of that reconciliation states, “Some expenses reported in the statement of
activities do not require the use of current financial resources and therefore are not reported as
expenditures in governmental funds.”

Compensated absences S 73,288
Accrued interest
Net adjustment to decrease net changes in fund balances— total
governmental funds to arrive at changes in net position of
governmental activities S 92,444

19,156

Annual budgets are prepared and adopted in accordance with the Uniform Fiscal Procedures Act
adopted by the state of Utah. Once a budget has been adopted, it remains in effect until it has been
formally revised. Furthermore, in accordance with state law, all appropriations lapse at the end of the
budget year. If any obligations are contracted for and are in excess of the adopted budget, they are not
a valid or enforceable claim against the City. Budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally
accepted accounting principles. All funds of the City have legally adopted budgets.

The City adheres to the following procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial
statements:
A. On or before the first regularly scheduled meeting of the City Council in May, the City

Administrator submits a proposed operating budget. The operating budget includes proposed
expenditures and the means of financing them.

A public hearing is held at which time the taxpayers’ comments are heard. Notice of the hearing
is given at least seven days prior to the hearing. Copies of the proposed budget are made
available for public inspection ten days prior to the public hearing.

On or before June 30™, a final balanced budget must be adopted through passage of a resolution
for the subsequent fiscal year beginning July 15t

Control of budgeted expenditures is exercised, under state law, at the departmental level. The
Finance Director has the authority to transfer budget appropriations between line items within
any department of any budgetary fund. The City Council, by resolution, has the authority to
transfer budget appropriations between the individual departments of any budgetary fund.

Budget appropriations for any department may be reduced by resolution.
A public hearing, as required in B.) above, must be held to increase the total appropriations of

any one governmental fund type; however, after the original public hearing, operating and capital
budgets of proprietary fund types may be increased by resolution without an additional hearing.
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G. Encumbrances lapse at year end. Encumbered amounts do not carry over to the following year
and are subject to re-appropriation. Therefore, no encumbrances are presented in the financial
statements.

During the budget year, the City modified the budget on several occasions using the above procedures.

NOTE 4 — CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS

The City maintains a cash and investment pool that is available for use by all funds. At June 30, 2020, the
City’s cash balance consisted of the following:
Total Cash from
All Fund Types
Cash S 12,122,637
Cash Equivalents and Investments 60,279,600
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents S 72,402,237

While the City’s carrying amount of deposits was $72,402,237 the balance in the City’s bank account and
cash on hand was $72,454,984, with the difference being due to outstanding checks and deposits in

transit.

A. Custodial Credit Risk

Deposits
Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the City’s deposits

may not be recovered. The City’s policy for managing custodial credit risk is to adhere to the Utah
Money Management Act. The Act requires all deposits of the City to be in a qualified depository,
defined as any financial institution whose deposits are insured by an agency of the federal
government and which has been certified by the Commissioner of Financial Institutions as
meeting the requirements of the Act and adhering to the rules of the Utah Money Management
Council. As of June 30, 2020, the deposits are as follows:

Custodial Credit Balance
Depository Account Risk June 30, 2020
Checking and Cash on Hand  Insured 5 992,899
Checking and Cash on Hand Uninsured 11,129,738
Total Deposits 512,122,637

Investments

The Money Management Act defines the types of securities authorized as appropriate
investments and the conditions for making investment transactions. Investment transactions
may be conducted only through qualified depositories, certified dealers, or directly with issuers
of investment securities. The Act authorizes investments in both negotiable and nonnegotiable
deposits of qualified depositories and permitted negotiable depositories; repurchase and reverse
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repurchase agreements; commercial paper that is classified as “first tier” by two nationally
recognized statistical rating organizations, one of which must be Moody’s Investors Services or
Standard & Poor’s; bankers’ acceptances; obligations of the United States Treasury including bills,
notes, and bonds; obligations, other than mortgage derivative products, issued by U.S.
government sponsored enterprises (U.S. Agencies) such as the Federal Home Loan Bank System,
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (Freddie Mac), Federal National Mortgage Association
(Fannie Mae), and Student Loan Marketing Association (Sallie Mae); bonds, notes, and other
evidence of indebtedness of political subdivisions of the State; fixed rate corporate obligations
and variable rate securities rate “A” or higher, or the equivalent of “A” or higher, by two
nationally recognized statistical rating organizations; and shares or certificates in a money market
mutual fund as defined in the Act and the Utah State Public Treasurer’s Investment Fund.

B. Credit Risk

The City is authorized to invest in the Utah Public Treasurer’s Investment Fund (PTIF), an external
pooled investment fund managed by the Utah State Treasurer and subject to the Act and Council
requirements. The PTIF is not registered with the SEC as an investment company, and deposits in
the PTIF are not insured or otherwise guaranteed by the state of Utah. The PTIF operates and
reports to participants on an amortized cost basis. The income, gains, and losses, net of
administration fees, of the PTIF are allocated based upon the participants’ average daily balances.
There is no minimum balance requirement and no limit on the number of pool account
transactions. The following are the City’s investments as of June 30, 2020:

Investment Maturities (in Years)

Less More Than Quality
Investments Than 1 1-5 6-10 10 Ratings
Utah Public Treasurer's
Investment Fund S 60,279,600 - - - Unrated

C. Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates of debt investments will adversely affect
the fair value of the investment. The City manages its exposure to declines in fair value by
adhering to the Money Management Act. The Act requires that the remaining term to maturity
of the investments may not exceed the period of availability of the funds to be invested. The Act
further limits the remaining term to maturity of commercial paper to 270 days and fixed rate
negotiable deposits and corporate obligations to 365 days or less. Maturities of the City’s
investments are noted above.

D. Concentration of Credit Risk
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Management Council. The Council’s rule 17 limits investments in a single issuer of commercial
paper and corporate obligations to between 5 and 10 percent depending on the total dollar
amount held in the City’s portfolio at the time of purchase.

Of the City’s investments, there is not more than 4.32 percent of the portfolio in one issuer.
Therefore, the City is within the limits established by the Council’s rule 17.

E. Fair Value of Investments

The City measures and records its investments using fair value measurement guidelines
established by generally accepted accounting principles. These guidelines recognize a three-
tiered fair value hierarchy as follows:

o Level 1: Quoted prices for identical investments in active markets;
e Level 2: Observable inputs other than quoted market prices; and,
e Level 3: Unobservable inputs.

As of June 30, 2020, the City had the following recurring fair value measurements:
e Utah Public Treasurer’s Investment Fund totaling $60,279,600 valued using the
application of the June 30, 2020, fair value factor, as calculated by the Utah State

Treasurer, to the City’s average daily balance in the fund (Level 2 inputs).

NOTE 5 — RECEIVABLES

Receivables as of year-end for the government’s individual major funds and nonmajor funds in the
aggregate, including the applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts, are as follows:

Governmental Activities

Capital Debt Nonmajor

General Projects Service Governmental
Receivables:
Accounts 5 3,587,068 5 210,474 5 - 5
Property Tax 4,117,148 497,163 - 1,381,996
Other Taxes 2,084,153 174,520 756,078 230,754
Other - - - 19,626
Less: Allowance for

Uncollectible Accounts (69,640) -

$ 9,718,728 S 882,157 $ 756,078 $ 1,632,376
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Business-type Activities

Monmajor
Water Sewer Proprietary Total
Receivables:
Accounts 5 525,676 5 518,300 5 324,636 $ 5,166,153
Property Tax - £,996,307
Other Taxes - 3,245,505
Other - 19,626
Less: Allowance for
Uncollectible Accounts (20,688) (12,880) (2,696) (105,905)
5 504,987 5 505,420 5 321,940 $ 14,321,686

NOTE 6 — INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES, AND TRANSFERS

Interfund Transfers:

The City transferred monies between funds to support debt service payments in the debt service fund
and fleet fund, and to support related capital expenditures in the capital projects fund. In addition,
transfers were completed to support general operations in the fitness center fund and broadband fund.

Transfer Out

Capital Debt Nonmajor
General Projects Service Governmental Total

Transfer In:

General S - S - S - $ 297,566 297,566

Capital Projects 1,124,164 - 941,411 143,615 2,209,190

Debt Service - - - 108,932 108,932

Nonmajor Govermental 836,856 - - - 836,856

Monmajor Proprietary 318,214 - - - 318,214

Internal Service 123,856 - - 123,856
Total Transfer Qut 52,279,234 $ 123,856 5941,411 5 550,113 53,894,613

Interfund Receivables / Payables

During fiscal year 2014, the capital projects fund acquired a note with the cemetery perpetual care fund
in the amount of $530,000 to expand the current cemetery. The note will be repaid with $250 per lot
sale. Payments are estimated to continue through fiscal year 2037. The note carries an interest rate of

2.35 percent. The current balance on the loan is $426,954.

Due to a negative cash balance, the water fund loaned the broadband fund $2,583,962 to address this
shortfall at the end of fiscal year 2020. Funds will be repaid when the broadband fund is in a positive

cash position.
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NOTE 7 — CAPITAL ASSETS

Governmental Activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land
Land Right of Way
Construction in Progress
Total capital assets not being depreciated
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings
Improvements
Machinery and Equipment
Total capital assets being depreciated
Less accumulated depreciation for;
Buildings
Improvements
Machinery and Equipment
Total accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net
Governmental activities capital assets, net

Business-Type Activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in Progress
Water Shares
Total capital assets not being depreciated
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings
Improvements
Machinery and Equipment
Total capital assets being depreciated
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings
Improvements
Machinery and Equipment
Total accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net
Business-type activities capital assets, net
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Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

Governmental Activities:

General Government 5 7,640
Public Works 4,038,526
Public 5afety 59,830
Community Services 323,613
Recreation 233,146

Capital assets held by the government's internal service
funds are charged to the various functions based on
their usage of the assets 892,420
Total Depreciation Expense - Governmental Activities 5 5,555,175

Business-Type Activities:

Water 5 2,231,216
Sewer 374,608
Storm Drain 281,806
Broadband 48,433
Total Depreciation Expense - Business-Type Activities 2,936,063
Total Depreciation Expense 5 8,491,238

NOTE 8 - LEASE COMMITMENTS

The City entered into a capital lease agreement in November 2016 to purchase two ambulances for the
fire department. The City financed the purchase over 72 months with a stated interest rate of 1.60
percent and annual payments of $103,245 through June 2022.

The City entered into a capital lease agreement in October 2014 to purchase a dump truck and two
vehicles for public works. The City financed the purchase over 60 months with a stated interest rate of
1.52 percent and with annual payments of $60,706 through October 2017, decreasing to annual
payments of $39,940 and $41,638, respectively, through October 2019.

During fiscal year 2018 the City entered into a capital lease agreement for the purchase of a fire engine.
The purchase was financed over 60 months with a stated interest rate of 2.27 percent and annual
payments of $145,680 through September 2022.

During fiscal year 2019 the City entered into a capital lease agreement for the purchase of six police
vehicles. The City financed the purchase over 60 months with a stated interest rate of 3.13 percent and
annual payments of $52,807 through July 2023.

Amortization of capital assets purchased under capital leases is included in depreciation. The assets
acquired through capital leases are as follows:
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Governmental

Asset Activities
Machinery & Equipment S 3,647,805
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (442,975)
Total $ 3,204,830

The present value of future minimum capital lease payments under these leases as of June 30, 2020:

Governmental
Fiscal Year Amount
2021 591,911
2022 591,911
2023 488,666
2024 342,986
2025 290,180
2026 290,180
2027 244,763
2028 88,468
Total Minimum Lease Payments 2,929,065
Less: Amounts Representing Interest (181,064)
Present Value of Minimum Lease Payments 5 2,748,001

At June 30, 2020, the City’s capital leases payable balance consisted of the following:

Capital Leases Payable

Governmental
Capital Leases Payable 5 2,748,001
Current Portion Capital Leases Payable (537,243)
Long-Term Capital Leases Payable 5 2,210,758

NOTE 9 - LONG-TERM DEBT

Bonds and notes payable at June 30, 2020, are comprised of the following:

General Obligation Bonds:
2011 General Obligation Refunding Bonds:
$1,650,000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds
due in annual principal and interest payments through
June 2021 — Interest is at a variable interest rate ranging from
0.067% to 3.00%. Proceeds were used to build and equip the
City’s fire station. S 175,000
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2015 General Obligation Refunding Bonds:

$7,020,000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds due in annual
principal and semi-annual interest payments through May

2035 — Interest is at a varying rate of 2.25% to 4.00%. Proceeds
were used to advance refund the 2007 GO Bonds, which partially
financed the City’s pressurized irrigation system.

2016 General Obligation Refunding Bonds:

$30,285,000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds due in annual
Principal and semi-annual interest payments through May

2035 — Interest is at a varying rate of 2.00% to 5.00%. Proceeds
were used to advance refund the 2008 GO Bonds, which partially
financed the City’s pressurized irrigation system.

2020 General Obligation Bonds:

$8,035,000 General Obligation Bonds due in annual principal
and semi-annual interest payments through May 2038 —
Interest is at 1.55%. Interest is at a varying rate of 2.25% to
5.00%. Proceeds are used to construct a fire station.

General Obligation Bonds

6,075,000

27,785,000

8,035,000

Governmental Business-Type Activities

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Principal Interest
2021 865,000 365,257 1,665,000 1,321,288
2022 705,000 347,254 1,745,000 1,241,188
2023 732,000 319,452 1,825,000 1,157,238
2024 760,000 290,535 1,900,000 1,069,388
2025 790,000 260,473 2,000,000 977,888
2026-2030 3,433,000 878,099 11,285,000 3,632,238
2031-2035 2,540,000 358,190 13,440,000 1,481,575

2036-2038 1,670,000 75,713 - -
Total $ 11,495,000 S 2,894,974 $ 33,860,000 $ 10,880,803

The general obligation bonds are direct obligations issued on a pledge of the general taxing power
for the payment of the debt obligations of the City. The general revenues of the City are
contingently liable for the general obligation bonds that are currently outstanding and recorded
as obligations of the business-type activities. The full faith and credit of the City is pledged to
redeem these bonds if revenues from the proprietary funds are insufficient to meet the
obligations. There are a number of covenants and restrictions contained in the revenue bonds.
The City was in compliance with all significant covenants and restrictions related to the bonds at
June 30, 2020.
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Prior Year Advanced Refundings

In fiscal year 2016 the City issued $30,285,000 in general obligation bonds with an interest rate
of 3.00 to 5.00 percent. The proceeds were used to advance refund $31,200,000 of the
outstanding 2008 general obligation bonds with interest rates ranging from 2.00 to 4.00 percent.
The net proceeds of $34,397,083 (after payment of $122,640 in issuance costs) were deposited
in an irrevocable trust with an escrow agent to provide funds for future debt service payments
on the refunded bonds. As a result, the 2008 general obligation bonds are partially considered
defeased and the liability for those bonds have been removed from the statement of net position.

The reacquisition price exceeded the net carrying amount of the old debt by $2,435,384. This
amount is being netted against the new debt and amortized over the remaining life of the
refunding debt. The City advance refunded the 2008 general obligation bonds to reduce its total
debt service payments over twenty years by $4,884,058 and to obtain an economic gain (i.e., the
difference between the present values of the debt service payments on the old and new debt) of
$3,818,377. As of June 30, 2020, the outstanding principal balance of the defeased debt was
$27,785,000.

In fiscal year 2015 the City issued $7,020,000 in general obligation bonds with an interest rate of
2.74 percent. The proceeds were used to advance refund $6,745,000 of the outstanding 2007
general obligation bonds, with interest rates ranging from 2.00 percent to 4.00 percent. The net
proceeds of $7,270,728 (after payment of $79,748 in issuance costs and $46,112 in underwriter
fees) were deposited in an irrevocable trust with an escrow agent to provide funds for the future
debt service payment on the refunded bonds. As a result, the 2007 general obligation bonds are
considered defeased and the liability for those bonds has been removed from the statement of
net position.

The reacquisition price exceeded the net carrying amount of the old debt by $376,588. This
amount is being netted against the new debt and amortized over the remaining life of the
refunding debt. The government advance refunded the 2007 general obligation bonds to reduce
its total debt service payments over twenty years by $244,434 and to obtain an economic gain
(i.e., the difference between the present values of the debt service payments on the old and new
debt) of $957,571. As of June 30, 2020, the outstanding principal balance of the defeased debt
was $6,075,000.

Revenue Bonds:
2012 Water Revenue Bonds:
$800,000 Water Revenue Bonds due in annual principal and
interest payments through January 2033 — Interest
is at varying rates from 2.69 to 5.60%. Proceeds were used to
improve the City’s water infrastructure. 567,000
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2018 Sales Tax Revenue and Refunding Bonds:
$4,000,000 Sales Tax Revenue and Refunding Bonds due in annual
Principal and semi-annual interest payments through May 2028 —
Interest is at a rate of 3.04%. Proceeds will be used expand Art Dye

park and to refinance the 2012 Sales Tax Revenue Bonds.

Revenue Bonds

3,285,000

Governmental Business-Type Activities
Fiscal Year Principal Interest Principal Interest
2021 370,000 99,864 37,000 15,252
2022 380,000 88,616 38,000 14,257
2023 392,000 77,064 39,000 13,235
2024 405,000 65,147 40,000 12,186
2025 415,000 52,835 41,000 11,110
2026-2030 1,323,000 81,259 223,000 38,380
2031-2033 - - 149,000 8,097
Total $ 3,285,000 5 464,786 5 567,000 5 112,523

The City has pledged culinary water revenue for the 2012 Water Revenue Bonds. The remaining principal
and interest payments total $679,523. For the current year, principal and interest paid and water charges
for services were $52,221 and $3,890,915, respectively. It is estimated that annual principal and interest
payments on the bonds will require an average of 1.3 percent of pledged revenues. In the event of
default, the bondholder (the state of Utah) may require the City to pay an interest penalty equal to 18
percent per annum of the outstanding principal amount and interest on the bonds, with interest accruing

until payment by the City.

The future annual requirements for all outstanding bond obligations as of June 30, 2020, are as follows:

All Bonds and Notes

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total
2021 2,937,000 1,801,661 4,738,661
2022 2,868,000 1,691,315 4,559,315
2023 2,988,000 1,566,989 4,554,989
2024 3,105,000 1,437,256 4,542,256
2025 3,246,000 1,302,306 4,548,306

2026-2030 16,264,000 4,629,982 20,893,982

2031-2035 16,129,000 1,847,862 17,976,862

2036-2038 1,670,000 75,713 1,745,713
Total S 49,207,000 $ 14,353,084 S 63,560,084
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CITY OF AMERICAN FORK
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2020

4.1.a

Changes in Long-Term Debt

Governmental Activities:

Bonds Payable:
2011 General Obligation Refunding Bonds
2014 General Obligation Refunding Bonds
2018 Sales Tax Revenue and Refunding Bonds
2020 General Obligation Bonds

Total Bonds Payable

Net Pension Liability

Capital Leases

Compensated Absences

Total Governmental Long-Term Obligations

Business-Type Activities:
Bonds Payable:
2012 Water Revenue Bonds
2015 General Obligation Bonds
2016 General Obligation Bonds
Unamortized Bond Premium
Total Bonds Payable
Net Pension Liability
Compensated Absences
Total Business-Type Long-Term Obligations

Total Government-Wide Long-Term Obligations

NOTE 10 - RETIREMENT PLAN

Plan Description. Eligible plan participants are provided with pensions through the Utah Retirement

July 1, June 30, Due in
2019 Additions Reductions 2020 One Year
350,000 - 175,000 175,000 175,000
590,000 - 590,000 - -
3,645,000 - 360,000 3,285,000 370,000
- 8,035,000 - 8,035,000 320,000
4,585,000 8,035,000 1,125,000 11,495,000 265,000
5,533,737 - 2,551,165 2,982,572 -
1,136,929 2,079,500 470,596 2,745,833 537,243
852,159 707,645 634,356 925,448 707,190
12,107,825 10,822,145 4,781,117 18,148,853 2,109,433
603,000 - 36,000 567,000 37,000
6,375,000 - 300,000 6,075,000 315,000
29,065,000 - 1,280,000 27,785,000 1,350,000
3,260,082 - 203,755 3,056,327 -
39,303,082 - 1,819,755 37,483,327 1,702,000
718,517 - 361,273 357,244 -
145,074 2,254 74,045 73,283 68,913
40,166,673 2,254 2,255,073 37,913,854 1,770,913
552,274,498 510,824,399 57,036,190 556,062,707 53,880,346

Systems (URS). URS is composed of the following pension trust funds:

e Public Employees Noncontributory Retirement System (Noncontributory System).

e The Firefighters Retirement System (Firefighters System) is a multiple employer, cost-sharing,

retirement system.

e The Public Safety Retirement System (Public Safety System) is a mixed agent and cost-sharing,

multiple-employer public employee retirement system.

e Tier 2 Public Employees Contributory Retirement System (Tier 2 Public Employees System) and
the Tier 2 Public Safety and Firefighter Contributory Retirement System (Tier 2 Public Safety and
Firefighters System) are both multiple employer, cost sharing, public employees retirement

systems.

The Tier 2 Public Employees System became effective July 1, 2011. All eligible employees beginning on
or after July 1, 2011, who have no previous service credit with any of the Utah Retirement Systemes, are
members of the Tier 2 Retirement System.
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4.1.a

CITY OF AMERICAN FORK
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2020

The Utah Retirement Systems (Systems) are established and governed by the respective sections of Title
49 of the Utah Code Annotated 1953, as amended. The Systems’ defined benefit plans are amended
statutorily by the Utah State Legislature. The Utah State Retirement Office Act in Title 49 provides for
the administration of the Systems under the direction of the Board, whose members are appointed by
the Governor. The Systems are fiduciary funds defined as pension (and other employee benefit) trust
funds. URS is a component unit of the state of Utah. Title 49 of the Utah Code grants the authority to
establish and amend the benefit terms.

URS issues a publicly available financial report that may be obtained by writing to the below address or

by visiting the website www.urs.org:

Utah Retirement Systems
560 E 200 S
Salt Lake City, UT 84102-2021

Benefits Provided. URS provides retirement, disability, and death benefits. Retirement benefits are as

follows:
Summary of Benefits by System
Years of Service
Final Average | Required and/or Age | Benefit Percent per
System Salary Eligible for Benefit Year of Service COLA**
Noncontributory System Highest 3 Years | 30 Years any age 2.0% per year all | Upto4%

25 Years any age*

years

20 Years age 60*
10 Years age 62
4 Years age 65
Public Safety System Highest 3 Years | 20 Years Any Age 2.5% Per Year Up to | Up to 2.5% or
10 Years Age 60 20 Years; 2.0% Per | 4% Depending
4 Years Age 65 year Over 20 Years Upon Employer
Firefighters System Highest 3 Years | 20 Years Any Age 2.5% Per Year Up to | Up to 4%
10 Years Age 60 20 Years; 2.0% Per
4 Years Age 65 Year Over 20 Years
Tier 2 Public Employees | Highest 5 Years | 35 Years Any Age 1.5% Per Year All | Upto2.5%
System 20 Years Any Age 60* | Years
10 Years Age 62*
4 Years Age 65
Tier 2 Public Safety and | Highest 5 Years | 25 Years Any Age 1.5% Per Year All | Upto2.5%
Firefighter System 20 Years Any Age 60* | Years;

10 Years Age 62*
4 Years Age 65

2.0% Per Year July
2020 To Present

* With actuarial reductions

**All post-retirement cost-of-living adjustments are non-compounding and are based on the original benefit
except for judges, which is a compounding benefit. The cost-of-living adjustments are also limited to the actual
Consumer Price Index (CPI) increase for the year, although unused CPl increases not met may be carried forward

to subsequent years.
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CITY OF AMERICAN FORK
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2020

4.1.a

Contributions. As a condition of participation in the Systems, employers and/or employees are required
to contribute a certain percentage of salary and wages as authorized by statute and specified by the URS
Board. Contributions are actuarially determined as an amount that, when combined with employee
contributions (where applicable), is expected to finance the costs of benefits earned by employees
during the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded actuarial accrued liability.

Contribution rates as of June 30, 2020, are as follows:

Employer Employer
Contribution Rate for
Employee Rates 401(k) Plan
Contributory System
111 - Local Government Division Tier 2
Noncontributory System N/A 15.66% 1.03%
15 — Local Government Division Tier 1 N/A 18.47% N/A
Public Safety Retirement System
122 — Contributory Tier 2 DB Hybrid N/A 23.13% 0.70%
43 — Noncontributory Other Division A With 2.5% COLA N/A 34.04% N/A
Firefighters System
31 — Other Division A 15.05% 4.61% N/A
132 —Tier 2 DB Hybrid N/A 11.38% 0.70%
Tier 2 DC Only
211 Local Government N/A 6.69% 10.00%
222 Public Safety N/A 11.83% 12.00%
232 Firefighters N/A 0.08% 12.00%

*Tier 2 rates include a statutory required contribution to finance the unfunded actuarial accrued liability of the Tier

1 plans.

For fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, the employer and employee contributions to the Systems were as

follows:
Employer Employee
System Contributions Contributions
Noncontributory S 692,913 N/A
Public Safety -
366,460

Firefighters 39,218 128,030
Tier 2 Public Employees 164,060 -
Tier 2 Public Safety and Firefighter 388,407 -
Tier 2 DC Only System 35,008 N/A
Tier 2 DC Public Safety and Firefighter System 11,385 N/A

Total Contributions $1,697,451 $128,030

Contributions reported are the URS Board approved required contributions by System. Contributions in

the Tier 2 Systems are used to finance the unfunded liabilities in the Tier 1 Systems.
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4.1.a

Pension Assets, Liabilities, Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of

Resources Related to Pensions.

At June 30, 2020, the City reported a net pension asset of $320,299 and a net pension liability of

$3,339,817:
December 31,
Measurement Date: December 31, 2019 2018
Met Pension MetPension Proportionate Proportionate Change
Asset Liability Share Share (Decrease)

Moncontributory System 5 5 1,672,796 0.4438457% 0.4440602%  -0.0002145%
Public Safety System 1,542,171 0.9604843% 1.0127761% -0.0522918%
Firefighters System 320,299 2.5826386% 2.4297297% 0.1529089%
Tier 2 Public Employees System 16,799 0.0746911% 0.0748773% -0.0001862%
Tier 2 Public Safety and Firefighter 108,051 1.1486931% 1.1694804% -0.0207873%

5 320,299 5 3,339,817

The net pension asset and liability were measured as of December 31, 2019, and the total pension
liability used to calculate the net pension asset and liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as
of January 1, 2019 and rolled forward using generally accepted actuarial procedures. The proportion of
net pension asset and liability is equal to the ratio of the employer’s actual contributions to the Systems
during the plan year over the total of all employer contributions to the System during the plan year.

For the year ended June 30, 2020, the City recognized pension expense of $1,666,141. At June 30, 2020,
the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions

from the following sources:

Differences Between Expected and Actual Experience
Changes in Assumptions

Net Difference Between Projected and Actual Earnings on Pension

Plan Investments

Changes in Proportion and Differences Between Contributions and

Proportionate Share of Contributions
Contributions Subsequent to the Measurement Date
Total

$834,849 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions results from contributions
made by the City prior to our fiscal year end, but subsequent to the measurement date of December 31,

2019.

American Fork City Comprehensive Annual Financial Report

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources

S 278,218 S 107,550

399,202 27,368

- 1,621,787

87,604 167,976

834,849 -

S 1,599,873 S 1,924,681
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CITY OF AMERICAN FORK
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2020

These contributions, typically made from the general fund, will be recognized as a reduction of the net
pension liability in the upcoming fiscal year. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources
and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year Ended Deferred Outflows
December 31 (Inflows) of Resources

2020 ($302,042)
2021 (414,896)
2022 72,360
2023 (592,572)
2024 10,952

Thereafter 66,541

Actuarial Assumptions. The total pension liability in the December 31, 2019, actuarial valuation was
determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the
measurement:

e |Inflation 2.50 percent

e Salary Increases 3.25 —-9.75 percent, average, including inflation

e Investment Rate of Return  6.95 percent, net of pension plan investment expense,
Including inflation

Mortality rates were developed from actual experience and mortality tables, based on gender,
occupation and age, as appropriate, with adjustments for future improvement in mortality based on
Scale AA, a model developed by the Society of Actuaries.

The actuarial assumptions used in the January 1, 2019, valuation were based on the results of an
actuarial experience study for the five-year period ending December 31, 2016.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-
block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns,
net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class and is
applied consistently to each defined benefit pension plan. These ranges are combined to produce the
long-term expected rate of return by weighing the expected future real rates of return by the target
asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. The target allocation and best estimates
of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class are summarized in the following table:
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Expected Return Arithmetic Basis

Long-Term

Target Asset Real Return Expected Portfolio

Asset Class Allocation Arithmetic Basis Real Rate of Return
Equity Securities 40.00% 6.15% 2.46%
Debt Securities 20.00% 0.40% 0.08%
Real Assets 15.00% 5.75% 0.86%
Private Equity 9.00% 9.95% 0.89%
Absolute Return 16.00% 2.85% 0.46%
Cash and Cash Equivalents 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Totals 100.00% 4.75%
Inflation 2.50%

Expected Arithmetic Mominal Return 7.25%

The 6.95 percent assumed investment rate of return is comprised of an inflation rate of 2.50 percent and
a real return of 4.45 percent that is net of investment expense.

Discount Rate. The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.95 percent. The
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that employee contributions will
be made at the current contribution rate and that contributions from all participating employers will be
made at contractually required rates that are actuarially determined and certified by the URS board.
Based on those assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to
make all projected future benefit payments of current active and inactive employees. Therefore, the
long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all period of projected
benefit payments to determine the total pension liability. The discount rate does not use the Municipal
Bond Index Rate. The discount rate was reduced to 6.95 percent from 7.20 percent from the prior
measurement period.

Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Asset and Liability to Changes in the Discount
Rate. The following table presents the proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using
the discount rate of 6.95 percent, as well as the proportionate share of the net pension liability if it were
calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower (5.95 percent) or 1 percentage point
higher (7.95 percent) than the current rate:

1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase

System (5.95%) (6.95%) (7.95%)
Noncontributory System $5,224,725 $1,672,796 $(1,289,475)
Public Safety System 3,994,820 1,542,171 (451,080)
Firefighters System 655,016 (320,299) (1,2111,481)
Tier 2 Public Employees System 144,862 16,799 (82,171)
Tier 2 Public Safety and Firefighter 381,703 108,051 (95,091)

Total $10,401,126 $3,019,518 $(3,029,298)
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Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2020

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position. Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position
is available in the separately issued URS financial report.

Defined Contribution Savings Plans. The defined contribution savings plans are administered by the Utah
Retirement Systems Board and are generally supplemental plans to the basic retirement benefits of the
Retirement Systems, but may also be used as a primary retirement plan. These plans are voluntary tax-
advantaged retirement savings programs authorized under sections 401(k), 457(b), and 408 of the
Internal Revenue code. Detailed information regarding plan provisions is available in the separately
issued URS financial report.

The City participates in the following defined contribution savings plans with Utah Retirement Systems:

= 401(k) plan

= 457(b) plan

= Roth IRA plan

= Traditional IRA plan

The City has also established a voluntary deferred compensation program pursuant to Section

457 of the Internal Revenue Code for Public Safety (Fire) employees. In accordance with Governmental
Accounting Standards Board Statement 32 (GASB No. 32), the assets and income of the Plan are held in
trust for the exclusive benefit of the participants or their beneficiaries.

Cafeteria Plan. The City previously offered a cafeteria plan to all non-probationary full-time employees

to fund a variety of employee health benefit programs, including a 401(k) plan, life insurance, disability
insurance, health insurance, and other benefits. This program was discontinued in February 2019.

NOTE 11 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The City is a defendant in certain legal actions and pending actions, or in process for miscellaneous
claims. The ultimate liability that might result from the final resolution of the above matters is not
presently determinable. City management is of the opinion that the final outcome of the cases will not
have an adverse material effect on the City’s financial statements.

In the normal course of operations, the City receives grant funds from various federal agencies. The grant
operations are subject to audit by agents of the granting authority, the purpose of which is to ensure
compliance with conditions precedent to the granting of funds. Any liability for reimbursement that may
arise as the result of audits of grant funds is not believed to be material.

The City has various construction projects and agreements as of June 30, 2020, with commitments to
contractors and vendors as follows:
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Road Projects S 2,286,840
Water Projects 2,768,702
Park Projects 649,510
Sewer and Storm Drain Projects 843,500
General Projects 3,341,944
Total Commitments S 9,890,496

NOTE 12 - RISK MANAGEMENT

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to and destruction of assets,
errors and omissions, injuries to employees, and natural disasters. It is the policy of the City to purchase
commercial insurance for these risks. Various policies are purchased through an insurance agency to
cover liability, theft, damage, and other losses. A minimal deductible applies to these policies, which the
City pay in the event of any loss. There have been no significant reductions in coverage from the prior
year. Settled claims have not exceeded this commercial coverage in any of the three preceding years.
The City also maintains a worker’s compensation policy through a commercial vendor.

NOTE 13 - REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY

The Redevelopment Agency of American Fork City is established to further public purposes in the
redevelopment of certain City areas. For the year ended June 30, 2020, the following activity occurred
in the City’s Redevelopment Agency:

Tax increment collection from other taxing agencies for

various project areas $1,291,184
Tax increment distributions 474,253
Outstanding loans to finance RDA projects -
Amounts expended for installation of capital improvements, other

public improvements, and housing donations 52,993
Amounts expended for administrative costs 33,500

NOTE 14 — DEFICIT NET POSITION

For the year ended June 30, 2020, the City had negative net position in the broadband fund. During fiscal
year 2003, an existing high-speed broadband system was purchased from a private company. The City
began providing wholesale services to internet providers during fiscal year 2003. A significant portion of
the broadband assets were sold to UTOPIA and a private company in 2008. The City has since issued
more IRUs (Irrevocable Rights of Use) that extend beyond the useful life of the asset and are treated in
the financial statements as a sale of assets. The City is currently in the process of conducting a feasibility
study to determine long-term options for the broadband system, and in fiscal year 2020 the general fund
subsided the current year’s deficit.
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NOTE 15 — LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

The City entered into an agreement with the state of Utah to lease office and court space to the Fourth
Judicial District and Juvenile Courts. The lease agreement is through September 30, 2022, with five-year
renewal options. The annual lease payment is $349,300. The operating and maintenance portion is
currently being adjusted to reflect the City’s actual costs.

The future lease payments are as follows:

Fiscal Year Ended Amount
2020 S 349,300
2021 349,300
2022 349,300
2023 87.325

$ 1,135,225

NOTE 16 — SALE OF HOSPITAL — NOTE RECEIVABLE

The City sold a hospital building to Heritage Care Center for $2,686,964 in July 2003. The City is financing
$492,000 of the sales price. The City’s loan is secured by a second position interest in the building. The
City’s security is subordinate to the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD), which
holds the first position interest. Heritage Care Center repaid principal balance of the note in the amount
of $414,122 during fiscal year 2020.

NOTE 17 — TAX ABATEMENT AGREEMENTS

On December 9, 2014, the City entered into a development agreement with AFCC Limited, the developer
of the Meadows shopping center. Under this agreement, AFCC Limited is allowed to share in future sales
and property tax increment revenues subject to a number of terms and conditions, which include:

o A fifteen-year maximum term.

e The first $70,000 of tax increment generated during each year is not subject to the agreement.

e After the first $70,000, the City will reimburse AFCC Limited 75 percent of the tax increment
revenues generated.

e $2,000,000 maximum reimbursement cap.

During fiscal year ending June 30, 2020 AFCC Limited did not exceed the thresholds under the terms and
conditions of the agreement to receive a tax increment share.

On December 23, 2019, the City entered into a development agreement with National Buick GMC. Under
this agreement, National Buick GMC can share in future sales and property tax increment revenues
subject to a number of terms and conditions, which include:
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e The first $100,000 of tax increment generated during each year is not subject to the agreement.

e After the first $100,000, the City will reimburse National Buick GMC a tiered percentage of tax
increment generated above the baseline amount of $100,000.

e 51,000,000 maximum reimbursement cap.

During fiscal year ending June 30, 2020 National Buick GMC received $24,982 in tax increment
reimbursements.

NOTE 18 — SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Management has evaluated subsequent events through December 21, 2020, the date the financial
statements were available to be issued.

Bond Issuance

On November 19, 2020, the City issued $22,015,000 of Water Revenue Bonds, Series 2020. The interest
rate is 1.00% with the final maturity due on December 1, 2051. The debt service payments are scheduled
annually at amounts that range from $796,550 to $885,880.
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CITY OF AMERICAN FORK
General Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance -

4.1.a

Budget and Actual =
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020 -c%
Original Final Actual Variances with <

Budget Budget Amounts Final Budget 8

REVENUES s
Taxes ‘g
Property Tax - Current S 3533000 S 3533000 S 3,712,679 § 179,679 8
Property Tax - Delinquent 250,000 250,000 293,319 43,319 N_
Motor Vehicle Tax 363,000 363,000 379,395 16,395 8
Sales and Use Tax 9,000,000 9,000,000 9,971,598 971,598 CIC)
Penalties and Interest 15,093 15,093 16,876 1,783 =]
Telecommunications Tax 270,000 270,000 243,259 (26,741) B
Energy Sales and Use Tax 1,835,000 1,835,000 1,787,645 (47,355) =
Cable TV Franchise Tax 125,000 125,000 131,832 6,832 15
Total Taxes 15,391,093 15,391,093 16,536,603 1,145,510 8

S

Licenses and Permits =%
Building Permits 1,300,000 1,300,000 1,208,439 (91,561) 8
Business Licenses 96,800 96,800 90,302 (6,498) %
Other Licenses and Permits 92,000 92,450 68,270 (24,180) g
Total Licenses and Permits 1,488,800 1,489,250 1,367,011 (122,239) ©

S

Intergovernmental Revenues §
Federal Grants 92,330 115,412 1,411,328 1,295,916 GC)
State Grants 8,000 25,795 77,238 51,443 a
County, Local, and Other Grants 10,476 45,823 76,121 30,298 a
Liquor Fund Allotment 30,000 30,000 44,831 14,831 :
Total Intergovernmental Revenues 140,806 217,030 1,609,518 1,392,488 /)

9]

Charges for Services E
Fire Protection 698,900 698,900 696,078 (2,822) -g
Police Protection 603,858 603,858 620,126 16,268 %
Ambulance Fees 1,943,950 1,943,950 2,007,344 63,394 <
Development Fees 143,285 239,279 336,513 97,234 L_L
Plan Check Fees 445,000 445,000 466,222 21,222 §
Recreation Fees 378,000 409,500 334,110 (75,390) E
Cemetery Fees 153,000 153,000 147,010 (5,990) <
Administrative Charge 1,781,677 1,781,677 1,781,677 - .02')
Other Fees 248,000 248,000 219,201 (28,799) 2
Total Charges for Services 6,395,670 6,523,164 6,608,281 85,117 g

[}

Fines and Forfeitures 350,000 350,000 353,424 3,424 g‘
o

. O
Miscellaneous Revenue o
Investment Earnings 130,000 130,000 89,884 (40,116) S
Rental Income 445,000 445,000 438,400 (6,600) S
Donations 6,000 10,000 8,149 (1,851) L
Sundry Revenue 119,313 119,313 373,137 253,824 E‘
Total Miscellaneous Revenue 700,313 704,313 909,570 205,257 o

£

Total Revenue S 24,466,682 S 24,674,850 S 27,384,407 S 2,709,557 §
<

The notes to the required supplementary information are an integral part of this schedule.
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CITY OF AMERICAN FORK
General Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance -

4.1.a

Budget and Actual (Continued) =
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020 -c%
Original Final Actual Variances with ]

Budget Budget Amounts Final Budget g

EXPENDITURES s
General Government ‘g
Administration and Finance S 1,442,101 S 1454561 $ 1,550,678 S (96,117) 8
Legislative and Executive 254,397 254,397 206,903 47,494 N
Legal 411,250 411,250 397,548 13,702 8—
Total General Government 2,107,748 2,120,208 2,155,129 (34,921) ch
Community Services '3
Parks 1,066,658 1,066,658 890,191 176,467 g
Cemetery 538,071 538,071 500,276 37,795 ug
Boat Harbor 54,462 54,462 41,612 12,850 )
Library 1,034,329 1,034,329 987,195 47,134 g
Literacy Center 41,076 41,076 31,310 9,766 g
Administration 342,552 355,802 308,496 47,306 8
Total Community Services 3,077,148 3,090,398 2,759,080 331,318 %
Public Works -g
Streets 1,512,653 1,713,309 1,845,884 (132,575) g
Building Maintenance 1,035,704 1,033,619 1,026,774 6,845 .g
Building Inspection 902,397 902,397 887,255 15,142 o
Engineering 683,224 809,218 677,651 131,567 S
Administration 332,210 332,210 310,965 21,245 8
Total Public Works 4,466,188 4,790,753 4,748,529 42,224 Qh-/
Public Safety E
Police & Animal Control 6,331,274 6,427,492 6,147,865 279,627 %
Fire 5,639,900 5,654,681 5,276,444 378,237 E
Total Public Safety 11,971,174 12,082,173 11,424,309 657,864 g
Recreation 689,968 721,468 647,930 73,538 §
T

Other =
Planning 320,456 320,456 311,056 9,400 g
Senior Citizens 118,289 118,289 105,882 12,407 c
Citizen Committees 14,000 14,000 6,648 7,352 25
Total Other 452,745 452,745 423,586 29,159 5
Total Expenditures 22,764,971 23,257,745 22,158,563 1,099,182 E
0]

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues S
Over Expenditures 1,701,711 1,417,105 5,225,844 3,808,739 §
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 8
Transfers In 299,633 299,633 297,566 (2,067) 8
Transfers Out (2,001,344) (2,003,429) (2,279,234) 275,805 >
Sale of Capital Assets - ; 8,880 8,880 L
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (1,701,711) (1,703,796) (1,972,788) 282,618 %
Net Change in Fund Balance - (286,691) 3,253,056 3,539,747 E
Fund Balance - July 1 2,992,113 2,992,113 2,992,113 - §
Fund Balance - June 30 S 2,992,113 S 2,705,422 S 6,245,169 S 3,539,747 Z

The notes to the required supplementary information are an integral part of this schedule.
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CITY OF AMERICAN FORK

Required Supplementary Information
Schedule of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability

June 30, 2020
Last 10 Fiscal Years*

4.1.a

* The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of December 31. In accordance with GASB 68, until
a full 10-year trend is compiled, information is presented for those years which information is available.

5

3

<

Tier 2 Public g

Year Noncontributory Tier 2 Public Safety and g
Ended Retirement Public Safety Firefighters Employees Firefighters =
12/31 System System System System System §
~

Proportion of the net pension liability (asset) o
2014 0.4499177% 0.9998703% 1.4214988% 0.0782491% 1.5096317% 2
2015 0.4671654% 1.0209030% 1.5158354% 0.0912367% 1.5001408% S
2016 0.4489326% 0.9700784% 1.4418841% 0.0985332% 1.3686609% B
2017 0.4739740% 0.9866520% 1.9399640% 0.0947120% 1.3857400% <
2018 0.4440602% 1.0127761% 2.4297297% 0.0748773% 1.1694804% rs)
2019 0.4438457% 0.9604843% 2.5826386% 0.0746911% 1.1486931% 3
c

Proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) g
2014 S 1953,649 S 1,257,420 S (81,116) S (2,371) (22,332) 8
2015 5,643,449 1,828,694 (27,455) (199) (21,918) @
2016 2,882,697 1,968,557 (11,367) 10,991 (11,881) 2
2017 2,076,622 1,547,719 (121,161) 8,351 (16,009) g
2018 3,269,937 2,605,453 315,494 32,068 29,302 ke
2019 1,672,796 1,542,171 (320,299) 16,799 108,051 §
o

Covered payroll a
2014 S 3,840,242 S 1,420,345 S 369,498 S 384,271 624,887 g:
2015 3,969,893 1,450,621 498,165 589,511 892,642 -
2016 3,851,408 1,342,582 501,290 808,052 1,130,820 =
2017 4,032,289 1,319,371 571,039 928,254 1,460,525 &-’
2018 3,812,874 1,314,953 752,118 874,153 1,565,601 =
2019 3,844,971 1,168,425 826,886 1,038,379 1,893,108 g
]

Proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) as a percentage of its covered payroll L%
2014 50.90% 88.50% -22.00% 0.60% -3.60% =
2015 66.59% 126.06% -5.51% 0.03% -2.46% 2
2016 74.85% 146.62% -2.27% 1.36% -1.05% é
2017 51.50% 117.31% -21.22% 0.90% -1.10% S
2018 85.76% 198.14% 41.95% 3.67% 1.87% D
2019 43.51% 131.99% -38.74% 1.62% 5.71% E
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of its covered payroll %
2014 90.20% 90.50% 103.50% 103.50% 120.50% g
2015 87.80% 87.10% 101.00% 100.20% 100.70% O
2016 87.30% 86.50% 100.40% 95.10% 103.60% Q
2017 91.90% 90.20% 103.00% 97.40% 103.00% &
2018 87.00% 84.70% 94.30% 90.80% 95.60% E
2019 93.70% 90.90% 105.00% 96.50% 89.60% =
)

£

=

g

<

The notes to the required supplementary information are an integral part of this schedule.
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4.1.a

CITY OF AMERICAN FORK
Required Supplementary Information
Schedule of Contributions - Utah Retirement Systems

June 30, 2020 5
Last 10 Fiscal Years* 3
°

Contributions in Contributions as %

Fiscal Relation to the a Percentage of S
Year Actuarial Contractually Contribution Covered Covered S
Ended Determined Required Deficiency Employee Employee N
June 30 Contributions Contribution (Excess) Payroll Payroll 8
o

Noncontributory System 5
2014 S 686,852 S 686,852 - S 3,980,825 17.25% 3
2015 698,745 698,745 - 3,814,719 18.32% :E_
2016 715,449 715,449 - 3,911,858 18.29% g
2017 724,783 724,783 - 3,972,181 18.25% 2
2018 720,585 720,585 - 3,952,823 18.23% g
2019 688,195 688,195 - 3,779,491 18.21% 3
2020 692,913 692,913 - 3,804,571 18.21% &
©

c

Public Safety System g
2014 446,564 446,564 - 1,389,432 32.14% 2
2015 493,954 493,954 - 1,451,099 34.04% ‘2
2016 477,217 477,217 - 1,401,928 34.04% a
2017 452,796 452,796 - 1,330,187 34.04% g
2018 451,848 451,848 - 1,327,402 34.04% ~
2019 421,884 421,884 - 1,239,375 34.04% E
2020 366,460 366,460 - 1,076,555 34.04% é’
©

Firefighters System g
2014 10,422 10,422 - 352,100 2.96% ©
2015 15,660 15,660 - 454,136 3.45% i
2016 15,749 15,749 - 487,783 3.23% f_g
2017 17,957 17,957 - 514,525 3.49% =
2018 26,696 26,696 - 679,298 3.93% <
2019 36,437 36,437 - 790,388 4.61% .02)
2020 39,218 39,218 - 850,699 4.61% %
o

Tier 2 Public Employees System** o
2014 41,337 41,337 - 295,477 13.99% %
2015 71,827 71,827 - 480,771 14.94% g
2016 105,774 105,774 - 709,416 14.91% S
2017 137,044 137,044 - 919,145 14.91% ;\_'
2018 128,787 128,787 - 852,329 15.11% L
2019 153,055 153,055 - 984,911 15.54% %
2020 164,060 164,060 - 1,047,639 15.66% €
<
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CITY OF AMERICAN FORK
Required Supplementary Information

Schedule of Contributions - Utah Retirement Systems (continued)

4.1.a

June 30, 2020 5
Last 10 Fiscal Years* 3
°

Contributions in Contributions as %

Fiscal Relation to the a Percentage of S
Year Actuarial Contractually Contribution Covered Covered S
Ended Determined Required Deficiency Employee Employee N
June 30 Contributions Contribution (Excess) Payroll Payroll 8
o

Tier 2 Public Safety and Firefighter System** 5
2014 68,400 68,400 - 477,736 14.32% B
2015 114,413 114,413 - 797,630 14.34% :E_
2016 140,767 140,767 - 997,412 14.11% g
2017 198,201 198,201 - 1,306,481 15.17% 2
2018 243,354 243,354 - 1,521,388 16.00% g
2019 288,715 288,715 - 1,645,804 17.54% 3
2020 388,407 388,407 - 2,201,991 17.64% &
<

Tier 2 Public Employees DC Only System** g
2014 167 167 - 3,000 5.57% 2
2015 2,293 2,293 - 34,122 6.72% g
2016 4,993 4,993 - 74,629 6.69% a
2017 13,612 13,612 - 203,471 6.69% él_’
2018 19,449 19,449 - 290,718 6.69% ~
2019 29,082 29,082 - 434,702 6.69% E
2020 35,008 35,008 - 523,288 6.69% §
©

Tier 2 Public Safety and Firefighter DC Only System** g
2014 - - - - 0.00% g
2015 171 171 - 1,448 11.81% i
2016 4,694 4,694 - 39,680 11.83% f_g
2017 4,999 4,999 - 42,254 11.83% =
2018 5,505 5,505 - 46,537 11.83% f]’:)
2019 6,896 6,896 - 90,011 7.66% =
2020 11,385 11,385 - 156,491 7.28% %
5

* The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of December 31. In accordance with GASB 68, S
until a full 10-year trend is compiled, information is presented for those years for which information is available. g
Contributions as a percentage of covered-payroll may be different than the board certified rate due to rounding and g
other administrative issues. §
** Contributions in the Tier 2 system include an amortization rate to help fund the unfunded liabilities in the Tier 1 E
systems. Tier 2 systems were created effective July 1, 2011. =
£

<

8

<

The notes to the required supplementary information are an integral part of this schedule.
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4.1.a

CITY OF AMERICAN FORK

Notes to Required Supplementary Information
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

1. BUDGETARY INFORMATION

Budgets for the general fund are adopted and presented on a basis consistent with generally
accepted accounting principles.

2. DEFINED CONTRIBUTION SYSTEM

The City participates in a defined contribution plan with Utah Retirement Systems. A summary of
the contributions made for fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, are as follows:

Employee Paid Employer Paid
Contributions  Contributions

401(k) Plan S 95,365 S 191,644
457 Plan 11,815 -
Roth IRA Plan 74,153 -

* The employer paid 401(k) contributions include the totals paid for employees enrolled in the
Tier 2 Defined Contribution 401(k) plan.

3. CHANGES IN ASSUMPTIONS

As a result of the passage of SB 129, the retirement rates for members in the Tier 2 Public Safety
and Firefighter Hybrid System have been modified to be the same as the assumption used to
model the retirement pattern in the Tier | Public Safety and Firefighter Systems, except for a 10%
load at first eligibility for unreduced retirement prior to age 65.

Attachment: FY 2020 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (Presentation and acceptance of the June 30, 2020 financial audit)
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4.1.a

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Special revenue funds are used to account for specific revenues that are restricted to expenditure for
particular purposes.

1) Fitness Center — This fund is used to account for fees charged to users and expenditures dealing with
operation and maintenance of the City’s fitness center.

2) PARC Tax —This fund is used to account for the revenues received by the City from the Utah State Tax
Commission and expenditures (mainly grants) relating to the City’s Parks, Arts, Recreation, and Culture
tax.

3) Redevelopment Agency — The RDA Fund is used to account for the activities of the Redevelopment
Agency. The Agency is an entity established to further public purpose in the redevelopment of

particular City areas.

4) Downtown Redevelopment — The downtown redevelopment fund is used to enhance and promote

the City’s core downtown area and to account for small business revolving loans issued by the city.
5) Celebration — This fund is used to account for the activities of Steel Days, the City’s annual celebration.

6) Building Authority — The building authority fund is used to account for the construction of capital

facilities within the City.

PERMANENT FUND

Permanent funds are used to account for resources that are legally restricted to the extent that only
earnings, and not principal, may be used for purposes that support the City’s program.

1) Perpetual Care Fund — This fund is used to account for the funds received for the perpetual care of the

cemetery.

Attachment: FY 2020 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (Presentation and acceptance of the June 30, 2020 financial audit)
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CITY OF AMERICAN FORK
Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Governmental Funds

4.1.a

June 30, 2020 =
°

3

Special Revenue T

Fitness PARC Redevelopment Downtown 2

Center Tax Agency Redevelopment _E

S

ASSETS 2
Cash and Cash Equivalents S 108,648 S 444,523 S 4,900,988 S 84,131 s
Receivables - 230,754 1,381,996 19,626 2
Inventories 18,428 - - - S
Due From Other Funds - - - - P
Total Assets 127,076 675,277 6,282,984 103,757 <

©

LIABILITIES 8
Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities 127,076 341,283 3,408 - ]
g

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES S
Unavailable Revenue - Property Taxes - - 1,381,996 - T
@

c

FUND BALANCES =
Nonspendable g8
c

Inventories 18,428 - - - g
Restricted &-’
Redevelopment - - 3,269,512 - -~
Redevelopment-Affordable Housing - - 1,628,068 - g
Perpetual Care - - - - &
Assigned EC_E
Subsequent Year Appropriation - - - - S
Fitness Center (18,428) - - - G

c

PARC Tax - 333,994 - - iT
Downtown Redevelopment - - - 103,757 c_g
Celebration - - - - =
Municipal Building Authority - - - - <
Total Fund Balances - 333,994 4,897,580 103,757 .02')
a

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources, <
and Fund Balances S 127,076 S 675,277 S 6,282,984 $ 103,757 E_
S

o

N

o

IV

>

o

=

)

S

<

O

]

<

The notes to the required supplementary information are an integral part of this schedule.
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CITY OF AMERICAN FORK
Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
June 30, 2020

4.1.a

ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Receivables
Inventories
Due From Other Funds
Total Assets

LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable Revenue - Property Taxes

FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable
Inventories
Restricted
Redevelopment
Redevelopment-Affordable Housing
Perpetual Care
Assigned
Subsequent Year Appropriation
Fitness Center
PARC Tax
Downtown Redevelopment
Celebration
Municipal Building Authority
Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources,

and Fund Balances

(continued) =

©

3

Special Revenue (continued) Permanent T
Building Cemetery 2
Celebration Authority Care Total _E
)

(o]

&

$ 2,791 891 S 404,104 $ 5,946,076 S
- - - 1,632,376 2
- - - 18,428 S
- - 426,954 426,954 P
2,791 891 831,058 8,023,834 <
©

@

c

369 - - 472,136 8
o

()

(&)

@

- - - 1,381,996 =
©

[

°

J5i

- - - 18,428 o
0

o

; - ; 3,269,512 e
- - - 1,628,068 5
- - 831,058 831,058 &
x

T

- - - - )
- - - (18,428) G
c

- - - 333,994 i
- - - 103,757 ©
2,422 - - 2,422 c
- 891 - 891 <
2,422 891 831,058 6,169,702 <
2

2

6]

$ 2,791 891 S 831,058 $ 8,023,834 5
£

S

o

(o]

o

(qV]

>

LL

=

@

£

ey

(&)

8

<
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CITY OF AMERICAN FORK

4.1.a

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Nonmajor Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

REVENUES
Charges for Services
Taxes
Interest Earnings
Miscellaneous
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
General Government
Community Services
Recreation and Culture
Redevelopment and Public Improvements
Interfund Charges
Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of
Revenues over Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers In
Transfers Out
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balances
Fund Balances - Beginning
Fund Balances - Ending

Special Revenue

Fitness PARC Redevelopment Downtown
Center Tax Agency Redevelopment
1,513,255 - S - S -

- 1,194,830 1,291,184 -

- 9,220 82,672 2,450

6,492 - - -

1,519,747 1,204,050 1,373,856 2,450

- 11,800 - -

- 558,100 - -
2,044,619 386,584 - -

- - 560,746 32,800
269,057 9,356 33,942 -
2,313,676 965,840 594,688 32,800
(793,929) 238,210 779,168 (30,350)

836,856 - - -
(143,615) - - -

693,241 - - -
(100,688) 238,210 779,168 (30,350)

100,688 95,784 4,118,412 134,107

333994 S 4,897,580 S 103,757

Attachment: FY 2020 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (Presentation and acceptance of the June 30, 2020 financial audit)
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CITY OF AMERICAN FORK

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Nonmajor Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

4.1.a

(continued)

REVENUES
Charges for Services
Taxes
Interest Earnings
Miscellaneous
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
General Government
Community Services
Recreation and Culture
Redevelopment and Public Improvements
Interfund Charges
Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of
Revenues over Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers In
Transfers Out
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balances
Fund Balances - Beginning
Fund Balances - Ending

=

>

©

Special Revenue (continued) Permanent <
Building Cemetery %
Celebration Authority Care Total S
o

[aN)

o

[qV}

S 3,800 S - S 21,400 S 1,538,455 8
- - - 2,486,014 o
- - 33,031 127,373 S
=

- - - 6,492 )
3,800 - 54,431 4,158,334 :c-‘_
o

(O]

(8]

c

- - - 11,800 g
- - - 558,100 0
54,749 - - 2,485,952 &
- 10 - 593,556 2
- - - 312,355 °
54,749 10 - 3,961,763 .g
©

c

(O]

3

(50,949) (10) 54,431 196,571 £
S

- - - 836,856 &)
- - (6,933) (150,548) =
- - (6,933) 686,308 G
(50,949) (10) 47,498 882,879 T
53,371 901 783,560 5,286,823 f_g
$ 2,422 $ 891 $ 831,058 $ 6,169,702 =
<

o

>

‘0

c

(O]

o

o

S

@]

O

o

AN

o

[qV}

>

i

=

(O]

€

<

O

g

<

American Fork City Comprehensive Annual Financial Report

Packet Pg. 118




CITY OF AMERICAN FORK
Capital Projects Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance -

Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

4.1.a

REVENUES
Taxes
Intergovernmental
Interest Earnings
Impact Fees
Miscellaneous
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES

Capital Outlay
Streets
Public Safety
Parks
Fitness Center
Cemetery
Buildings
Other Projects

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Capital Contributions
Issuance of Long Term Debt
Cost of Issuance of Long Term Debt
Transfers In
Transfers Out
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance
Fund Balance - July 1
Fund Balance - June 30

Original Final Actual Variances with
Budget Budget Amounts Final Budget
S 1,210,000 S 1,210,000 S 1,450,457 S 240,457
6,082,000 7,196,256 1,562,201 (5,634,055)
269,000 277,425 425,297 147,872
4,580,000 4,580,000 5,943,233 1,363,233
44,000 44,000 40,000 (4,000)
12,185,000 13,307,681 9,421,188 (3,886,493)
3,384,625 9,477,968 1,152,925 8,325,043
5,665,000 5,725,833 116,053 5,609,780
5,087,500 10,551,527 5,027,298 5,524,229
92,000 277,780 251,223 26,557
70,488 73,488 17,235 56,253
142,157 243,033 133,461 109,572
240,000 248,425 248,812 (387)
14,681,770 26,598,054 6,947,007 19,651,047
(2,496,770)  (13,290,373) 2,474,181 15,764,554
- 60,000 84,794 24,794
5,100,000 5,100,000 8,665,261 3,565,261
- - (63,895) (63,895)
1,062,770 2,099,129 2,209,190 110,061
(412,191) (412,191) (523,420) (111,229)
5,750,579 6,846,938 10,371,930 3,524,992
3,253,809 (6,443,435) 12,846,111 19,289,546
20,169,235 20,169,235 20,169,235 -
$23,423,044 $13,725,800 $33,015,346  $19,289,546
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CITY OF AMERICAN FORK
Debt Service Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance -

Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

4.1.a

REVENUES
Property Taxes
Intergovernmental
Interest Earnings
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Debt Service
Principal
Interest and Fees
Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers In
Transfers Out
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance
Fund Balance - July 1
Fund Balance - June 30

Original Final Actual Variances with
Budget Budget Amounts Final Budget
S 784,125 S 784,125 S 784,125 S -
350,000 350,000 350,000 -
24,000 24,000 13,877 (10,123)
1,158,125 1,158,125 1,148,002 (10,123)
1,125,000 1,125,000 1,125,000 -
131,683 131,683 131,933 (250)
1,256,683 1,256,683 1,256,933 (250)
(98,558) (98,558) (108,931) (9,873)
121,558 121,558 108,931 (12,627)
- (941,411) (941,411) -
121,558 (819,853) (832,480) (12,627)
23,000 (918,411) (941,411) (23,000)
1,292,793 1,292,793 1,292,793 -
$ 1,315,793 S 374382 S 351382 S (23,000)
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CITY OF AMERICAN FORK
Fitness Center Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance -

Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

4.1.a

REVENUES
Charges for Services
Miscellaneous
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES

Salaries and Benefits
Materials and Supplies
Contracted Services
Utilities
Cost of Goods Sold
Interfund Charges
Equipment Purchases
Other

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers In
Transfers Out
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance
Fund Balance - July 1
Fund Balance - June 30

%

>

T

<

©

Original Final Actual Variances with S
Budget Budget Amounts Final Budget =
o

AN

1,871,400 S 1,871,400 $ 1,513,255 S (358,145) 8
3,000 3,000 6,492 3,492 S
1,874,400 1,874,400 1,519,747 (354,653) o
=

()

=

1,532,253 1,532,253 1,301,851 230,402 5
336,913 334,390 382,002 (47,612) ®
103,200 103,200 109,531 (6,331) S
195,820 186,120 177,027 9,093 s
33,300 33,300 23,726 9,574 §
269,057 269,057 269,057 - -
3,800 5,420 3,035 2,385 S
52,100 52,100 47,447 4,653 .g
2,526,443 2,515,840 2,313,676 202,164 o
5

(]

t

(652,043) (641,440) (793,929) (152,489) e
5

o

652,043 652,043 836,856 (184,813) %
- (92,863) (143,615) 50,752 S
652,043 559,180 693,241 (134,061) §
=

- (82,260) (100,688) (18,428) T
100,688 100,688 100,688 - <
100,688 S 18,428 S - S (18,428) i
>
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CITY OF AMERICAN FORK

Parks, Arts, Recreation, and Culture (PARC) Tax Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance -
Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

4.1.a

Original Final Actual Variances with
Budget Budget Amounts Final Budget
REVENUES
Sales Tax $ 1,023,750 S 928640 S 1,194,830 S 266,190
Interest Earnings 7,000 7,000 9,220 2,220
Total Revenues 1,030,750 935,640 1,204,050 268,410
EXPENDITURES
General Government 6,000 6,000 11,800 (5,800)
Grants Awarded 1,015,394 950,284 944,684 5,600
Interfund Charges 9,356 9,356 9,356 -
Total Expenditures 1,030,750 965,640 965,840 (200)
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures - (30,000) 238,210 268,210
Fund Balance - July 1 95,784 95,784 95,784 -
Fund Balance - June 30 S 95,784 S 65,784 S 333,994 S 268,210
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CITY OF AMERICAN FORK
Redevelopment Agency Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance -

Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

4.1.a

REVENUES
Taxes
Interest Earnings
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
General Government
Affordable Housing
Interfund Charges
Capital Outlay and Projects
Tax Increment Distributions
Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers Out
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance
Fund Balance - July 1
Fund Balance - June 30

Original Final Actual Variances with
Budget Budget Amounts Final Budget
S 1,232,648 S 1,232,648 S 1,291,184 S 58,536
38,994 38,994 82,672 43,678
1,271,642 1,271,642 1,373,856 102,214
10,000 10,000 33,500 (23,500)
175,769 175,769 - 175,769
33,942 33,942 33,942 -
832,735 832,735 52,993 779,742
439,422 439,422 474,253 (34,831.00)
1,491,868 1,491,868 594,688 897,180
(220,226) (220,226) 779,168 999,394
(42,063) (42,063) - 42,063
(42,063) (42,063) - 42,063
(262,289.00) (262,289) 779,168 1,041,457
4,118,412 4,118,412 4,118,412 -
S 3,856,123 S 3,856,123 S 4,897,580 S 1,041,457
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CITY OF AMERICAN FORK
Downtown Redevelopment Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance -

Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

4.1.a

Original Final Actual Variances with
Budget Budget Amounts Final Budget
REVENUES
Interest Earnings S 3,000 S 3,000 S 2,450 S (550)
Miscellaneous - - - -
Total Revenues 3,000 3,000 2,450 (550)
EXPENDITURES
Professional and Technical - 41,000 32,800 8,200
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures 3,000 (38,000) (30,350) 7,650
Net Change in Fund Balance 3,000 (38,000) (30,350) 7,650
Fund Balance - July 1 134,107 134,107 134,107 -
Fund Balance - June 30 S 137,107 S 96,107 S 103,757 S 7,650
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CITY OF AMERICAN FORK
Celebration Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance -

Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

4.1.a

REVENUES
Charges for Sales and Services
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Production Costs
Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating Transfers In
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance
Fund Balance - July 1
Fund Balance - June 30

Original Final Actual Variances with
Budget Budget Amounts Final Budget

$ - $ 4,075 $ 3,800 S (275)

- 4,075 3,800 (275)

60,360 64,435 54,749 9,686
60,360 64,435 54,749 9,686
(60,360) (60,360) (50,949) 9,411

10,721 10,721 - (10,721)

10,721 10,721 - (10,721)

(49,639) (49,639) (50,949) (1,310)

53,371 53,371 53,371 -
S (6,989) S (6,989) S 2,422 S 9,411
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CITY OF AMERICAN FORK

Municipal Building Authority

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance -
Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

4.1.a

Original Final Actual Variances with
Budget Budget Amounts Final Budget
REVENUES
Miscellaneous S - S - - S -
EXPENDITURES
Other 100 100 10 90
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures (100) (100) (10) 90
Net Change in Fund Balance (100) (100) (10) 90
Fund Balance - July 1 901 901 901 -
Fund Balance - June 30 S 801 S 801 891 § 90
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4.1.a

CITY OF AMERICAN FORK

Cemetery Perpetual Care Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance -
Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Original Final Actual Variances with
Budget Budget Amounts Final Budget
REVENUES
Perpetual Care S 22,000 S 22,000 S 21,400 S (600)
Interest Earnings 36,500 36,500 33,031 (3,469)
Total Revenues 58,500 58,500 54,431 (4,069)
EXPENDITURES
Capital Outlay - - - -
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures 58,500 58,500 54,431 (4,069)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers Out (9,000) (9,000) (6,933) 2,067
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (9,000) (9,000) (6,933) 2,067
Net Change in Fund Balance 49,500 49,500 47,498 (2,002)
Fund Balance - July 1 783,560 783,560 783,560 -
Fund Balance - June 30 S 833,060 S 833,060 S 831,058 S (2,002)
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4.1.a

NONMAIJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS

ENTERPRISE FUNDS

Enterprise funds are required to be used to account for operations for which a fee is charged to external
users for goods or services and the activity is (a) financed with debt that is solely secured by a pledge of
the net revenues, (b) has third party requirements that the cost of providing services, including capital
costs, be recovered with fees and charges or (c) establishes fees and charges based on a pricing policy
designed to recover similar costs.

1) Storm Drain Fund — The Storm Drain Fund is used to account for the activities of the City’s storm
drain system.

2) Sanitation Fund — The Sanitation Fund is used to account for the activities of the City’s residential
sanitation and recycling programs.

3) Broadband Fund — The Broadband Fund is used to account for the provision of digital services to
businesses and internet service providers.

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

Internal service funds are used to account for the financing of services provided by one department or
agency to other departments or agencies of the City. Information Technology-This fund is used to
account for the costs of providing computers, related equipment, and software to City departments. A
service fee is charged to City departments monthly.

1) Fleet — This fund is used to account for the costs of maintaining the City’s vehicles and equipment.

2) Information Technology — This fund is used to account for the acquisition and maintenance of all
hardware, software and technology contract services.

AMERICA

s FORKS-:
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CITY OF AMERICAN FORK
Combining Statement of Net Position
Nonmajor Proprietary Funds

4.1.a

June 30, 2020 5
3

Storm Drain Sanitation Broadband -3

Fund Fund Fund Total §

ASSETS o
Current Assets §
Cash and Cash Equivalents S 4,597,046 S 415,462 - S 5,012,508 S
Accounts Receivable Net of Allowance 130,017 139,172 52,751 321,940 2
Total Current Assets 4,727,063 554,634 52,751 5,334,448 %

=

Capital Assets 2
Land 15,560 - - 15,560 .g
Buildings and Structures 368,960 - - 368,960 )
Improvements - Other than Buildings 10,727,204 - 1,200,542 11,927,746 %
Machinery and Equipment 50,785 - 115,413 166,198 r=3
Construction in Progress 80,648 - - 80,648 §
Less Accumulated Depreciation (3,326,309) - (778,137) (4,104,446) _‘;
Capital Assets (Net of Accumulated =
Depreciation) 7,916,848 - 537,818 8,454,666 g

Total Assets 12,643,911 554,634 590,569 13,789,114 §

o

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 4
Resources Related to Pensions 24,786 - 31,966 56,752 o
5

LIABILITIES s
Current Liabilities @
Accounts Payable 72,787 192,312 1,116 266,215 -g
Accrued Liabilities 4,485 - 5,149 9,634 S
Compensated Absences 12,865 - 17,810 30,675 E
Due to Other Funds - - 2,583,962 2,583,962 =
Total Current Liabilities 90,137 192,312 2,608,037 2,890,486 §
Noncurrent Liabilities f_)
Compensated Absences - - 3,008 3,008 5
Net Pension Liability 59,173 - 76,316 135,489 S
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 59,173 - 79,324 138,497 @
Total Liabilities 149,310 192,312 2,687,361 3,028,983 ?
S

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 8
Resources Related to Pensions 28,702 - 37,018 65,720 I
o

NET POSITION E
Net Investment in Capital Assets 7,916,848 - 537,818 8,454,666 GE)
Capital Improvements-Impact Fees 1,815,003 - - 1,815,003 5
Unrestricted 2,758,834 362,322 (2,639,662) 481,494 i
Total Net Position S 12,490,685 S 362,322 S (2,101,844) $ 10,751,163 <
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CITY OF AMERICAN FORK

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

Nonmajor Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

4.1.a

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for Services
Miscellaneous

Total Operating Revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries and Wages
Supplies and Materials
Professional and Technical
Contracted Services
Interfund Charges
Depreciation
Other

Total Operating Expenses

Operating Income (Loss)

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Interest Earnings
Total Non-Operating Revenue (Expenses)

Income (Loss) Before Contributions
and Transfers

CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS
Capital Contributions
Impact Fees
Transfers In
Total Contributions and Transfers

Change in Net Position

Net Position - Beginning
Net Position - Ending

Storm Drain Sanitation Broadband

Fund Fund Fund Totals
S 1,411,339 $ 1,489,263 S 183,034 $§ 3,083,636
14,710 380 - 15,090
1,426,049 1,489,643 183,034 3,098,726
235,006 - 257,445 492,451
71,127 - 9,803 80,930
132,391 8,662 167,324 308,377
- 1,342,479 - 1,342,479
275,246 99,357 48,183 422,786
281,806 - 48,433 330,239
47,222 11,064 22,295 80,581
1,042,798 1,461,562 553,483 3,057,843
383,251 28,081 (370,449) 40,883
72,990 7,114 - 80,104
72,990 7,114 - 80,104
456,241 35,195 (370,449) 120,987
291,710 - - 291,710
516,420 - - 516,420
- - 318,214 318,214
808,130 - 318,214 1,126,344
1,264,371 35,195 (52,235) 1,247,331
11,226,314 327,127 (2,049,609) 9,503,832
S 12,490,685 S 362,322 $ (2,101,844) S 10,751,163
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CITY OF AMERICAN FORK
Combining Statement of Cash Flows

Nonmajor Proprietary Funds
For The Year Ended June 30, 2020

4.1.a

Storm Drain Sanitation Broadband
Fund Fund Fund Totals
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from Customers and Users $1,388,509 $ 1,475,852 S 103,083 S 2,967,445
Payments to Suppliers (182,317)  (1,280,530) (238,475)  (1,701,322)
Interfund Services (244,661) (99,357) 45,099 (298,919)
Payments to Employees (243,601) - (252,617) (496,218)
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 717,930 95,965 (342,909) 470,986
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfers In - - 318,214 318,214
Interfund Loans - - 24,696 24,696
Net Cash Used by Noncapital Financing Activities - - 342,909 342,909
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Impact Fees 516,420 - - 516,420
Grants, Interlocal and Developer Contributions 291,710 - - 291,710
Purchase of Capital Assets (382,950) - - (382,950)
Net Cash Used by Capital and Related Financing
Activities 425,180 - - 425,180
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest Income 72,990 7,114 - 80,105
Net Cash Used by Investing Activities 72,990 7,114 - 80,105
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,216,101 103,079 - 1,319,180
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Year 3,380,945 312,383 - 3,693,328
Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of Year $ 4,597,046 S 415,462 S - $ 5,012,508
Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash Provided
(Used) by Operating Activities:
Operating Income S 383,251 $§ 28,081 S (370,449) S 40,883
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income to Net Cash
Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:
Depreciation Expense 281,806 - 48,433 330,239
(Increase) Decrease in Receivables (6,956) (13,792) 13,332 (7,415)
(Increase) Decrease in Deferred Outflows Related
to Pensions 49,178 - 48,613 97,791
Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable 68,423 81,675 (39,253) 110,846
Increase (Decrease) in Accrued Liabilities 901 - 1,225 2,127
Increase (Decrease) in Accrued Vacation and
Sick Leave (3,317) - (2,103) (5,421)
Increase (Decrease) in Net Pension Liability (67,575) - (61,767) (129,342)
Increase (Decrease) in Deferred Inflows Related
to Pensions 12,218 - 19,060 31,278
Total Adjustments 334,679 67,884 27,540 430,103
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities S 717,930 $§ 95965 S (342,909) S 470,986
Noncash Investing, Capital, and Financing Activities:
Contributions of Capital Assets From Developers S 291,710 S - S - S 291,710
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4.1.a

STATISTICAL SECTION

This part of the City of American Fork comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed
information as a context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note
disclosures, and required supplementary information says about the City’s overall financial health.

FINANCIAL TRENDS — These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the
city’s financial performance and well-being have changed over time.

Net PoSition by COMPONENT........iiiiiciiee ettt e e e et e e e e sbae e e e sbteeeeebaaeeeeastaeeenans 107
Changes IN N POSITION ..occviiie et e e e e e et e e e s bt e e e e rataeeeentaaeesannaneenn 108
Governmental FUNAs — FUND BalanCes.......cuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiciiin ettt ssine s s n 112
Governmental Funds — Changes in FUNd Balances ..........coccvvieiiiiiieecciiie e 114

REVENUE CAPACITY — These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the city’s most
significant local revenue sources: Property tax, sales tax, and water revenue.

Assessed Value and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property.......cccoceeeecieeecccieeeccciiee e, 116
Property Tax Rates — Direct and Overlapping GoOVernmeNts .......cccoccvveeeecieiececieeeeecieeeeecveeee s 117
PrinCipal Property TaX PAYEIS......uccciccuieeeieiieeeeeitieeeeetteeeeetteeeeetteeesebaeeeeeastseesesteeessstseessnssnnaeanns 118
Property Tax Levied and CollECHIONS ......cicuiiii it e e e e e 119
PrinCipal SAlES TaX PAYEIS ..vueiiiiiiieeiiiieee ettt e eestite e e ettt e e e stae e e s sbte e e e s bteeeesabteeeesasteeessstaeessnssanessnns 120
Direct and Overlapping Sales TaX RAateS........uiiiciiiiiiciiie ettt e e e sare e e 121
Charges for Water, Sewer, and STOrm Drain FEES ......ccccuirieeeiieeeciiireeeee ettt e e e e estrrreeeeee e 122

DEBT CAPACITY — These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the
city’s current levels of outstanding debt and the government’s ability to issue additional debt in the
future.

Ratios of Outstanding Debt DY TYPE ...ueiiiciiiii et e e e ebre e e e eaes 123
Ratios of General Bonded Debt Outstanding.........coccveiiiiiiiiiiciiie e 124
Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt.........cccccveieieiiiieiecieee e 125
Legal Debt Margin INfOrmMation.........c.ueeiiiiie ettt e et e e e e ba e e e e ebreeeeeaes 126
PledZed REVENUE COVEIAEE. ...cciviiieeetieeeeeiteeeeeitteeeeetteeeeetteeeesbteeeeasteeeeaassseesasteeasassseessassanaeanns 127

DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT INFORMATION — These schedules offer demographic and
economic indicators to help the reader understand the environment within which the city’s financial
activities take place.

Demographic and ECONOMIC StatiStiCS .....ccuuiiiiiiiiie ittt e e e e are e e e 128
AT el T o T |l '] o] (o3 V7Y - RPN 129
Full-time Equivalent City Government Employees by Function/Program..........ccccceevevveeveennenne. 130

OPERATING INFORMATION — These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader
understand how the information in the city’s financial report relates to the services the city provides and
the activities it performs.
Operating Indicators by FUNCLION/PrOZram .......ccveieeiieeiecreeiteesieeeeeereeereeteesreesteestneeaveesveenveens 132
Capital Asset Statistics by FUNCHION/PrOZram ........ccveiviiieeieeiteenieeceeereeereereesreesteesteeeveeveesreens 134

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the comprehensive
annual financial reports for the relevant year.
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CITY OF AMERICAN FORK
Net Position by Component
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(accrual basis of accounting)

4.1.a

Governmental Activities
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total Governmental Activities Net Position

Business-type Activities
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total Business-type Activities Net Position

Primary Government
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total Primary Government Net Position

Governmental Activities
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total Governmental Activities Net Position

Business-type Activities
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total Business-type Activities Net Position

Primary Government
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total Primary Government Net Position

Fiscal Year

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
S 86,460,099 $ 87,054,735 $ 88,241,186 $ 90,845,044 S 93,665,386
6,005,550 8,881,901 17,382,879 18,527,450 22,448,878
4,989,870 4,882,410 777,657 5,205,301 10,008,510
97,455,519 100,819,046 106,401,722 114,577,795 126,122,774
50,007,841 58,941,525 66,109,556 75,253,929 80,253,639
- 2,638 1,254,015 2,232,191 5,389,489
8,318,150 9,748,980 12,271,111 17,535,009 19,903,567
58,325,991 68,693,143 79,634,682 95,021,129 105,546,695
136,467,940 145,996,260 154,350,742 166,098,973 173,919,025
6,005,550 8,884,539 18,636,894 20,759,641 27,838,367
13,308,020 14,631,390 13,048,768 22,740,310 29,912,077

$ 155,781,510

$ 169,512,189

S 186,036,404 $ 209,598,924

$ 231,669,469

Fiscal Year

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
S 57,444,244 S 63,582,936 S 68,037,853 S 71,127,403 S 77,235,965
1,104,029 750,241 5,506,968 5,183,412 5,296,247
11,397,457 10,709,268 8,920,179 9,904,569 5,851,287
69,945,730 75,042,445 82,465,000 86,215,384 88,383,499
41,068,585 41,371,052 45,269,062 47,049,142 48,714,918
688,409 366,150 450,740 320,639 60,910
9,026,278 8,888,759 6,099,071 7,493,681 7,319,026
50,783,272 50,625,961 51,818,873 54,863,462 56,094,854
98,512,829 104,953,988 113,306,915 118,176,545 125,950,883
1,792,438 1,116,391 5,957,708 5,504,051 5,357,157
20,423,735 19,598,027 15,019,250 17,398,250 13,170,313

S 120,729,002

S 125,668,406

S 134,283,873 S 141,078,846

S 144,478,353
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CITY OF AMERICAN FORK
Changes in Net Position
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(accrual basis of accounting)

4.1.a

Expenses
Governmental Activities:
General Government
Community Services***
Public Safety
Public Improvements (Public Works)
Parks, Recreation, and Culture
Recreation and Culture***
Redevelopment/Public Improvement*
Other
Interest on Long-term Debt
Total Governmental Activities Expenses
Business-type Activities
Utility*
Water
Sewer
Storm Drain
Sanitation & Recycling
Broadband
Total Business-type Activities Expenses
Total Primary Government Expenses

Program Revenues
Governmental Activities:
Charges for Services:
General Government
Community Services***
Public Safety

Public Improvements (Public Works)*

Parks, Recreation, and Culture
Recreation and Culture***
Other
Operating Grants and Contributions
Capital Grants and Contributions

Total Governmental Activities Programs Revenues

Business-type Activities:

Charges for Services:
Utility**
Water**
Sewer**
Storm Drain**
Sanitation**
Broadband**

Capital Grants and Contributions

Total Business-type Activities Program Revenues
Total Primary Governmental Program Revenues

American Fork City Comprehensive Annual Financial Report

=

>

Fiscal Year ©

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 g
c

®

=

$ 3,055,046 $ 3,295,300 $ 2,890,554 3,159,806 3,246,024 Q
- - - - - o

Y

5,557,713 5,941,973 6,253,368 6,595,672 7,307,342 S
4498409 2675512 2,942,688 3,815,687 4,091,567 ®
3,779,536 3,844,036 3,658,139 4,595,149 4,821,504 %
- - - - - )

o

) . ) § A E=
2,856,238 3,012,007 3,439,593 2,126,310 2,286,097 5
843,567 707,453 570,466 463,498 420,068 o

o

20,590,509 19,476,281 19,754,808 20,756,122 22,172,602 S
g

10,771,893 10,409,632 11,136,987 11,385,465 11,475,488 S
- - - ; - ®

°

- - - - - c

®

- - - - - c

] i ] i ] S
627,666 526,548 456,574 313,049 300,291 S

c

11,399,559 10,936,180 11,593,561 11,698,514 11,775,779 a
31,990,068 30,412,461 31,348,369 32,454,636 33,948,381 (%
o

o

)

o

2,359,828 2,391,351 2,930,625 2,826,086 2,842,021 g
- - - ; . c

®

1,553,995 1,466,218 1,829,863 1,657,404 1,916,989 =
§ ] . ) _ ©
2,146,883  2,224513 2,676,950 2,580,805 3,088,685 5
- - - - - c
1,418,492 1,444,883 1,341,281 1,353,946 1,516,490 25
1,025,270 1,016,569 956,816 903,488 973,579 E
720,047 2,603,074 3,792,164 726,306 2,053,979 S
9,224,515 11,146,608 13,527,699 10,048,035 12,391,743 <
S

€

o

9,875,728 10,186,324 10,496,252 13,406,241 12,677,709 o
- ) - ) - S

. ) . ) . «

>

- - - - - i

X - Rk - i c
258,309 187,345 233,974 217,380 231,187 GE"
1,500,194 465,969 1,536,480 563,106 969,247 <
11,634,231 10,839,638 12,266,706 14,186,727 13,878,143 IS
20,858,746 21,986,246 25,794,405 24,234,762 26,269,886 <
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CITY OF AMERICAN FORK
Changes in Net Position
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(accrual basis of accounting)

4.1.a

(continued)

Net (Expense)/Revenue
Governmental Activities

Business-type Activities
Total Primary Government Net Expense

General Revenues and Other Changes in Net Position

Governmental Activities:
Taxes
Property Taxes
Sales and Use Taxes
Energy Sales and Use Tax
Other Taxes

Gain (Loss) on Dispostion of Capital Assets

Investment Earnings
Transfers

Total Governmental Activities

Business-type Activities:
Gain (Loss) on Disposal of Capital Assets
Investment Earnings
Transfers

Total Business-type Activities

Total Primary Government

Change in Net Position
Governmental Activities
Business-type Activities

Total Primary Government

*New functional breakout for fiscal year 2017

Fiscal Year

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
(11,365,994) (8,329,673) (6,227,109) (10,708,087) (9,780,859)
234,672 (96,542) 673,145 2,488,213 2,102,364
(11,131,322) (8,426,215) (5,553,964) (8,219,874) (7,678,495)
5,290,281 5,673,259 5,497,187 5,606,622 5,833,877
5,095,374 5,534,281 5,910,616 6,235,351 6,548,967
1,390,990 1,443,249 1,564,161 1,660,027 1,764,609
539,928 552,085 528,945 515,903 570,172
38,919 (9,430) - 83,532 (18,270)
89,923 111,844 93,645 34,178 119,041
98,000 121,100 124,900 322,858 349,141
12,543,415 13,426,388 13,719,454 14,458,471 15,167,537

- - 582,274.00 831,983 -

38,530 60,331 62,392 47,249 8,389
(98,000) (121,100) (124,900) (322,858) (349,141)
(59,470) (60,769) 519,766 556,374 (340,752)
12,483,945 13,365,619 14,239,220 15,014,845 14,826,785
1,177,421 5,096,715 7,492,345 3,750,384 5,386,678
175,202 (157,311) 1,192,911 3,044,587 1,761,612

$ 1,352,623 $ 4,939,404 S 8,685,256 $ 6,794,971 $ 7,148,290

**Utility fund was split into separate functional categories beginning fiscal year 2018
***New Functional breakout for fiscal year 2019. Parks and Cemetery were moved to Community Services.
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CITY OF AMERICAN FORK
Changes in Net Position
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(accrual basis of accounting)

4.1.a

Expenses
Governmental Activities:
General Government
Community Services***
Public Safety
Public Improvements (Public Works)
Parks, Recreation, and Culture
Recreation and Culture***
Redevelopment/Public Improvement*
Other
Interest on Long-term Debt
Total Governmental Activities Expenses
Business-type Activities
Utility*
Water
Sewer
Storm Drain
Sanitation & Recycling
Broadband
Total Business-type Activities Expenses
Total Primary Government Expenses

Program Revenues
Governmental Activities:
Charges for Services:
General Government
Community Services***
Public Safety

Public Improvements (Public Works)*

Parks, Recreation, and Culture
Recreation and Culture***
Other
Operating Grants and Contributions
Capital Grants and Contributions

Total Governmental Activities Programs Revenues

Business-type Activities:

Charges for Services:
Utility**
Water**
Sewer**
Storm Drain**
Sanitation**
Broadband**

Capital Grants and Contributions

Total Business-type Activities Program Revenues
Total Primary Governmental Program Revenues

American Fork City Comprehensive Annual Financial Report

(continued) =

3

Fiscal Year ©

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 5
3

=

$ 3,572,021 $ 2,795355 $ 2,070,697 S 2,452,330 S 2,197,343 é
; ; ; 3,471,468 3,633,976 S
7,943,707 9,030,405 10,267,680 10,648,298 10,411,791 S
4,564,325 9,378,361 8,216,172 8,701,583 11,645,677 ®
5,218,915 6,006,337 7,310,967 - - %
- - - 3,956,814 3,592,816 =

- 704,508.00 571,588 581,388 627,987 2
2,419,737 1,619,476 2,043,773 1,189,608 922,355 %
237,068 179,763 142,936 187,983 198,317 1)
23,955,773 29,714,205 30,623,813 31,189,472 33,230,262 %
o

11,731,500 11,267,151 ; - - §
- - 6,542,288 6,624,070 6,956,281 ©

- - 3,065,987 4,474,585 4,323,263 2

- - 791,803 1,060,060 1,039,367 g

; - 1,233,453 1,284,101 1,460,830 2
322,303 362,011 295,890 476,902 550,118 &
12,053,803 11,629,162 11,929,421 13,919,718 14,329,859 §
36,009,576 41,343,367 42,553,234 45,109,190 47,560,121 éE
=

a

i

3,307,663 2,097,362 1,392,988 2,567,789 2,789,007 g8
- - - 346,240 332,102 S
2,059,157 1,935,945 2,828,770 2,485,530 3,384,129 =
- 3,353,292 1,971,531 1,524,178 2,011,386 Lc_:
2,793,323 2,360,776 2,421,329 - - g
- - - 2,268,153 1,856,633 c
1,454,551 237,238 616,261 2,138,820 913,174 25
1,194,235 150,212 197,024 210,911 1,620,919 E
5,989,128 6,091,008 8,080,920 8,350,932 10,129,814 S
16,798,057 16,225,833 17,508,823 19,892,553 23,037,164 <
S

S

o

12,788,919 13,107,302 - - - 8
- - 7,637,581 8,120,892 8,251,768 S

- - 5,033,463 5,648,326 5,976,165 N

- - 1,253,989 1,420,049 1,499,039 E

; - 1,339,449 1,392,773 1,496,757 =
282,809 143,028 206,741 233,303 183,034 GE-’
1,493,957 8,722,345 8,121,255 12,239,099 7,130,448 <
14,565,685 21,972,675 23,592,478 29,054,442 24,537,211 E
31,363,742 38,198,508 41,101,301 48,946,995 47,574,375 <
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4.1.a

CITY OF AMERICAN FORK
Changes in Net Position
Last Ten Fiscal Years

(accrual basis of accounting) (continued)
Fiscal Year
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
Net (Expense)/Revenue
Governmental Activities (7,157,716) (13,488,372) (13,114,990) (11,296,919) (10,193,098)
Business-type Activities 2,511,882 10,343,513 11,663,057 15,134,724 10,207,352
Total Primary Government Net Expense (4,645,834) (3,144,859) (1,451,933) 3,837,805 14,254

General Revenues and Other Changes in Net Position
Governmental Activities:

Taxes
Property Taxes 5,752,741 5,631,704 5,925,821 6,433,001 6,595,930
Sales and Use Taxes 7,966,842 8,667,242 9,138,947 9,955,823 12,091,884
Energy Sales and Use Tax 1,438,048 1,556,309 1,727,350 1,745,911 1,787,645
Other Taxes 577,903 779,594 765,163 752,129 754,486
Gain (Loss) on Dispostion of Capital Assets 28,918 193,971 4,028 24,085 21,328
Investment Earnings 128,617 288,598 414,839 813,766 660,147
Transfers 336,667 92,200 721,518 (251,723) (318,214)
Total Governmental Activities 16,229,736 17,209,618 18,697,666 19,472,992 21,593,206
Business-type Activities:
Gain (Loss) on Disposal of Capital Assets 15,980.00 8,678 - - -
Investment Earnings 39,942 107,161 - - -
Transfers (336,667) (92,200) (721,518) 251,723 318,214
Total Business-type Activities (280,745) 23,639 (721,518) 251,723 318,214
Total Primary Government 15,948,991 17,233,257 17,976,148 19,724,715 21,911,420

Change in Net Position

Governmental Activities 9,072,020 3,721,246 5,582,676 8,176,073 11,400,108
Business-type Activities 2,231,137 10,367,152 10,941,539 15,386,447 10,525,566
Total Primary Government $ 11,303,157 $ 14,088,398 $ 16,524,215 $ 23,562,520 $ 21,925,674
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CITY OF AMERICAN FORK

Fund Balances, Governmental Funds
Last Ten Fiscal Years

(modified accrual basis of accounting)

4.1.a

General Fund

Nonspendable

Restricted
Assigned
Unassigned

Total General Fund

All Other Governmental Funds
Nonspendable

Restricted
Committed
Assigned

Total All Other Governmental Funds

General Fund

Nonspendable

Restricted
Assigned
Unassigned

Total General Fund

All Other Governmental Funds
Nonspendable

Restricted
Committed
Assigned

Total All Other Governmental Funds

Fiscal Year

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
S - 344,182 §$ 394,389 §$ 32,488 S 1,613
- 22,331 52,780 30,325 -

- - 6,000 256,366 -
4,737,401 3,688,156 2,429,940 2,672,934 6,243,556
S 4,737,401 4,054,669 S 2,883,109 $ 2,992,113 $ 6,245,169
S - 4,455 § 448,198 S 18,428 S 18,428
6,005,550 8,859,570 17,382,879 21,080,214 31,485,052
- 152,926 174,738 211,958 224,756
2,429,673 3,875,840 4,783,618 5,438,250 7,808,193
S 8,435,223 12,892,791 S 22,789,433 S 26,748,850 S 39,536,429

Fiscal Year

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

$ . -8 -8 -8 .
3,140,856 3,101,400 5,080,031 5,085,473 4,915,646
S 3,140,856 3,101,400 S 5,080,031 S 5,085,473 S 4,915,646
$ - - s - s s -
3,598,813 4,246,766 - 5,183,412 5,296,247
6,159,169 4,373,993 9,409,631 4,751,441 3,385,180
S 9,757,982 8,620,759 S 9,409,631 S 9,934,853 S 8,681,427
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4.1.a

CITY OF AMERICAN FORK
Changes in Fund Balances, Governmental Funds
Last Ten Fiscal Years

(modified accrual basis of accounting) =
o

Fiscal Year 3

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 <

Revenues 8
Taxes S 12,462,621 $ 13,149,836 S 13,532,623 $ 14,089,752 $ 14,499,467 2
Licenses and Permits 395,073 426,757 725,491 514,042 615,566 py
Intergovernmental 1,025,270 2,701,902 2,793,857 903,488 1,828,419 q
Charges for Services 3,349,109 3,336,093 3,862,975 3,585,168 3,790,434 N
Other Fees and Services 2,534,847 2,563,588 3,533,816 3,581,875 4,450,310 2
Fines and Forfeitures 940,839 844,292 337,822 296,228 505,283 =
Impact Fees - - - - - =
Interest 89,923 111,844 93,645 83,533 119,042 2
Miscellaneous 1,054,168 1,274,031 2,250,978 1,177,311 1,329,301 =
Total Revenues 21,851,850 24,408,343 27,131,207 24,231,397 27,137,822 g
c

Expenditures I
General Government 2,783,295 3,077,211 2,804,075 3,193,087 3,299,610 o
Community Services** - - - - - §
Public Safety 5,309,135 5,807,469 6,096,035 6,234,622 7,294,729 S
Public Works 3,263,774 2,389,844 3,059,266 3,186,887 3,515,264 ]
Parks, Recreation, and Culture 3,308,963 3,494,917 4,341,405 4,211,446 4,715,931 g
Recreation and Culture** - - - - - o
Redevelopment and Public b=
Improvement* - - - - - %
Other 2,733,750 2,846,528 2,052,477 2,023,758 2,330,273 &
Debt Service ~
Principal 2,222,000 5,896,613 2,264,709 2,123,297 3,901,155 E
Interest and Fiscal Charges 858,174 809,761 612,845 509,400 451,694 %
Capital Outlay 1,851,798 3,810,830 4,351,615 2,787,682 5,079,214 E
Total Expenditures 22,330,889 28,133,173 25,582,427 24,270,179 30,587,870 -g
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues G
over Expenditures (479,039)  (3,724,830) 1,548,780 (38,782)  (3,450,048) =
Other Financing Sources (Uses) g
Issuance of Long Term Debt S 433,460 S 777,051 S 1,092,000 S 199,684 S 251,350 é
Proceeds From Refunding Bonds 6,302,017 1,650,000 1,517,000 3,393,000 1,684,400 o
Payment to Refunded Bonds Escrow / (6,204,017) - (1,515,178) (3,346,000) - 5
Sale of Capital Assets - - - - - S
Capital Contributions - - - - - S
Transfers In - 6,865,814 3,835,875 61,561,192 5,200,470 s
Transfers Out - (6,744,714) (3,710,975) (5,833,336) (4,851,329) g
Total Other Financing O
Sources (Uses) 531,460 2,548,151 1,218,722 55,974,540 2,284,891 @
N

Net Change in Fund Balances S 52,421 S (1,176,679) § 2,767,502 S 55,935,758 $ (1,165,157) E
Debt Service as a Percentage %
of Noncapital Expenditures 15.0% 27.6% 13.6% 12.3% 17.1% e

e

* Function reporting categories were changed in fiscal year 2017. §
**New functional reporting category for fiscal year 2019. Parks and Cemetery moved from Parks, Recreation, b

and Culture.
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CITY OF AMERICAN FORK
Changes in Fund Balances, Governmental Funds
Last Ten Fiscal Years

4.1.a

(modified accrual basis of accounting) (continued) =
o

Fiscal Year 3

2016 2017* 2018 2019 2020 <

Revenues 8
Taxes S 14,917,330 $ 16,641,779 S 17,563,850 S 18,857,890 $ 21,257,199 2
Licenses and Permits 786,932 1,311,426 1,185,745 1,242,592 1,367,011 py
Intergovernmental 3,779,854 1,871,476 2,517,779 2,133,364 3,521,719 q
Charges for Services 3,988,112 7,691,921 6,575,437 6,930,953 8,146,736 N
Other Fees and Services 4,929,863 - - - - 8
Fines and Forfeitures 384,286 301,237 320,271 348,056 353,424 GC)
Impact Fees 1,934,551 3,508,153 4,536,791 4,044,480 5,943,233 =
Interest 128,618 288,598 412,905 812,425 656,431 2
Miscellaneous 567,689 728,838 897,644 1,058,436 866,178 e
Total Revenues 31,417,235 32,343,428 34,010,422 35,428,196 42,111,931 g
c

Expenditures I
General Government 3,577,553 2,741,637 2,260,197 2,381,050 2,166,929 o
Community Services** - - - 3,142,201 3,317,180 §
Public Safety 7,627,068 8,451,433 9,417,218 9,487,030 11,424,309 S
Public Works 3,001,782 5,380,072 4,137,204 4,702,513 4,748,529 ]
Parks, Recreation, and Culture 5,044,723 5,438,651 6,784,885 - - g
Recreation and Culture** - - - 3,740,820 3,412,295 'ﬁ
Redevelopment and Public b=
Improvement* - 704,508 571,588 581,388 627,498 %
Other 2,330,496 1,541,899 1,566,918 765,894 423,586 &
Debt Service ~
Principal 2,314,469 2,255,082 3,049,737 1,753,000 1,125,000 E
Interest and Fiscal Charges 234,690 176,689 136,991 156,884 131,933 %
Capital Outlay 8,047,570 2,761,639 1,612,133 3,659,238 6,947,007 E
Total Expenditures 32,178,351 29,451,610 29,536,871 30,370,018 34,324,266 g
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues G
over Expenditures (761,116) 2,891,818 4,473,551 5,058,178 7,787,665 ,_%
Other Financing Sources (Uses) g
Issuance of Long Term Debt S - S 588,292 S 4,000,000 S - S 8,601,366 é
Proceeds From Refunding Bonds - - - - - o
Payment to Refunded Bonds Escrow / - - - - - 5
Sale of Capital Assets - 202,526 4,500 4,000 8,880 S
Capital Contributions - - - - 84,794.00 S
Transfers In 5,514,325 5,323,200 6,700,062 3,774,702 3,452,543 s
Transfers Out (5,177,658) (5,231,000) (6,906,200) (4,315,290) (3,894,613) g
Total Other Financing O
Sources (Uses) 336,667 883,018 3,798,362 (536,588) 8,252,970 @
N

Net Change in Fund Balances S (424,449) S 3,774,836 S 8,271,913 $ 4,521,590 $ 16,040,635 E
Debt Service as a Percentage %
of Noncapital Expenditures 10.6% 9.1% 11.4% 7.2% 4.6% e

E

<
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CITY OF AMERICAN FORK

Assessed Value and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property

Last Ten Fiscal Years

4.1.a

Assessed Value

Fiscal Personal Total Taxable Total Direct Tax Estimated Actual as a Percentage
Year Real Property Property (1) Assessed Value Rate Value of Actual Value
2011 1,440,098,785 118,661,531 1,558,760,316 0.002794 2,187,103,797 71.27%
2012 1,372,480,900 121,362,013 1,493,842,913 0.002812 2,108,561,775 70.85%
2013 1,363,565,561 125,804,593 1,489,370,154 0.002750 2,093,096,626 71.16%
2014 1,409,928,064 119,916,866 1,529,844,930 0.002540 2,156,622,526 70.94%
2015 1,548,870,234 123,481,592 1,672,351,826 0.002362 2,383,348,998 70.17%
2016 1,696,868,031 129,305,097 1,826,173,128 0.002261 2,599,350,351 70.25%
2017 1,830,812,843 148,940,897 1,979,753,740 0.002082 2,809,050,255 70.48%
2018 2,048,719,252 163,437,866 2,212,157,118 0.002077 3,146,551,146 70.30%
2019 2,244,488,155 170,056,220 2,414,544,375 0.002027 3,467,040,272 69.64%
2020 2,636,072,082 182,553,694 2,818,625,776 0.001906 4,061,096,712 69.41%

(1) Personal Property has been combined with centrally assessed values.

Source: Utah State Tax Commission - Property Tax Division - https://taxrates.utah.gov
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4.1.a

CITY OF AMERICAN FORK

Direct and Overlapping Property Tax Rates
Last Ten Fiscal Years

(rate per $1,000 of assessed value)

City Direct Rates Overlapping Rates
North Utah
County Central Utah County
Assessing Water Water
Fiscal Total School and Utah Conservancy Conservancy Total Tax
Year City Rates Direct Rate Districts Collecting County District District Rate
2011 2.794 2.794 8.812 0.199 1.143 0.436 0.028 13.412
2012 2.812 2.812 8.828 0.197 1.127 0.455 0.029 13.448
2013 2.750 2.750 8.699 0.253 1.006 0.446 0.028 13.182
2014 2.540 2.540 8.096 0.233 0.916 0.422 0.025 12.232
2015 2.362 2.362 8.177 0.228 0.870 0.405 0.024 12.066
2016 2.261 2.261 7.718 0.215 0.834 0.400 0.023 11.451
2017 2.082 2.082 7.167 0.190 0.779 0.400 0.021 10.639
2018 2.077 2.077 7.033 0.179 0.732 0.400 0.019 10.440
2019 2.027 2.027 6.699 0.167 0.672 0.400 0.017 9.982
2020 1.906 1.906 6.800 0.161 1.041 0.400 0.016 10.324

Source: Utah State Property Tax Division - https://taxrates.utah.gov/
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CITY OF AMERICAN FORK
Principal Property Tax Payers
Current Year and Ten Years Ago

4.1.a

Taxpayer

IHC Health Services Inc

AFCC Limited

North Pointe Buildings LLC
Roderick Enterprises

Lakeview Meadows LLC

Pacificorp

Walmart Real Estate Business Trust
AF 500 E Holdings LLC

Questar Gas (Dominion Energy)
American Fork SC LLC

Twinlab Corporation

American Fork Shopping Center LLC
Qwest Corp

AFCCII LLC

C&R North Pointe Building "C" LLC
HD Developmetn of Maryland Inc
Kohls Department Stores Inc

Total

Source: Utah County Assessor's Office

2019 (Tax Calendar Year)

2009 (Tax Calendar Year)

American Fork City Comprehensive Annual Financial Report

Percentage Percentage
of Total City of Total City
Taxable Taxable
Taxable Assessed Taxable Assessed
Assessed Value  Rank Value Assessed Value  Rank Value
S 84,281,400 1 3.49%
73,546,600 2 3.05% S 32,638,800 1 2.22%
45,496,500 3 1.88%
32,561,900 4 1.35%
25,289,100 5 1.05%
24,933,166 6 1.03% 12,146,138 4 0.82%
21,791,500 7 0.90% 11,555,400 5 0.78%
19,943,600 8
18,742,955 9 0.78%
18,779,400 10 0.78%
15,709,600 2 1.07%
13,396,400 3 0.91%
11,509,796 6 0.78%
10,708,900 7 0.73%
8,662,500 8 0.59%
8,258,800 9 0.56%
7,793,300 10 0.53%
S 365,366,121 15.13% $ 132,379,634 8.99%
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CITY OF AMERICAN FORK

Property Tax Levied and Collections

Last Ten Fiscal Years

4.1.a

Collected within the

Fiscal Year of the Levy

Total Collections to Date

Fiscal

Year Tax Levied Collections

Ended for the Fiscal Percentag  for Prior Percentag

June 30 Year Amount e of Levy Years Amount e of Levy

2011 3,757,932 3,398,338 90.43% 203,333 3,601,671 95.84%
2012 3,846,022 3,611,168 93.89% 234,854 3,846,022  100.00%
2013 3,851,323 3,557,369 92.37% 288,341 3,845,710 99.85%
2014 3,896,614 3,663,388 94.01% 233,226 3,896,614  100.00%
2015 4,265,081 3,984,334 93.42% 249,547 4,233,881 99.27%
2016 4,328,459 3,975,369 91.84% 292,433 4,267,802 98.60%
2017 4,486,561 4,159,969 92.72% 250,173 4,410,141 98.30%
2018 4,625,924 4,301,956 93.00% 231,939 4,533,895 98.01%
2019 5,015,580 4,742,197 94.55% 266,019 5,008,216 99.85%
2020 5,719,547 5,387,654 94.20% 288,802 5,676,456 99.25%

Source: Utah County Treasurer's Office
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CITY OF AMERICAN FORK
Principal Sales Tax Payers
Current Year and Ten Years Ago

4.1.a

2020 2010
American Percentage American Percentage
Fork Direct of Total Fork Direct of Total

Tax Payer* POS Rank Direct POS POS Rank Direct POS
Auto Sales* $1,018,867 1 10.22% S 483,890 2 9.80%
Retail* 935,439 2 9.38 800,812 1 16.23
Retail* 637,949 3 6.40 299,425 3 6.07
Auto Sales* 540,231 4 5.42 188,341 5 3.82
Retail* 392,601 5 3.94 278,561 4 5.64
Auto Sales* 334,626 6 3.36
Auto Sales* 233,170 7 2.34 0.00
Retail* 280,426 8 2.81 0.00
Utility* 215,620 9 2.16 132,360 8 2.68
Auto Sales* 205,313 10 2.06
Retail* 161,491 6 3.27
Retail* 141,367 7 2.86
Auto Sales* 127,139 9 2.58
Retail* 80,080 10 1.62

ota ) ) . (] ) ) . 0
Total S 4,794,240 48.06% S 2,693,466 54.57%

Source: Utah State Tax Commission

*Due to state statute, taxpayer industries have been published rather than taxpayer names.

American Fork City Comprehensive Annual Financial Report

Attachment: FY 2020 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (Presentation and acceptance of the June 30, 2020 financial audit)

Packet Pg. 146




CITY OF AMERICAN FORK
Direct and Overlapping Sales Tax Rates

Last Ten Fiscal Years

4.1.a

American
Fork City Utah State of Mass Transportation Total
Fiscal Year Direct Rate  County Utah Transit Tax Infrastructure  PARC Tax Tax Rate

2011 1.00% 0.25% 4.70% 0.80% 6.75%
2012 1.00% 0.25% 4.70% 0.80% 6.75%
2013 1.00% 0.25% 4.70% 0.80% 6.75%
2014 1.00% 0.25% 4.70% 0.80% 6.75%
2015 1.00% 0.25% 4.70% 0.80% 0.10% 6.85%
2016 1.00% 0.25% 4.70% 0.80% 0.10% 6.85%
2017 1.00% 0.25% 4.70% 0.80% 0.10% 6.85%
2018 1.00% 0.25% 4.70% 0.80% 0.10% 6.85%
2019 1.00% 0.25% 4.85% 0.80% 0.25% 0.10% 7.25%
2020 1.00% 0.25% 4.85% 0.80% 0.25% 0.10% 7.25%

Sources: Utah State Tax Commission
http://www.tax.utah.gov/sales/rates
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CITY OF AMERICAN FORK
Charges for Water Fees
Last Ten Fiscal Years

4.1.a

._§

Fiscal Year ©

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 5

Water Sales S 4,185,727 S 4,316,570 S 4,399,842 S 3,881,868 S 5,086,565 S
Secondary Water Sales 2,462,927 2,505,756 2,553,601 2,667,593 2,865,788 =
Other 1,267,982 7,645,915 7,395,504 11,168,805 5,788,741 I
Total Water Fund Revenue S 7,916,636 S 14,468,241 S 14,348,947 S 17,718,266 S 13,741,094 Q
S

e

Fiscal Year =

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2

Water Sales S 2,504,513 S 3,253,086 S 3,229,413 S 3,758,305 S 3,896,571 e
Secondary Water Sales 1,505,077 1,551,472 1,673,190 2,147,205 2,295,288 g
Other 97,845 493,841 1,481,684 1,344,831 609,834 2
Total Water Fund Revenue S 4,107,435 S 5,298,399 S 6,384,287 S 7,250,341 S 6,801,693 g
S

Source: City of American Fork &8
Note: Other includes Finance Charges, Connection Fees, Impact Fees, Interest Earnings, and Donated Assets _t%
c

°

CITY OF AMERICAN FORK g
Charges for Sewer and Storm Drain Fees a
Last Ten Fiscal Years g
a

Fiscal Year *g

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 &

Sewer Fees S 4,685,966 S 4,694,400 S 4,891,557 S 5,475,826 S 5,794,583 E
Storm Drain Fees 1,137,066 1,136,912 1,222,772 1,332,886 1,380,754 .g
Other 591,714 1,634,158 1,583,012 2,901,388 1,940,989 S
Total Water Fund Revenue S 6,414,746 S 7,465,470 S 7,697,341 S 9,710,100 $ 9,116,326 L%
<

2

Fiscal Year é

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 4

Sewer Fees S 4,319,004 S 4,374,784 S 4,468,923 S 4,524,695 S 4,620,284 Z’
Storm Drain Fees 725,766 832,290 868,732 976,958 1,088,181 2
Other 78,172 74,563 102,384 139,968 131,060 o
Total Water Fund Revenue S 5,122,942 $ 5,281,637 S 5,440,039 S 5,641,621 S 5,839,525 ?
S

Source: City of American Fork I
Note: Other includes Finance Charges, Connection Fees, Impact Fees, Interest Earnings, and Donated Assets Q
o

IS

)

€

<

8

<
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4.1.a

CITY OF AMERICAN FORK

Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type
Last Ten Years

(dollars in thousands except per capita)

Governmental Activities

Fiscal General Special

Year  Obligation Bonds Revenue Bonds Assessment Note Payable Capital Leases
2011 12,355 3,420 2,188 107 330
2012 11,090 2,980 - 54 807
2013 9,757 3,612 - - 424
2014 8,398 3,110 - - 456
2015 6,868 2,701 - - 429
2016 5,280 2,200 - - 204
2017 3,645 1,743 - - 629
2018 1,955 4,383 - - 1,157
2019 940 3,645 - - 1,137
2020 8,210 3,285 - - 2,746

Business-type Activities

Fiscal General Total Primary Percentage of

Year  Obligation Bonds Revenue Bonds Government Personal Income Per Capita
2011 46,460 3,285 68,145 14.46% 2,555
2012 45,335 2,885 63,151 12.47% 2,330
2013 44,185 800 58,778 11.24% 2,145
2014 42,970 769 55,703 10.40% 1,995
2015 42,372 737 53,107 9.35% 1,881
2016 43,621 705 52,010 8.39% 1,837
2017 42,048 672 48,737 7.54% 1,694
2018 40,414 638 48,547 7.02% 1,644
2019 38,700 603 45,025 5.66% 1,385
2020 36,916 567 51,724 6.19% 1,560

Notes:  Details regarding the City's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial stateme
See Demographic and Economic Statistics for personal income and population data.
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4.1.a

CITY OF AMERICAN FORK

Ratios of General Bonded Debt Oustanding
Last Ten Years

(dollars in thousands except per capita)

Percentage of

Less: Amounts Estimated Actual
Fiscal General Obligation Available in Debt Taxable Value of
Year Bonds (1) Service Fund (2) Total Property (3) Per Capita (4)
2011 58,815 85 58,730 2.69% 2,202
2012 56,425 - 56,425 2.68% 2,081
2013 53,942 - 53,942 2.58% 1,968
2014 51,368 - 51,368 2.38% 1,840
2015 49,240 - 49,240 2.07% 1,744
2016 48,901 - 48,901 1.88% 1,727
2017 45,693 - 45,693 1.63% 1,588
2018 42,369 - 42,369 1.35% 1,435
2019 39,640 - 39,640 1.14% 1,219
2020 45,126 - 45,126 1.11% 1,361

Notes: (1) This is the general bonded debt of both governmental and business-type activities, net of original
issuance discounts and premiums.
(2) This is the amount restricted for debt service principal payments.
(3) See the schedule of Assessed Value and the Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property for
property value data.
(4) Population data can be found in the Schedule of Demographic and Economic Statistics.
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4.1.a

CITY OF AMERICAN FORK
Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt
As of June 30, 2020

Estimated Estimated Share

Debt Percentage of Direct and

Government Unit Outstanding Applicable Overlapping Debt
Debt repaid with property taxes

Alpine School District 628,935,742 9.71% 61,064,751

Central Utah Water Conservation District 192,855,487 6.32% 12,184,881
Subtotal overlapping debt 73,249,632
City direct debt 14,240,833
Total direct and overlapping debt S 87,490,465

Note: Overlapping governments are those that coincide, at least in part, with the geographic
boundaries of the City of American Fork. This schedule estimates the portion of the
outstanding debt of those overlapping governments that is borne by the residents and
businesses. This process recognizes that, when considering the City's ability to issue and repay
long-term debt, the entire debt burden borne by the residents and business should be taken
into account. However, this does not imply that every taxpayer is a resident-and therefore
responsible for repaying the debt-of each overlapping government.
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CITY OF AMERICAN FORK
Legal Debt Margin Information
Last Ten Fiscal Years

(dollars in thousands)

4.1.a

Assessed Value
Reasonable Fair Cash Value

Debt Limit (12% of Reasonable Cash Value)

Debt applicable to limit:
General obligation bonds

Less: Amount set aside for repayment of general obligation debt

Total net debt applicable to limit
Legal debt margin

Debt limit
General (4% Fair Cash Value)
Water and Sewer (8% Fair Cash Value)

Total 12% Debt Limit

Total Net Debt Applicable to Limit
Legal debt margin

Total net debt applicable to the limit
as a percentage of debt limit

Debt limit
General (4% Fair Cash Value)
Water and Sewer (8% Fair Cash Value)

Total 12% Debt Limit

Total Net Debt Applicable to Limit
Legal debt margin

Total net debt applicable to the limit
as a percentage of debt limit

Source: https://taxrates.utah.gov/

12% may be utilized for water and/or sewer purposes.

%

>

®©

Legal Debt Margin Calculation for Fiscal Year 2020 =

©

c

S 2,818,626 s

S 4,061,097 ‘g

487,332 q

I3

42,070 ]

)

B c

=}

42,070 3

S 445,262 <

©

Fiscal Year §

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 g
S

103,974 112,362 $ 125,862 S 138,682 S 162,444 g
207,948 224,724 S 251,724 277,363 324,888 e
311,922 337,086 377,586 416,045 487,332 g
o

45,030 42,025 38,905 36,380 42,070 g
266,892 295,061 § 338,681 S 379,665 S 445,262 %
&

14.44% 12.47% 10.30% 8.74% 8.63% g
i

Fiscal Year <

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2
=

87,484 84,342 S 83,724 S 86,265 S 95,334 W
174,968 168,685 S 167,448 S 172,530 S 190,668 g
c

262,452 253,027 251,172 258,795 286,002 é
S

58,815 56,425 52,425 51,368 48,863 D
203,637 196,602 S 198,747 S 207,427 S 237,139 E
)

S

S

22.41% 22.30% 20.87% 19.85% 17.08% 8
N

o

I3

1

Notes: The general obligation bonded debt of the City is limited by the Utah Constitution (Section 14, Paragraph 4) to o
12% of the "reasonable fair cash value" of property. Of this percent, a maximum of 4% may be used for general o
purposes. The remaining 8% and any unused portion of the 4% available for general purposes up to the maximum of E
8

<
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CITY OF AMERICAN FORK
Pledged Revenue Coverage
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(dollars in thousands)

Water Revenue Bonds

Less:

Fiscal ~ Utility Service Operating  Net Available Debt Service

Year Charge Expenses Revenue Principal Interest Coverage
2011 - - - - - -
2012 - - - - - -
2013 2,679 2,048 631 - 2 315.50
2014 3,163 2,186 977 37 17 18.09
2015 3,306 2,073 1,233 38 21 20.90
2016 3,610 1,996 1,614 32 20 31.04
2017 3,825 2,194 1,631 33 20 30.77
2018 4,110 1,526 2,584 34 18 49.69
2019 4,232 1,531 2,701 35 17 51.78
2020 4,215 1,596 2,619 37 15 50.37

Special Assessment Bonds
Special

Fiscal Assesment Debt Service

Year Bonds Principal Interest Coverage

2011 215 547 112 0.33

2012 - - - -

2013 - - - -

2014 - - - -

2015 - - - -

2016 - - - -

2017 - - - -

2018 - - - -

2019 - - - -

2020 - - - -

Sales Tax Bonds

Fiscal Sales and Debt Service

Year Use Tax Principal Interest Coverage

2011 4,552 820 362 3.85

2012 5,390 840 325 4.63

2013 5,911 460 127 10.07

2014 6,235 533 164 8.95

2015 6,549 458 45 13.02

2016 7,122 501 48 12.97

2017 7,734 457 44 15.44

2018 8,164 460 42 16.26

2019 8,882 360 111 18.86

2020 9,972 370 100 21.22

Source: The City of American Fork

Notes: Details regarding the City's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial
statements. Operating expenses do not include interest, depreciation, or amortization expenses.
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CITY OF AMERICAN FORK
Demographic and Economic Statistics
Last Ten Calendar Years

Calendar Personal Income Per Capita Unemployment

Year Population (Federal AGI) Personal Income Rate

2010 26,672 471,354,923 17,672 7.8%
2011 27,108 506,221,345 18,674 7.5%
2012 27,405 522,828,276 19,078 5.7%
2013 27,922 535,777,308 19,188 5.0%
2014 28,235 568,057,835 20,119 4.0%
2015 28,308 619,865,023 21,897 3.5%
2016 28,770 646,512,055 22,472 3.3%
2017 29,527 691,839,424 23,431 3.1%
2018 32,519 794,817,085 24,442 2.8%
2019 33,161 836,056,288 25,212 2.6%

2009 Population Estimate - Governor's Office of Management & Budget

http://gomb.utah.gov/budget-policy/demographic-economic-analysis/
2010-2018 Population Estimates - U.S. Census Bureau

https://www.census.gov/quickfacts/americanforkcityutah
Unemployment rate - Bureau of Labor Statistics

Personal income - http://tax.utah.gov/econstats/income/federal-returns
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CITY OF AMERICAN FORK
Principal Employers
Current Year and Ten Years Ago

4.1.a

2020 2010

Employer Employees Rank Employees Rank
Alpine Building LLC 500-999 1-6
American Fork Hospital 500-999 1-6

Domo Inc 500-999 1-6

Henry Schein Practice Solutions 500-999 1-6

ROI Solutions LLC 500-999 1-6

Utah State Developmental Center 500-999 1-6
Alpine Board of Education 250-499 7-10

Fidelity Brokerage Services LLC 250-499 7-10

Myler Disability 250-499 7-10
Wal*Mart 250-499 7-10 250-499 3-4
Alpine School District 1000-1999 1
Intermountain Healthcare, Inc. 500-999 2
Dentrix Dental Systems 250-499 3-4
Home Depot 100-249 5-10
Twinlab Corp 100-249 5-10
Orangesoda, Inc. 100-249 5-10
Certiport 100-249 5-10
Novarad Corporation 100-249 5-10
Doug Smith Autoplex Inc 100-249 5-10

Source: Utah Department of Workforce Services
https://jobs.utah.gov/jsp/firmfind/#/largefirmsearch/000049/Utah/results
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4.1.a
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CITY OF AMERICAN FORK

Full-Time Equivalent City Government Employees by Function/Program

Last Ten Fiscal Years

4.1.a

%

Fiscal Year f_35

Function/Program 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 'g
General Government ©
Administration 8.87 9.82 9.96 10.59 10.48 ':§
Economic Development 0.21 0.18 0.20 0.19 0.84 §
Police 8’
Officers 32.55 32.14 33.51 32.76 36.08 o
Civilians 8.47 9.25 9.43 9.50 8.76 =
Fire* g
Firefighters 31.87 35.77 37.25 33.25 34.17 ©
Ambulance - - - - - §
Civilians - - - - 1.00 g
Public Works 3
Buildings and Grounds 3.43 3.43 3.43 3.43 3.43 _‘;é
Building Inspections 4.00 4.00 4.00 3.39 3.27 S
Engineering 3.00 3.00 3.60 4.67 4.83 S
Fleet 1.00 1.00 0.57 - - @
Public Works Admin 0.77 1.09 1.90 2.00 2.00 §
Secondary Irrigation 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 &’
Sewer 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.03 -
Storm Drain 1.13 1.29 1.00 1.00 1.01 §_
Streets 5.08 6.02 7.00 6.94 7.40 &
Water 7.68 6.83 6.00 6.00 6.34 .f_g
Planning 4.00 4.00 3.15 2.00 2.00 S
Recreation and Fitness E
Recreation 5.61 7.82 8.40 8.80 8.19 §
Fitness 35.87 37.05 36.84 40.90 43.29 s
Community Services 25
Cemetery 7.62 7.69 7.09 7.37 7.36 §
Library 12.87 12.96 12.61 11.45 11.47 2
Literacy 1.00 1.00 0.05 0.59 0.60 g
Parks 8.84 10.65 10.87 11.58 10.99 £
Boat Harbor 1.67 0.76 1.22 1.02 1.27 g
Broadband 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 S
Senior Citizens - - - - - >
Arts 1.00 1.02 1.01 - 0.04 =
(O]

Total 195.54 205.77 208.09 206.43 213.85 %
@©

g

*Fire includes contract services to City of Cedar Hills
Source: City of American Fork Finance Department
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CITY OF AMERICAN FORK
Full-Time Equivalent City Government Employees by Function/Program

Last Ten Fiscal Years

4.1.a

Function/Program
General Government
Administration

Economic Development

Police
Officers
Civilians
Fire*
Firefighters
Ambulance
Civilians
Public Works

Buildings and Grounds
Building Inspections

Engineering
Fleet

Public Works Admin
Secondary Irrigation

Sewer
Storm Drain
Streets
Water
Planning
Parks and Recreation
Recreation
Fitness
Community Services
Cemetery
Library
Literacy
Parks
Boat Harbor
Broadband
Senior Citizens
Arts

Total

Source: The City of American Fork

American Fork City Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
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©

Fiscal Year f_35

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 5
8

11.23 11.90 11.17 11.69 12.01 “§
1.00 0.35 - - - S
a

35.46 35.06 37.17 40.38 44.88 o
10.00 10.28 10.27 10.91 10.81 3
2

32.10 34.23 35.04 33.88 32.72 15
- - - - 10.86 8
1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 g
S

3.44 3.22 3.03 3.69 4.12 r;é
4.00 4.58 5.00 6.32 5.95 c
4.43 5.53 4.56 4.77 6.78 <
1.99 2.58 2.74 3.00 3.70 &
2.01 2.02 2.02 3.25 3.36 f{
5.06 4.66 3.95 2.75 3.50 =
1.86 2.48 2.85 2.75 3.50 S
7.07 6.93 6.59 6.17 6.41 &
5.84 5.10 4.14 4.25 3.36 g
2.00 2.00 2.00 2.50 2.08 =
=

8.87 8.65 8.21 7.34 7.49 s
43.33 45.22 43.62 43.07 35.92 <
7.70 7.51 7.49 6.27 5.62 S
12.16 12.19 11.87 12.63 12.07 g
0.43 0.85 0.95 1.02 0.94 =
12.59 11.88 11.99 10.93 11.98 £
1.18 0.98 1.16 0.76 0.81 o
2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.08 §
- 0.23 0.43 0.44 0.48 >
216.75 221.43 219.25 221.77 232.43 %
©

Z
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4.1.a

CITY OF AMERICAN FORK
Operating Indicators by Function/Program
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year =

Function/Program 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 =
General Government c_c
Building permits Issued 299 337 398 392 504 g
Business Licenses Issued - - - 199 218 %
Paychecks Issued - - - 10,938 11,265 c
Vendor Checks Issued - - - 6,052 4,564 “g
Police** 8
Physical arrests N
Adults 1,112 1,007 983 887 847 g
Juveniles 363 344 285 239 290 ©
Homicide 1 - 1 1 - %
Rape 7 11 5 3 7 il
Robbery 15 4 6 6 3 2
Aggravated Assault 18 8 23 16 12 e
Burglary 186 175 117 106 81 g
Larceny 795 731 672 674 719 o
Motor Vehicle Theft 27 34 30 37 13 %
Arson 1 2 2 - - g
Crime Rate/1000 29.12 26.05 23.00 22.19 21.74 8
Ambulance @
911 Calls - - 1,003 1,170 1,237 'g
Basic Life Support Transports - - 468 465 464 ©
Advanced Life Support Transports - - 374 379 310 g
Critical Care ICU Transports - - 40 72 48 %
Other - - 521 - - =

Fire 3
Alarms - - 175 164 183 o
Public Education Events* - - 8,306 5,728 7,651 (2
Public Education Contacts - - - - - +
Hydrant Inspections - - 2,464 776 3,160 8_
Business Fire Inspections - - 305 1,132 1,454 &-’
Structural Fires 13 167 14 16 19 —
Vehicle Fires 7 - 170 18 56 2
Extractions - - 17 17 21 %
Outside Fires 19 48 20 12 15 =

All Other Fires 5 - 373 117 134 L
Mutual Aid-Given - - - - - f_g
Mutual Aid-Received - - - - - c
Parks and recreation é
Cemetery Burials 161 174 184 147 156 (0}
Number of Cemetery Spaces Sold - - - - - 5
Fitness Center Admissions 282,991 251,632 272,533 258,406 260,000 GC)
Water %
New Residential Connections s
Residential 63 77 118 186 107 =
Commercial 7 10 12 19 12 8
Average Culinary Daily Consumption o
(Thousands of Gallons) 4,626 3,139 3,110 2,806 2,383 8
Sewer N
Average daily sewer treatment E
(thousands of gallons) 11,341 11,109 8,512 6,478 5,209 -
Library qc_)
Volumes in Collection 113,851 108,366 112,645 122,922 106,195 £
Total Volumes Borrowed 311,310 364,343 295,212 299,550 307,772 c:gé

* Prior to fiscal year 2016, PR contacts were included as well as PR events. Fiscal year 2016 forward is only PR events. Z

** American Fork and Cedar Hills combined. Source: Utah Department of Public Safety www.bci.utah.gov

Source: The City of American Fork
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4.1.a

CITY OF AMERICAN FORK
Operating Indicators by Function/Program

Last Ten Fiscal Years (continued)
Fiscal Year =
Function/Program 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 =
General Government c_c
Building permits Issued 729 629 839 749 789 g
Business Licenses Issued 1,436 1,399 1,382 1,599 1,651 %
Paychecks Issued 11,929 12,051 11,935 12,121 11,351 c
Vendor Checks Issued 4,170 4,432 5,216 5,320 4,519 “g
Police** 8
Physical arrests N
Adults 797 842 1,166 1,006 1,226 8—
Juveniles 287 191 238 241 238 )
Homicide - 1 1 - - %
Rape 10 8 7 8 5 il
Robbery 2 7 7 1 7 2
Aggravated Assault 15 8 10 13 19 e
Burglary 79 101 81 36 71 g
Larceny 648 715 801 641 746 o
Motor Vehicle Theft 39 42 40 25 34 %
Arson - - 2 2 3 g
Crime Rate/1000 28.00 30.66 23.81 17.99 20.47 8
Ambulance @
911 Calls 1,196 1,988 1,190 1,564 1,982 _g
Basic Life Support Transports 530 755 374 551 564 ©
Advanced Life Support Transports 399 616 331 461 339 g
Critical Care ICU Transports 28 66 34 21 25 %
Other 16 24 448 - - =
Fire 3
Alarms 197 130 176 251 313 o
Public Education Events* 123 207 74 44 97 a
Public Education Contacts - - 13,238 6,944 4,950 +
Hydrant Inspections 1,915 1,576 2,648 1,466 2,861 8_
Business Fire Inspections 974 916 324 805 1,001 &-’
Structural Fires 18 36 24 17 35 —
Vehicle Fires 1 9 - 107 13 2
Extractions 7 9 6 4 1 %
Outside Fires 14 40 28 22 29 =
All Other Fires 107 143 93 - 68 L
Mutual Aid-Given - - - 23 137 [E
Mutual Aid-Received - - - 12 63 c
Parks and recreation é
Cemetery Burials 168 183 152 187 138 (0}
Number of Cemetery Spaces Sold - - - 125 101 5
Fitness Center Admissions 265,000 275,000 280,000 285,000 222,500 GC)
Water %
New Residential Connections s
Residential 132 220 328 308 1,192 e
Commercial 25 33 68 25 41 8
Average Culinary Daily Consumption o
(Thousands of Gallons) 2,258 2,236 2,231 2,312 2,325 8
Sewer N
Average daily sewer treatment E
(thousands of gallons) 2,586 2,616 2,496 2,497 2,826 -
Library qc_)
Volumes in Collection 124,771 127,123 144,051 182,109 184,343 €
Total Volumes Borrowed 290,524 312,392 336,532 388,790 369,666 c:%
<

Source: The City of American Fork
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CITY OF AMERICAN FORK
Capital Asset Statistics by Function/Program
Last Ten Fiscal Years

4.1.a

Function/Program

Police
Stations
Patrol officers*

Fire Stations

Public Works
Streets (Miles)
Streetlights

Parks and Recreation
Acreage
Playgrounds
Baseball/Softball Diamonds
Soccer/Football Fields
Flag Football Fields
Tackle Football Fields
Basketball/Tennis Courts
Pickleball Courts
Fitness Centers

Water
Culinary Water Lines (Miles)
Irrigation Water Lines (Miles)
Storm Drain (Miles)
Sanitary Sewers (Miles)
Fire Hydrants
Upper Pond Storage Capacity (Millions of Gallor
Lower Pond Storage Capacity (Millions of Gallor

* Counting methodology changed in fiscal year 2016

Source: The City of American Fork

%

5

Fiscal Year Tf

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 o
£

1 1 1 1 1 S
32 43 43 43 43 Q
1 1 1 1 1 S
(0]

5

104 105 106 112 112 >
- - - 1,121 1,121 <
©

()]

174 174 174 183 183 Q
31 31 32 32 32 2
11 11 11 11 11 8
10 10 10 10 10 s
8 8 8 8 8 g
1 1 1 3 3 S
1 1 1 1 1 I
c

_ _ _ _ _ ()]
(7]

(0]

1 1 1 1 1 5
136.77 136.84 137.29 150.64 158.91 q%
- - 120.58 103.70 114.68 @
19.53 1959 19.70 56.66  62.54 2
110.65 110.67 111.08 123.10 123.73 §
- 1,111 1,111 1,068 1,068 i
- 5.00 5 5 5 ©
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CITY OF AMERICAN FORK
Capital Asset Statistics by Function/Program
Last Ten Fiscal Years

(continued)

4.1.a

Function/Program

Police
Stations
Patrol officers*

Fire Stations

Public Works
Streets (Miles)
Streetlights

Parks and Recreation
Acreage
Playgrounds
Baseball/Softball Diamonds
Soccer/Football Fields
Flag Football Fields
Tackle Football Fields
Basketball/Tennis Courts
Pickleball Courts
Fitness Centers

Water
Culinary Water Lines (Miles)
Irrigation Water Lines (Miles)
Storm Drain (Miles)
Sanitary Sewers (Miles)
Fire Hydrants
Upper Pond Storage Capacity (Millions of Gallor
Lower Pond Storage Capacity (Millions of Gallor

* Counting methodology changed in fiscal year 2016

Source: The City of American Fork
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I
‘. CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

The Honorable Mayor, and
Members of the City Council
American Fork City, Utah

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of
American Fork City, Utah (herein referred to as the “City”), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, and
the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial
statements and have issued our report thereon dated December 30, 2020.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City’s internal control
over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may
exist that were not identified. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies
in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist
that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City’s financial statements are free from
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Larson & Company 138 Member of
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4.1.a

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Larson & Company, PC

Spanish Fork, Utah
December 30, 2020
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I
‘. CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT AS REQUIRED BY THE STATE COMPLIANCE
AUDIT GUIDE ON COMPLIANCE WITH GENERAL STATE COMPLIANCE
REQUIREMENTS AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE

The Honorable Mayor, and
Members of the City Council
American Fork City, Utah

Report on Compliance with General State Compliance Requirements

We have audited American Fork City’s (herein referred to as the “City”) compliance with the applicable general
state compliance requirements described in the State Compliance Audit Guide, issued by the Office of the Utah
State Auditor, that could have a direct and material effect on the City for the year ended June 30, 2020.

General state compliance requirements were tested for the year ended June 30, 2020 in the following areas:

Budgetary Compliance Open and Public Meetings Act
Fund Balance Fraud Risk Assessment
Restricted Taxes and Other Related Revenue

Management’s Responsibility
Management is responsible for compliance with the general state requirements referred to above.
Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the City’s compliance based on our audit of the compliance
requirements referred to above.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the State Compliance Audit Guide. Those
standards and the State Compliance Audit Guide require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above that
could have a direct and material effect on the City occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence about the City’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance with general state
compliance requirements. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the City’'s compliance.

Opinion on General State Compliance Requirements

In our opinion, American Fork City, complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements referred
to above that could have a direct and material effect on the City the year ended June 30, 2020.
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Other Matters

The results of our auditing procedures disclosed instances of noncompliance, which are required to be
reported in accordance with the State Compliance Audit Guide and which are described in a separate letter
to management dated December 30, 2020. Our opinion on compliance is not modified with respect to these
matters.

The City’s response to the noncompliance findings identified in our audit is described in the accompanying
letter to those charged with governance. The City’s response was not subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of compliance and accordingly, we express no opinion on the response.

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE

Management of city is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of
compliance, we considered city’s internal control over compliance with the compliance requirements that
could have a direct and material effect on city to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance with general state compliance
requirements and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the State
Compliance Audit Guide, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal
control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of city’s internal
control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a general state compliance requirement
on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination
of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material
noncompliance with a general state compliance requirement will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or
a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a general state compliance
requirement that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal
control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may
exist that have not been identified.

Purpose of Report
The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing

of internal control and compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the State
Compliance Audit Guide. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Larson & Company, PC

Spanish Fork, Utah
December 30, 2020
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I
‘. CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM
AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

The Honorable Mayor, and
Members of the City Council
American Fork City, Utah

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited American Fork City’s (the “City”) compliance with the types of compliance described in
the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of the City’s major
federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2020. American Fork City’s major federal programs are
identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and
guestioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions
of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the City’s major federal programs
based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of
compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for
Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal
program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the City’s compliance with
those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal
program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the City’s compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, American Fork City, Utah complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal
programs for the year ended June 30, 2020.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

Management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our
audit of compliance, we considered the City’s internal control over compliance with the types of
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the
auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in
accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the City’s internal control over compliance.
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A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency,
or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not
be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type
of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal
control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing
of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform
Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Larson & Company, PC
Spanish Fork, Utah

December 30, 2020
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American Fork City Corporation

NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

June 30, 2020

Note A — Basis of Presentation

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (schedule) includes the federal award activity of
American Fork City, Utah under programs of the federal government for the year ended June 30, 2020. The
information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal
Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of American
Fork City, Utah, it is not intended to and does not present the net position, or statement of activities of American
Fork City, Utah.

Note B — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Expenditures reported on the schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such expenditures are
recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures
are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursements.

American Fork City, Utah has elected not to use the 10 percent de minimus indirect cost rate as allowed under the
Uniform Guidance.

Note C - Loans

The City has no outstanding Federal Loans
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American Fork City Corporation

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

June 30, 2020

I. Summary of Auditor’s Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditor’s report issued on governmental activities, business-type
Activities, each major fund, and aggregate remaining fund information

Internal Control over financial reporting:
e Material weaknesses identified
e Significant deficiencies identified

Noncompliance material to the financial statements noted?
Federal Awards
Internal control over federal programs

e  Material weaknesses identified

e Significant deficiencies identified

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for
major federal programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be
reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a)?

Identification of Federal Major Programs and Type of Auditor’s Report Issued on Compliance for Major

Federal Programs

Name of federal program or cluster

Coronavirus Relief Fund

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A
and type B Programs:

Auditee qualified as a low-risk auditee?

I1. Financial statement findings

No reportable financial statement findings.

I11. Federal award findings and questioned costs

No reportable federal award findings.

146

Unmodified

O Yes

O Yes

O Yes

O Yes

O Yes

X No

X No

X No

X No

X No

Unmodified

[ Yes

CEDA

21.019

X No

$750,000

O Yes

X No

4.1.a

Attachment: FY 2020 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (Presentation and acceptance of the June 30, 2020 financial audit)

Packet Pg. 173




4.1.b

4 Larso

I
‘. CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

December 30, 2020

Honorable Mayor and City Council
American Fork City
American Fork, Utah

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of American Fork City for the year ended June 30, 2020.
Professional standards require that we provide you with information about our responsibilities under generally
accepted auditing standards (and, if applicable, Government Auditing Standards and the Uniform Guidance), as
well as certain information related to the planned scope and timing of our audit. We have communicated such
information in our letter to you dated July 7, 2020. Professional standards also require that we communicate to
you the following information related to our audit.

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant
accounting policies used by American Fork City are described in Note 1 to the financial statements. No new
accounting policies were adopted and the application of existing policies was not changed during 2020. We noted
no transactions entered into by the governmental unit during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative
guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial statements in the proper
period.

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based on
management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future events.
Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements
and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly from those expected.

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear.

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our audit.
Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the audit,
other than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management.
Management has corrected all such misstatements.

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing
matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial statements or the
auditor’s report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit.

Management Representations

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management
representation letter dated December 30, 2020.
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4.1.b

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting matters,
similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation involves application of an accounting
principle to the governmental unit’s financial statements or a determination of the type of auditor’s opinion that
may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the consulting accountant to check
with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such
consultations with other accountants.

Other Audit Findings or Issues

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing
standards, with management each year prior to retention as the governmental unit's auditors. However, these
discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a condition
to our retention.

Other Matters

We applied certain limited procedures to the Management’s Discussion and Analysis, the Schedule of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances — Budget and Actual — General Fund, and the schedules relating to
pensions, which are required supplementary information (RSI) that supplements the basic financial statements.
Our procedures consisted of inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing the information and
comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We did not audit
the RSI and do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the RSI.

We were not engaged to report on the introductory and statistical sections, which accompany the financial
statements but are not RSI. We did not audit or perform other procedures on this other information and we do not
express an opinion or provide any assurance on it.

Restriction on Use

This information is intended solely for the use of American Fork City, management of American Fork City, and
other various Federal and State funding and auditing agencies and is not intended to be, and should not be, used
by anyone other than these specified parties.

Very truly yours,

Larson & Company, PC
Spanish Fork, Utah
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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS — CURRENT YEAR

State Compliance Finding(s)

SC-2020.1 Deficit Fund Balance
Condition: Broadband fund is in a deficit fund balance position, and was not reduced by the required 5%

Criteria: Utah Code 10-6-117(2) requires that “if there is a deficit fund balance in a fund at the close of
the last completed fiscal year, the governing body of a city shall include an item of appropriation for the
deficit in the current budget of the fund equal to:

(a) Atleast 5% of the total revenue of the fund in the last completed fiscal year; or

(b) If the deficit is equal to less than 5% of the total revenue of the fund in the last completed
fiscal year, the entire amount of the deficit.

Cause of Condition: Inability of the broadband fund to charge enough to recover costs.
Potential Effect of Condition: Continual non-compliance with Utah Code.

Recommendation: We recommend the City include in the final budget of 2021, an appropriated amount
to reduce the broadband deficit by the required 5% of the prior year’s revenue.

Client response: The City began a feasibility study in fiscal year 2019 to determine long-term
opportunities for the City’s broadband assets. This study is scheduled to be completed in fiscal year 2021.
Long-term financing of this deficit fund balance is being considered as part of the feasibility study.

SC-2020.2 Budgetary Compliance

Condition: Broadband fund (69), PARC fund (26) and Transit Oriented Development fund (84) exceeded
budgeted appropriation for expenditures.

Criteria: Utah Code 10-6-123 states that “City officers may not make or incur expenditures or
encumbrances in excess of total appropriations for any department in the budget as adopted or as
subsequently amended”.

Cause of Condition: Oversight by management.
Potential Effect of Condition: Non-compliance with Utah Code.

Recommendation: We recommend the City implement a control process to review YTD budget to actual
balances regularly throughout the year. Encumbrances and expenditures should be properly budgeted for
prior to the expenditure

Client response: Due to a change in key staff positions this oversight was not corrected by management
in final budget. Management will be more vigilant in maintaining budget integrity in the future.

Internal Control Finding(s)

No internal control findings were noted in the current year.
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4.1.b

STATUS OF FINDINGS - PRIOR YEAR

State Compliance Finding(s)

SC-2019.1 Deficit Fund Balance
Condition: Broadband fund is in a deficit fund balance position, and was not reduced by the required 5%

Criteria: Utah Code 10-6-117(2) requires that “if there is a deficit fund balance in a fund at the close of
the last completed fiscal year, the governing body of a city shall include an item of appropriation for the
deficit in the current budget of the fund equal to:

(c) Atleast 5% of the total revenue of the fund in the last completed fiscal year; or

(d) If the deficit is equal to less than 5% of the total revenue of the fund in the last completed
fiscal year, the entire amount of the deficit.

Status of finding: See current year findings.

SC-2019.2 Utah Public Notice Website (the Website)

Condition: Minutes of public meetings were not posted within three days of approval to the Website for
the two regular council meetings chosen for testing.

Criteria: Utah Code 52-4-203(e) requires that “A state public body shall:

(i) make pending minutes available to the public within 30 days after holding the open meeting
that is the subject of the pending minutes.

(i) within three business days after approving written minutes of an open meeting:

(A) post to the state website a copy of the approved minutes and any public materials
distributed at the meeting;

(B) make the approved minutes and public materials to the public at the public body’s
primary office; and

(C) if the public body provides online minutes under Subsection (2)(b), post approved
minutes that comply with Subsection (2)(b) and the public materials on the public
body’s website; and

(iii) within three days after holding an open meeting, post on the state website an audio recording
of the open meeting, or a link to the recording.

Status of finding: Finding appears to have been addressed and corrected.
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SC-2019.3 Budgetary Compliance

4.1.b

Condition: Broadband fund (69) and Internal Service fund (76) exceeded budgeted appropriation for

expenditures.

Criteria: Utah Code 10-6-123 states that “City officers may not make or incur expenditures or

encumbrances in excess of total appropriations for any department in the budget as adopted or as

subsequently amended”.

Status of finding: See current year findings.

Internal Control Finding(s)

No internal control findings were noted in the prior year.
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4.2

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION
CITY OF AMERICAN FORK
JANUARY 12, 2021

AMERICA

sFORK:s:
Department___Public Works Director Approval _Scott Qpnqanhaughpr

AGENDA ITEM Review and action on the Water Banking Agreement for Water Rights with
Tace, LLC for 86.128 acre-feet of water.

SUMMARY RECOMMENDATION The City Engineer recommends approval of the Water
Banking Agreement for Water Rights with Tace, LLC for 86.128 acre-feet of water as shown in
the agreement.

BACKGROUND Water banking agreements are authorized by the American Fork
municipal code to document and track water dedicated to the city in exchange for water credits
that can be used or assigned to another person to be used to meet the city's water dedication
requirements.

BUDGET IMPACT N/A
SUGGESTED MOTION  Move to approve the Water Banking Agreement for Water Rights
with Tace, LLC for 86.128 acre-feet of water.

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS
Tace LLC - Water Banking Agreement (DOCX)
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WATER BANKING AGREEMENT

This Water Banking Agreement (“Agreement”) is entered into as of the 12th day of January,
2021 (“Effective Date”), by and between TACE, LLC (“Owner”), and AMERICAN FORK CITY,
a municipal corporation and political subdivision of the State of Utah (“City”).

RECITALS

WHEREAS Water Right Nos. 55-13144, 55-13145, and 55-13146 (“Water Right”) has
been or will be deeded by Owner to the City; and

WHEREAS Permanent Change Application a45599 (“Change Application’), which is
associated with the Water Right and was approved by an Order of the State Engineer dated May 27,
2020, permits the diversion of 86.128 acre-feet from City’s wells for municipal purposes within City’s
service area; and

WHEREAS Owner is transferring the Water Right and Change Application to City in order
to meet City’s water dedication requirements for Owner’s development(s) and/or to bank the water
with City for use by others to meet City’s water dedication requirements for development; and

WHEREAS City is willing to accept the Water Right for use in its system in satisfaction of
its water dedication requirements for present or future developments of Owner or Owner’s assigns,
to the extent provided by City Code section 17.1.400, or any successor provision.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing premises, the mutual covenants
hereafter set forth, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which
are hereby acknowledged, Owner and City, incorporating the recitals set forth above, agree as follows:

AGREEMENT

1. Transfer and Acceptance of the Water Right. Owner has conveyed and assigned, or
will convey and assign, the Water Right to City by warranty deed, and City has accepted or will accept
the conveyance and assignment of the Water Right. City agrees and acknowledges that the Water
Right is an acceptable water right for purposes of satisfying City’s water dedication requirements.
Owner acknowledges that under the Article XI, Section 6 of the Utah Constitution, City is prohibited
from returning to Owner any portion of the Water Right.

2. Title Insurance. City has obtained or will obtain, at Owner’s expense, a water rights
title insurance policy for the Water Right.

3. Water Credits. In exchange for the transfer of the Water Right, City hereby grants to
Owner water dedication credits for 86.128 acre-feet of water (“Credits”). As provided herein, the
Credits may be used by Owner to meet City’s water dedication requirements for Owner’s
development(s) or may be assigned by Owner to others. The City Recorder shall maintain a credit log
to keep track of any Credits that have not yet been dedicated to a specific development to meet City’s
water dedication requirements. Owner, or any assignee of all or a portion of the Credits, may request
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a copy of the credit log by making a written request to the City Recorder. Within ten business days of
receiving the request, the City Recorder will provide a copy of the credit log.

4. Use of Credits for Owner’s Developments. Owner may use the Credits in order to
meet City’s water dedication requirements as part of the development approval process. Prior to final
plat approval, Owner shall send the City Recorder a written request to apply a portion of the Credits
to a specific development. The number of acre-feet from the Credits required for dedication to a
particular development shall be determined by City ordinances and policies existing at the time of the
dedication. A decision to apply the Credits to a specific development is final, and any Credits so
applied are no longer available for application to another project or assignment to a third party.

5. Assignment of Credits. Owner may assign any or all of the Credits to others using an
Assignment of Water Credits form similar to Exhibit A (“Assignment”). An assignee shall present
the Assignment, with original signatures, to the City Recorder, at which time the City Recorder shall
update the credit log to account for the Assignment. The City Recorder shall also keep a copy of each
Assignment in his/her records. An assignee may assign the Credits in the same manner outlined herein
or may use the Credits in order to meet City’s water dedication requirements. Any assignment of
Credits that is not presented to the City Recorder as provided in this paragraph shall be void as against
any subsequent purchaser, in good faith and for valuable consideration, of the same Credits, or any
portion thereof, where the subsequent purchaser’s assignment is first presented to the City Recorder.

6. Use of Credits by Assignees. An assignee may use the Credits in order to meet City’s
water dedication requirements as part of the development approval process. Prior to final plat
approval, assignee shall send the City Recorder a written request to apply a portion of the Credits to
a specific development. The number of acre-feet from the Credits required for dedication to a
particular development shall be determined by City ordinances and policies existing at the time of the
dedication. A decision to apply the Credits to a specific development is final, and any Credits so
applied are no longer available for application to another project or assignment to a third party.

7. City’s Use of Water Right. Upon execution of this Agreement, City shall have the full
and unencumbered right to divert and beneficially use the water under the Water Right. City bears the
responsibility to protect and maintain in good standing the Water Right, including placing the Water
Right to beneficial use, filing proof documents on the Change Application, and filing other
documentation with the Utah Division of Water Rights. Owner agrees to provide any information or
other assistance, as requested by City, that is reasonably necessary to protect and maintain the Water
Right. Owner’s rights to Credits under this Agreement will not be affected if the Water Right is
forfeited, abandoned, or otherwise lost due to City’s nonuse.

8. Termination by Owner. Owner may, at any time and in its sole discretion, terminate
this Agreement by filing written notice of termination with the City Recorder. Upon termination, any
Credits that have not been dedicated to a specific development shall immediately and automatically
pass to City.

9. Cessation of Owner’s Use. Upon execution of this Agreement, Owner shall
immediately cease any and all use of the Water Right.
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10.  Successors and Assigns. Pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, Owner shall have
the right to assign its rights, duties, and obligations. The parties acknowledge that the rights, duties,
and obligations of Owner will also apply to any successor or assign of Owner, and that the use of the
term “Owner” in this contract includes Owner’s successors or assigns.

11. Ownership of Water Facilities. Nothing in this Agreement shall alter the ownership of
any wells or other water facilities of Owner or City.

12. Entire Agreement. This Agreement represents the entire agreement between the
parties and supersedes all prior agreements and understandings concerning its subject matter. This
Agreement shall not be amended or modified except by written instrument signed by both parties.

13.  Construction and Enforcement. This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with
and governed by the laws of the State of Utah. This Agreement may be specifically enforced.

14.  Third Party Beneficiaries. Except for the assignees of Credits, this Agreement is not
intended to and shall not create any rights in any person or entity not a party to this Agreement.

15.  Attorney Fees. In any action arising out of this Agreement, the prevailing party shall
be entitled to costs and reasonable attorney fees.

16. Further Assurances. After the execution of this Agreement, the parties agree to
execute and deliver such documents, and to take or cause to be taken all such other actions, as either
party may reasonably deem necessary or appropriate in order to carry out the intents and purposes of
this Agreement.

17.  Severability. If any term, covenant, or condition of this Agreement shall be
determined by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of
this Agreement shall not be affected thereby, and the remainder of the Agreement shall remain in
full force and effect.

18.  Authority of Parties. The persons signing this Agreement represent and warrant that
they have full authority to do so and that their corporation or entity has undertaken and obtained
whatever formalities and approvals are necessary to enter into this Agreement.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the Effective Date.

AMERICAN FORK CITY

Attest:
Bradley J. Frost, Mayor Terilyn Lurker, City Recorder
STATE OF UTAH )
SS
COUNTY OF UTAH )
On the day of January, 2021, personally appeared before me Bradley J. Frost and

Terilyn Lurker, known to me to be the Mayor and City Recorder, respectively, of American Fork
City, who acknowledged to me that they executed the within Water Banking Agreement pursuant
to a resolution of the City Council adopted pursuant to notice at a regular meeting at which a
quorum was in attendance.

NOTARY PUBLIC

TACE, LLC

By: Bart Brockbank, Manager

STATE OF UTAH )
SS
COUNTY OF )
On the day of , 20__, Bart Brockbank personally appeared before me

and duly acknowledged that he, acting in his authorized capacity as Manager of Tace, LLC,
executed this Water Banking Agreement for the purposes stated therein.

NOTARY PUBLIC
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EXHIBIT A

ASSIGNMENT OF WATER CREDITS

This Assignment of Water Credits (“Assignment”) is entered into as of this day of
,20___, by and between Tace, LLC (“Assignor”), whose mailing address is 5525
West 11000 North, Suite 100, Highland, Utah 84003, and

(“Assignee”), whose mailing address is

. For good and valuable consideration, the

receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, Assignor transfers and assigns to Assignee
acre-feet of water credits that were banked with American Fork City pursuant to the Water
Banking Agreement between American Fork City and Tace, LLC, dated January 12, 2021.
In order to effectuate this Assignment, Assignee shall present this original signed and

notarized Assignment to the American Fork City Recorder.

DATED this day of , 20
Transferor
State of )
S
County of )
On the day of , 20, personally appeared before me

, personally known to me to be the person whose name is

subscribed to this instrument, who acknowledged that he/she executed it.

Notary Public
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4.3

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION
CITY OF AMERICAN FORK
JANUARY 12, 2021

AMERICA

sFORK:s:
Department___Public Works Director Approval _Scott Qpnqanhaughpr

AGENDA ITEM Review and action on the Water Banking Agreement for Water Rights with
Millpond Apartments, LLC for 27.958 acre-feet of water.

SUMMARY RECOMMENDATION The City Engineer recommends approval of the Water
Banking Agreement for Water Rights with Millpond Apartments, LLC for 27.958 acre-feet of
water as shown in the agreement.

BACKGROUND Water banking agreements are authorized by the American Fork
municipal code to document and track water dedicated to the city in exchange for water credits
that can be used or assigned to another person to be used to meet the city's water dedication
requirements.

BUDGET IMPACT N/A
SUGGESTED MOTION  Move to approve the Water Banking Agreement for Water Rights
with Millpond Apartments, LLC for 27.958 acre-feet of water.

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS
Millpond Apartments - Water Banking Agreement 2021.01.12 (DOCX)

Packet Pg. 185




WATER BANKING AGREEMENT

This Water Banking Agreement (“Agreement”) is entered into as of the 12 day of January
2021 (“Effective Date”), by and between MILLPOND APARTMENTS, LLC (“Owner”), and
AMERICAN FORK CITY, a municipal corporation and political subdivision of the State of Utah
(‘CCity,’).

RECITALS

WHEREAS Water Right No. 55-8414, 55-12877, & 55-8249 (“Water Right”) has been or
will be deeded by Owner to the City; and

WHEREAS Permanent Change Application a43169 (“Change Application”), which is
associated with the Water Right and was approved by an Order of the State Engineer dated June 1,
2018, permits the diversion of 27.958 acre-feet from City’s wells for municipal purposes within City’s
service area; and

WHEREAS Owner is transferring the Water Right and Change Application to City in order
to meet City’s water dedication requirements for Owner’s development(s) and/or to bank the water
with City for use by others to meet City’s water dedication requirements for development; and

WHEREAS City is willing to accept the Water Right for use in its system in satisfaction of
its water dedication requirements for present or future developments of Owner or Owner’s assigns,
to the extent provided by City Code section 17.1.400, or any successor provision.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing premises, the mutual covenants
hereafter set forth, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which
are hereby acknowledged, Owner and City, incorporating the recitals set forth above, agree as follows:

AGREEMENT

1. Transfer and Acceptance of the Water Right. Owner has conveyed and assigned, or
will convey and assign, the Water Right to City by warranty deed, and City has accepted or will accept
the conveyance and assignment of the Water Right. City agrees and acknowledges that the Water
Right is an acceptable water right for purposes of satisfying City’s water dedication requirements.
Owner acknowledges that under the Article XI, Section 6 of the Utah Constitution, City is prohibited
from returning to Owner any portion of the Water Right.

2. Title Insurance. City has obtained or will obtain, at Owner’s expense, a water rights
title insurance policy for the Water Right.

3. Water Credits. In exchange for the transfer of the Water Right, City hereby grants to
Owner water dedication credits for 27.958 acre-feet of water (“Credits”). As provided herein, the
Credits may be used by Owner to meet City’s water dedication requirements for Owner’s
development(s) or may be assigned by Owner to others. The City Recorder shall maintain a credit log
to keep track of any Credits that have not yet been dedicated to a specific development to meet City’s
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water dedication requirements. Owner, or any assignee of all or a portion of the Credits, may request
a copy of the credit log by making a written request to the City Recorder. Within ten business days of
receiving the request, the City Recorder will provide a copy of the credit log.

4. Use of Credits for Owner’s Developments. Owner may use the Credits in order to
meet City’s water dedication requirements as part of the development approval process. Prior to final
plat approval, Owner shall send the City Recorder a written request to apply a portion of the Credits
to a specific development. The number of acre-feet from the Credits required for dedication to a
particular development shall be determined by City ordinances and policies existing at the time of the
dedication. A decision to apply the Credits to a specific development is final, and any Credits so
applied are no longer available for application to another project or assignment to a third party.

5. Assignment of Credits. Owner may assign any or all of the Credits to others using an
Assignment of Water Credits form similar to Exhibit A (“Assignment”). An assignee shall present
the Assignment, with original signatures, to the City Recorder, at which time the City Recorder shall
update the credit log to account for the Assignment. The City Recorder shall also keep a copy of each
Assignment in his/her records. An assignee may assign the Credits in the same manner outlined herein
or may use the Credits in order to meet City’s water dedication requirements. Any assignment of
Credits that is not presented to the City Recorder as provided in this paragraph shall be void as against
any subsequent purchaser, in good faith and for valuable consideration, of the same Credits, or any
portion thereof, where the subsequent purchaser’s assignment is first presented to the City Recorder.

6. Use of Credits by Assignees. An assignee may use the Credits in order to meet City’s
water dedication requirements as part of the development approval process. Prior to final plat
approval, assignee shall send the City Recorder a written request to apply a portion of the Credits to
a specific development. The number of acre-feet from the Credits required for dedication to a
particular development shall be determined by City ordinances and policies existing at the time of the
dedication. A decision to apply the Credits to a specific development is final, and any Credits so
applied are no longer available for application to another project or assignment to a third party.

7. City’s Use of Water Right. Upon execution of this Agreement, City shall have the full
and unencumbered right to divert and beneficially use the water under the Water Right. City bears the
responsibility to protect and maintain in good standing the Water Right, including placing the Water
Right to beneficial use, filing proof documents on the Change Application, and filing other
documentation with the Utah Division of Water Rights. Owner agrees to provide any information or
other assistance, as requested by City, that is reasonably necessary to protect and maintain the Water
Right. Owner’s rights to Credits under this Agreement will not be affected if the Water Right is
forfeited, abandoned, or otherwise lost due to City’s nonuse.

8. Termination by Owner. Owner may, at any time and in its sole discretion, terminate
this Agreement by filing written notice of termination with the City Recorder. Upon termination, any
Credits that have not been dedicated to a specific development shall immediately and automatically
pass to City.

0. Cessation of Owner’s Use. Upon execution of this Agreement, Owner shall
immediately cease any and all use of the Water Right.
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10.  Successors and Assigns. Pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, Owner shall have
the right to assign its rights, duties, and obligations. The parties acknowledge that the rights, duties,
and obligations of Owner will also apply to any successor or assign of Owner, and that the use of the
term “Owner” in this contract includes Owner’s successors or assigns.

11.  Ownership of Water Facilities. Nothing in this Agreement shall alter the ownership of
any wells or other water facilities of Owner or City.

12. Entire Agreement. This Agreement represents the entire agreement between the
parties and supersedes all prior agreements and understandings concerning its subject matter. This
Agreement shall not be amended or modified except by written instrument signed by both parties.

13.  Construction and Enforcement. This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with
and governed by the laws of the State of Utah. This Agreement may be specifically enforced.

14.  Third Party Beneficiaries. Except for the assignees of Credits, this Agreement is not
intended to and shall not create any rights in any person or entity not a party to this Agreement.

15.  Attorney Fees. In any action arising out of this Agreement, the prevailing party shall
be entitled to costs and reasonable attorney fees.

16. Further Assurances. After the execution of this Agreement, the parties agree to
execute and deliver such documents, and to take or cause to be taken all such other actions, as either
party may reasonably deem necessary or appropriate in order to carry out the intents and purposes of
this Agreement.

17.  Severability. If any term, covenant, or condition of this Agreement shall be
determined by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of
this Agreement shall not be affected thereby, and the remainder of the Agreement shall remain in
full force and effect.

18.  Authority of Parties. The persons signing this Agreement represent and warrant that
they have full authority to do so and that their corporation or entity has undertaken and obtained
whatever formalities and approvals are necessary to enter into this Agreement.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the Effective Date.

AMERICAN FORK CITY

Attest:
Bradley J. Frost, Mayor Terilyn Lurker, City Recorder
STATE OF UTAH )
SS
COUNTY OF )
On the day of , 20__, personally appeared before me Bradley J.

Frost and Terilyn Lurker, known to me to be the Mayor and City Recorder, respectively, of
American Fork City, who acknowledged to me that they executed the within Water Banking
Agreement pursuant to a resolution of the City Council adopted pursuant to notice at a regular
meeting at which a quorum was in attendance.

NOTARY PUBLIC

MILLPOND APARTMENTS, LLC.

By: Tom Henriod, Manager

STATE OF UTAH )
SS
COUNTY OF )
On the day of , 20__, Tom Henriod personally appeared before me and

duly acknowledged that he, acting in his authorized capacity as Manager of Millpond Apartments,
LLC, executed this Water Banking Agreement for the purposes stated therein.

NOTARY PUBLIC
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EXHIBIT A

ASSIGNMENT OF WATER CREDITS

This Assignment of Water Credits (“Assignment”) is entered into as of this day of
, 20, by and between Millpond Apartments, LLC (“Assignor”), whose
mailing address is 4655 South 2300 East, Suite #205, Holladay, Utah 84117, and

(“Assignee”), whose mailing address is

. For good and valuable consideration, the

receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, Assignor transfers and assigns to Assignee

acre-feet of water credits that were banked with American Fork City pursuant to the Water
Banking Agreement between American Fork City and Millpond Apartments, LLC, dated January 12,
2021.

In order to effectuate this Assignment, Assignee shall present this original signed and

notarized Assignment to the American Fork City Recorder.

DATED this day of , 20
Transferor
State of )
SS
County of )
On the day of , 20__, personally appeared before me

, personally known to me to be the person whose name is

subscribed to this instrument, who acknowledged that he/she executed it.

Notary Public
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4.4

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION
CITY OF AMERICAN FORK
JANUARY 12, 2021

AMERICA

s FORKS:s:
Department___Recorder Director Approval Tprilyn L urker

AGENDA ITEM Review and action on a resolution indicating the city's intent to annex the
AF Utah LLC Addition, consisting of 19.40 acres at approximately 1000 West 200 South.

SUMMARY RECOMMENDATION
Staff would recommend approval.

BACKGROUND
This property is located on the south side of 200 South at approximately 1000 West, which is in
the TOD.

Approval of the resolution would start the 30-day protest period and allow staff to schedule a
public hearing and notify affected entities. If no protests are received prior to the public hearing
the annexation would then move on in the annexation process. The public hearing would be
scheduled for February 23, 2021.

The applicants for this project are AF Utah LLC and includes small parcels of land owned by the
city (part of 350 South).

BUDGET IMPACT
NA

SUGGESTED MOTION
I move to approve the resolution indicating the city’s intent to annex the AF Utah LLC Addition
consisting of 19.40 acres at approximately 1000 West 200 South.

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS
Notice of Intent to Annex  (PDF)
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RESOLUTION NO.

AF Utah, LLC Addition
(1000 West 200 South)

A RESOLUTION INDICATING THE INTENT OF THE CITY COUNCIL TO ANNEX A
PORTION OF AN EXISTING ISLAND OR PENINSULA, IDENTIFYING THE AREA
PROPOSED FOR ANNEXATION; AUTHORIZING A PUBLIC HEARING ON THE
PROPOSED ANNEXATION AND PROVIDING FOR THE PUBLICATION OF NOTICE
OF SAID HEARING:

WHEREAS, Section 10-2-418, Utah Code Annotated, 1953, as amended, establishes a
procedure and criteria for the annexation of unincorporated territory within an existing peninsula or
island, and

WHEREAS, the City has received a request from owners of real property within an
existing peninsula or island of unincorporated territory situated contiguous to the boundaries of
American Fork City, requesting annexation of said territory to the City, and

WHEREAS, the City desires to honor the request of the property owners and effectuate
the annexation in accordance with the procedures set forth under State Law,

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF
AMERICAN FORK CITY, UTAH:

SECTION 1. The City Council hereby acknowledges receipt of a written notice from the
owners of real property within an existing peninsula or island requesting that the property be
annexed into American Fork City, in accordance with the terms of the State Law relating to
annexation of property within an island or peninsula (UCA 10-2-418). A copy of the request signed
by the owner of each parcel requesting annexation is set forth on Exhibit A. Further, an annexation
plat showing the location of the area proposed for annexation and designating the area as the ""AF
Utah LLC Addition™ is set forth on Exhibit B which exhibits are attached hereto and by this
reference made part of this Resolution.

SECTION 2. The City Council hereby indicates its desire and intent to annex the territory
identified on Exhibit B.

SECTION 3. The City hereby acknowledges that the proposed annexation area constitutes
only a portion of the existing island or peninsula, but hereby finds and determines that annexation of
only a portion of the existing island or peninsula is in the best interest of the City.

SECTION 4. The City Council hereby authorizes a public hearing on the proposed
annexation and instructs the City Recorder to publish notice thereof to the public and provide
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4.4.a

written notice to the County Commission, and each special district whose boundaries contain some
or all of the area proposed for annexation, all in accordance with the provisions of State Law.

SECTION 5. The provisions of this Resolution shall take effect upon its passage.

PASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF AMERICAN FORK, UTAH, THIS 12 DAY OF
JANUARY 2021.

Bradley J. Frost, Mayor

ATTEST:

Terilyn Lurker, City Recorder
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Exhibit "A’

REQUEST TO INITIATE ANNEXATION
OF LAND WITHIN AN ISLAND OR PENINSULA

DATE: ) 2 A" AO

We the undersigned, by virtue of our signatures affixed hereto, do hereby request the City
of American Fork, Utah, to annex the parcel(s) identified on the attached map, in accordance
with the procedures for “Annexation Without Petition” as set forth under Section 10-2-
418(1)(a)(ii) of the Utah State Code.

We hereby further acknowledge and affirm as follows:

A. The area to be annexed is contiguous to the municipality and has fewer than 800
residents, and

B. The municipality has provided one or more municipal type services to the area for at
least one year.

Tax I.D. No. Name(s) of Owner Signature of Owner(s)
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SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATE
I, DENNIS P. CARLISLE, DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT I AM A PROFESSIONAL
LAND SURVEYOR, AND THAT I HOLD CERTIFICATE NO. 172675 IN ACCORDANCE
WITH TITLE 58, CHAPTER 22 OF UTAH STATE CODE. I FURTHER CERTIFY THAT THIS
PLAT IS A TRUE AND ACCURATE MAP OF THE TRACT OF LAND TO BE ANNEXED
INTO AMERICAN FORK, UTAH.
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BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION

A portion of the NW1/4 and the SW1/4 of Section 22, Township 5 South, Range 1 East,
Salt Lake Base & Meridian, more particularly described as follows:

Beginning at a point on the current Corporate Limits of American Fork City located
S89°5329”E along the Section line 1,113.17 feet and South 1,540.33 feet from the Northwest
Corner of Section 22, T5S, R1E, S.L.B.& M.; thence East along said Corporate Limits 318.76
feet; thence S0°55'57”W 37.54 feet; thence East 1,165.63 feet to said current Corporate Limits of
American Fork City; thence along the current Corporate Limits the following 12 (twelve) courses
and distances: South 23.88 feet; thence West 457.04 feet; thence S0°2020”W 1,166.48 feet;
thence N89°22'17°W 19.70 feet; thence N1°17'46”E 117.95 feet; thence West 336.00 feet;
thence N0°46'31”E 350.26 feet; thence N1°17'37”E 680.79 feet; thence N89°21'09”W 25.71 feet;
thence S0°52'49”W 339.02 feet; thence West 656.00 feet; thence North 417.58 feet to the point
of beginning.
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NTS. SECTION 22, T5S, R1E, S.L.B.&M. g Contains: 14.90+/- acres

POINT OF
BEGINNING

BLUE SPRINGS
PROPERTIES LLC

13:041:0080

SPRING CREEK WEST

ANNEXATION
(2006)

318:76

SILVERADO
PARTNERS, LLC

13:041:0029

S0°55°57"W

200

EAST

CBAM PROPERTIES, LLC
13:041:0052

CBAM, PROPERTIES
LLC

13:041:0053

ALMA L. EARL LIVING
TRUST

13:041:0054

AF FRONTRUNNER
ANNEXATION
(2009)

SOUTH

SURVEYOR'S SEAL

DENNIS P. CARLISLE
PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR
CERTIFICATE NO. 172675

. j 1165.63 23.88
7750 N89°21'09"W EAST NORTH WEST SOUTH DATE

25.71 457.04 5\

i

ACCEPTANCE BY COUNTY SURVEYOR

CORPORATE LIMITS \/ THIS PLAT HAS BEEN REVIEWED BY THE COUNTY SURVEYOR AND IS HEREBY

OF AMERICAN FORK CERTIFIED AS A FINAL LOCAL ENTITY PLAT, PURSUANT TO UTAH CODE
cITY ANNOTATED 17-23-20 AMENDED.

WEST

AF UTAH LLC
ANNEXATION AREA:
14.90+/- ACRES

417.58
NORTH

SURVEYOR'S SEAL

13:041:0099

COUNTY SURVEYOR

S0°52'49"W
2;{9. 0\2

13:040:0078 DATE

WEST
656.00

680.79.
N1°17'37"E

ACCEPTANCE OF LEGISLATIVE BODY

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT WE, THE AMERICAN FORK CITY COUNCIL HAVE
RECEIVED A PETITION SIGNED BY THE MAJORITY OF THE OWNERS OF THE TRACT
OF LAND SHOWN HEREON REQUESTING THAT SAID TRACT BE ANNEXED TO THE
CITY OF SARATOGA SPRINGS AND THAT A COPY OF THE ORDINANCE HAS BEEN
PREPARED FOR THE FILING HEREWITH ALL IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE UTAH
CODE ANNOTATED (1979) 10-1-04 AND 10-02-401 THROUGH 423, (AS REVISED) AND
7750 NORTH THAT WE HAVE EXAMINED AND DO HEREBY APPROVE AND ACCEPT THE
ENTER I 2 ANy ANNEXATION OF THE TRACT AS SHOWN AS PART OF SAID CITY AND THAT SAID

< CITY AND THAT SAID TRACT OF LAND TO BE KNOWN HEREAFTER AS THE AF UTAH,
LLC ADDITION.

CORPORATE LIMITS
AMERICAN FORK
CITY

1100

13:041:0111 >

1166.48

BOLEY Il ANNEXATION D
A.D. 20 .

(2016) AF UTAH LLC

DATED THIS DAY OF

13:041:0087

Attachment: Notice of Intent to Annex (AF Utah LLC Addition - NOI)

.26

13:040:0076

3
NO0°46'31"E

RECORDER'S SEAL

ATTEST:

RECORDER

WEST
336.00° L

HORAN FAMILY TRUST

13:041:0101

117.95
N1°17'46"E

350 SOUTH UTAH COUNTY RECORDER

HOGGARD AMERICAN \_N89°22"17"W
FORK CITY ANNEXATION 19.70

(2019)

AF21 ANNEXATION
PLAT "A"
(2019)

ANNEXATION PLAT

AF UTAH, LLC
ADDITION

AMERICAN FORK, UTAH COUNTY, UTAH

civilsolutionsgroupnc.

CACHE VALLEY | P:435.213.3762

SALT LAKE | P: 801.216.3192 / .
UTAH VALLEY |P: 801.874.1432 | . \
info@civilsolutionsgroup.net \

N7 4

www.civilsolutionsgroup.net
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4.5

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION
CITY OF AMERICAN FORK
JANUARY 12, 2021

AMERICA

s FORKS:s:
Department___Recorder Director Approval Tprilyn L urker

AGENDA ITEM Review and action on a resolution indicating the city's intent to annex the
Silverado Annexation consisting of 26.04 acres at approximately 1000 West 150 South.

SUMMARY RECOMMENDATION
Staff would recommend approval.

BACKGROUND
This property is located on the north side of 200 South at approximately 1000 West. This
property is also in the TOD.

Approval of the resolution would start the 30-day protest period and allow staff to schedule a
public hearing and notify affected entities. If no protests are received prior to the public hearing
the annexation would then move on in the annexation process. The public hearing would be
scheduled for February 23, 2021.

The properties included in this annexation are owned by: AF Utah, LLC, Alma Earl, Silverado
Partners, LLC, and CBAM Properties, LLC. The applications have included property owned by
Utah Transit Authority; inclusion of this property will make it so there are no small parcels of
land still in the county.

BUDGET IMPACT
NA

SUGGESTED MOTION
I move to approve the resolution indicating the city’s intent to annex the Silverado Annexation
consisting of 26.04 acres at approximately 1000 West 150 South.

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS
Notice of Intent to Annex  (PDF)
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RESOLUTION NO.

Silverado Annexation
(1000 West 150 South)

A RESOLUTION INDICATING THE INTENT OF THE CITY COUNCIL TO ANNEX A
PORTION OF AN EXISTING ISLAND OR PENINSULA, IDENTIFYING THE AREA
PROPOSED FOR ANNEXATION; AUTHORIZING A PUBLIC HEARING ON THE
PROPOSED ANNEXATION AND PROVIDING FOR THE PUBLICATION OF NOTICE
OF SAID HEARING:

WHEREAS, Section 10-2-418, Utah Code Annotated, 1953, as amended, establishes a
procedure and criteria for the annexation of unincorporated territory within an existing peninsula or
island, and

WHEREAS, the City has received a request from owners of real property within an
existing peninsula or island of unincorporated territory situated contiguous to the boundaries of
American Fork City, requesting annexation of said territory to the City, and

WHEREAS, the City desires to honor the request of the property owners and effectuate
the annexation in accordance with the procedures set forth under State Law,

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF
AMERICAN FORK CITY, UTAH:

SECTION 1. The City Council hereby acknowledges receipt of a written notice from the
owners of real property within an existing peninsula or island requesting that the property be
annexed into American Fork City, in accordance with the terms of the State Law relating to
annexation of property within an island or peninsula (UCA 10-2-418). A copy of the request signed
by the owner of each parcel requesting annexation is set forth on Exhibit A. Further, an annexation
plat showing the location of the area proposed for annexation and designating the area as the
"Silverado Annexation'" is set forth on Exhibit B which exhibits are attached hereto and by this
reference made part of this Resolution.

SECTION 2. The City Council hereby indicates its desire and intent to annex the territory
identified on Exhibit B.

SECTION 3. The City hereby acknowledges that the proposed annexation area constitutes
only a portion of the existing island or peninsula, but hereby finds and determines that annexation of
only a portion of the existing island or peninsula is in the best interest of the City.

SECTION 4. The City Council hereby authorizes a public hearing on the proposed
annexation and instructs the City Recorder to publish notice thereof to the public and provide

4.5.a
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4.5.a

written notice to the County Commission, and each special district whose boundaries contain some
or all of the area proposed for annexation, all in accordance with the provisions of State Law.

SECTION 5. The provisions of this Resolution shall take effect upon its passage.

PASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF AMERICAN FORK, UTAH, THIS 12 DAY OF
JANUARY 2021.

Bradley J. Frost, Mayor

ATTEST:

Terilyn Lurker, City Recorder

Attachment: Notice of Intent to Annex (Silverado Annexation NOI)
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45.a

Exhibit "A”

REQUEST TO INITIATE ANNEXATION
OF LAND WITHIN AN ISLAND OR PENINSULA

DATE:

We the undersigned, by virtue of our signatures affixed hereto, do hereby request the City
of American Fork, Utah, to annex the parcel(s) identified on the attached map, in accordance
with the procedures for “Annexation Without Petition” as set forth under Section 10-2-
418{1)(a)(ii) of the Utah State Code.

We hereby further acknowledge and affirm as follows:

A. The area to be annexed is contiguous to the municipality and has fewer than 800
residents, and

B. The municipality has provided one or more municipal type services to the area for at
least one year.

Tax 1.D. No. Name(s) of Owner
13:041:0079 AF Utah, LLC
13:041:0054 Alma Earl
13:041:0055 Alma Ear)

13:041:0029 Silverado Partners, LLC é‘&%——-—»
13:041:0052 CBAM Properties, LLC ‘/,/Vé @L—‘

13:041:0053 CBAM Properties, LLC /Af‘/ / g\———

Attachment: Notice of Intent to Annex (Silverado Annexation NOI)
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DocusSign Envelope ID: F46A901F-F2CB-45A6-919B-C2C28F 13A3EA 45.a

REQUEST TO INITIATE ANNEXATION
OF LAND WITHIN AN ISLAND OR PENINSULA

DATE: 10/28/2020

We the undersigned, by virtue of our signatures affixed hereto, do hereby request the City
of American Fork, Utah, to annex the parcel(s) identified on the attached map, in accordance
with the procedures for “Annexation Without Petition” as set forth under Section 10-2-
418(1)(a)(ii) of the Utah State Code.

We hereby further acknowledge and affirm as follows:

A. The area to be annexed is contiguous to the municipality and has fewer than 800

residents, and %
B. The municipality has provided one or more municipal type services to the area for at 5
least one year. s
)
c
<
=
Tax I.D. No. Name(s) of Owner Signature of Owner(s) g
=
&
13:041:0079 AF Utah, LLC 3
~DocuSigned ‘béayt (—Doc:j;'»ed by: —DocuSigned by: é

g Natlan. Pamda Spir iy Caunr
13:041:0054 Alma Earl TATSECCYIIBELSE uUSBFUTBCICCk.., {:::smmﬁ g
~DocuSigned by: 700«:;5&“65 . /—L‘Docusumed by: %
-041 - Matlean €anl am pwr M’:ﬂ,’l Gy I=
13:041:0055 Alma Earl i f
o
13:041:0029 Silverado Partners, LLC é
(@]
z
13:041:0052 CBAM Properties, LLC =
:
13:041:0053 CBAM Properties, LLC S
©
<
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NORTHWEST

CORNER SECTION 22

TOWNSHIP 5 SOUTH,

S 89°63'29" E 2597.17' (P.O.B.)

Exhibit "B”

NORTH QUARTER CORNER SECTION 22
TOWNSHIP 5 SOUTH, RANGE 1 EAST,
SALT LAKE BASE & MERIDIAN

(FOUND MONUMENT)

SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATE

I, Robert Law, do hereby certify that I am a Professional Land Surveyor and that I hold License No. 9679988 in
accordance with Title 58, Chapter 22 of the Professional Engineers and Land Surveyors Licensing Act, Utah
Code Annotated, 1953 Amended. I further certify that by request of the Owners, I have made a plat of the tract
of land shown on this plat and described below, hereafter to be know as SILVERADO ANNEXATION and that
the same has been mapped drafted as referenced from county records and related to this map as shown hereon.
Furthermore, I acknowledge that deed conflicts via records and possession lines could exist. These findings may

RANGE 1 EAST, 7 E,E : not be shown as per this plat, and that those e}ements thqt are a prod}'lct of platting and 't'he retracing of existing
SALT LAKE BASE & '5 | lines of reco.rd, that are dlsclosed'o.r .resolved in the ﬁnallzz}tlon of a Regord Qf Survey - Are hereby
MERIDIAN / T . acknowledging that this shall be initiated by the owner at time of finalizing this Annexation plat.
(FOUND MONUMENT) = ' . . . . L .
/% | The purpose of this survey is to locate boundaries of the described parcel, for the purpose to initiate Annexation
f the described rty below.
=z AMERICAN FORK CITY LIMITS ~ Ot the described propetty below
S|
12 d
[ =
WEST 12.63" ~|
A PROPERTY DESCRIPTION
~ Beginning at a point on the northwest corner of the AF Frontrunner Annexation boundary; said point being
E | South 89°53'29" East, along the section line, 2597.17 feet and South, 741.78 feet from the Northwest Corner
D of Section 22, Township 5 South, Range 1 East, Salt Lake Base and Meridian; and running thence along said
8 ' AF Frontrunner Annexation boundary the following four (4) courses: South 00°00'58" East, 81.84 feet;
| thence South 78°00'58" East, 58.49 feet; thence North 84°08'08" West, 57.52 feet; thence South 00°00'58"
: East, 745.16 feet to a point on the AF Utah, LLC Addition Annexation boundary line; thence along said AF
' 6 O O 6 O 1 20 Utah, LLC Addition Annexation boundary line the following two (2) courses: West, 1166.08 feet; thence
| North 00°55'57" East, 37.54 feet to a point on the Spring Creek West Annexation boundary line; thence
. E along said Spring Creek West Annexation boundary line the following five (5) courses: North 00°55'57"
. East, 398.83 feet; thence South 89°14'16" East, 28.10 feet; thence North, 616.02 feet; thence West, 12.63
| SCALE IN FEET feet; thence North, 97.76 feet to a point on current Corporate Limits of American Fork City; thence South
. 74°31'43" East, along said Corporate Limits, 1186.27 feet to the point of beginning.
- LEGEND |
| OVERALL PROPERTY LINE Contains: 26.04 Acres more or less
' P.O.B. PARCEL LINES
~vivvrrararvrvrev- - EXISTING EDGE OF ASPHALT
— — + — — - — SECTIONLINE
L T , AMERICAN FORK
Q- T~ _ CITY LIMITS
S & 12-9-2020
O = Robert Law Date
o ©
Z\l o [ ' "
S o S 78°00 5'8 E
q%) 58.49
(o] —/
= AF UTAH LLC S~ ~— ’ / /
|_
h'e PARCEL: 13:041:0079 ' YaYolaYo Ll
e — UTAH TRANSIT AUTHORITY ' N 84°08'08" W The Basis of Bearing is N 89°53'29" W from the North Quarter Corner to the Northwest Corner of Section 22
; —— — PARCEL: 13:041:0064 57.52' as shown hereon.
— |
\
\
ACCEPTANCE OF LEGISLATIVE BODY
We, the duly elected Council of the City of American Fork, Utah, have received a request to initiate procedures
for the annexation of the tract of land shown hereon, which tract constitutes a portion of an existing island or
peninsula within or contiguous to the City, and do hereby certify: (1) the Council has adopted a resolution
setting forth its intent to annex the tract, provided notice and conducted hearings on the matter, and adopted an
ordinance providing for the annexation of the tract to the City; all in accordance with the provisions of Section
SPRING CREEK WEST 10-2-418 Utah Code Annotated, as amended, and (2) that the Council does hereby approve and accept the
ANNEXATION annexation of the tract of land shown hereon as a part of American Fork City, to be known hereafter as the
ENTRY NO. 161569:2006 SILVERADO ANNEXATION.
MAP #11998 EARL, ALMA L
PARCEL: 13:041:0055
UTAH TRANSIT AUTHORITY Dated this  day of ,20
PARCEL: 13:041:0038
S 89°14'16" £ ANNEXATION AREA .
28.10" 26.04 Acres (more or less) AF FRONTRUNNER
' ‘ ANNEXATION
ENTRY NO. 89040:2009
MAP #13080 Mayor Council Member
/
©
Q. g Council Member Council Member
N~
Lu/
@ : :
s Council Member Council Member
3
o7
o
n City Recorder
8
w —
o)) O
/o{) j (LI\I)
L SILVERADO PARTNERS LLC s CBAM PROPERTIES LLC
/f\ PARCEL: 13:041:0029 'n_: g PARCEL: 13:041:0053
5 i EARL, ALMA L ' COUNTY SURVEYOR
/t‘o) 2 o PARCEL [3:04100% This plat has been reviewed by the County Surveyor and is hereby certified as a final local entity plat,
o ; g pursuant to Utah Code Ann §17-23-20 as amended.
o <<
/Z 8 o
County Surveyor Date
T T\ 3
a T
4 ﬁ AMERICAN FORK CITY
N -
/ / ;] S LOCATED IN THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 22,
; Main Street Main Street TOWNSHIP 5 SOUTH, RANGE 1 EAST,
N 00°55'57" E — | z SALT LAKE BASE AND MERIDIAN.
37.54' | 3 R ——— UTAH COUNTY, UTAH
ATTTATTATTATTATTANT TN T AT AT T T TN T TN T TN T TN T O T O T AT AL T EAT T T T T T AT T AT T T TN T TN TN TANTUANT TN '\‘\'\'ﬁ\ WA - - - - - - — — — — — — = — = - \ﬂ\ﬂ\ﬂ\ﬂ\ﬂ\ﬂ\ / Slte _
ALALIALIALIA LA LA IALIAL AL AL AL AL AL AL LA AL AL AL AL AL AL AN AN A VA Ay ;_\_\ZZ\5AQ\.\NAAQ\@\-I:IA.\SAI’\?£\EI\ AN NAa At AL VAV ALY ;_\_\\/YAE_\SAI_\']AI_G\?A_O\S:_\_\ ALVALAL VAL L § 200 South % Frogtolfit(i?]ner T A CONTYSTORERAL CHHRRRCObRRA
§ YOB VL W W W W
A A LA it AL A | ST L TTTTEL AT Al niaanaviaaianianian v v a vy / 7750 North 1 @
PREPARED BY: =
AF UTAH, LLC
CONSULTING | -.cciocsioncc: - soltindove |
SILVERADO BUILDING COMPANY -
I L.L.C. 1510 EAST 840 NORTH | 8 S
9270 SOUTH J00 WEST e SANDY, UT 84070 OREM, UT 84097(801)-364-9696 S
PHONE: (801) 562-2521 ® FAX- (801) 562-2551 3

DATE: DECEMBER 9, 2020

| FILE: p:\1238.1810\dwg\annex-01

CONTACT: JOE BROWN
(801) 787-0532

VICINITY MAP

Attachment: Notice of Intent to Annex (Silverado Annexation NOI)
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4.6

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION
CITY OF AMERICAN FORK
JANUARY 12, 2021

AMERICA

s FORKS:s:
Department___Recorder Director Approval Tprilyn L urker

AGENDA ITEM Review and action on a resolution indicating the city's intent to annex the
North Binch Annexation consisting of 26.02 acres at approximately 800 West 500 South.

SUMMARY RECOMMENDATION
Staff would recommend approval.

BACKGROUND
This property is located south of the Willow Glen project at approximately 800 West and 500
South.

Approval of the resolution would start the 30-day protest period and allow staff to schedule a
public hearing and notify affected entities. If no protests are received prior to the public hearing
the annexation would then move on in the annexation process. The public hearing would be
scheduled for February 23, 2021.

The applicants for this property are: Williamson Farms, LLC.

BUDGET IMPACT
NA

SUGGESTED MOTION

I move to approve the resolution indicating the city’s intent to annex the North Binch
Annexation consisting of 26.02 acres at approximately 800 West 500 South.

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS
Notice of Intent to Annex  (PDF)
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RESOLUTION NO.

North Binch Annexation
(800 West 500 South)

A RESOLUTION INDICATING THE INTENT OF THE CITY COUNCIL TO ANNEX A
PORTION OF AN EXISTING ISLAND OR PENINSULA, IDENTIFYING THE AREA
PROPOSED FOR ANNEXATION; AUTHORIZING A PUBLIC HEARING ON THE
PROPOSED ANNEXATION AND PROVIDING FOR THE PUBLICATION OF NOTICE
OF SAID HEARING:

WHEREAS, Section 10-2-418, Utah Code Annotated, 1953, as amended, establishes a
procedure and criteria for the annexation of unincorporated territory within an existing peninsula or
island, and

WHEREAS, the City has received a request from owners of real property within an
existing peninsula or island of unincorporated territory situated contiguous to the boundaries of
American Fork City, requesting annexation of said territory to the City, and

WHEREAS, the City desires to honor the request of the property owners and effectuate
the annexation in accordance with the procedures set forth under State Law,

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF
AMERICAN FORK CITY, UTAH:

SECTION 1. The City Council hereby acknowledges receipt of a written notice from the
owners of real property within an existing peninsula or island requesting that the property be
annexed into American Fork City, in accordance with the terms of the State Law relating to
annexation of property within an island or peninsula (UCA 10-2-418). A copy of the request signed
by the owner of each parcel requesting annexation is set forth on Exhibit A. Further, an annexation
plat showing the location of the area proposed for annexation and designating the area as the
"North Binch Annexation™ is set forth on Exhibit B which exhibits are attached hereto and by this
reference made part of this Resolution.

SECTION 2. The City Council hereby indicates its desire and intent to annex the territory
identified on Exhibit B.

SECTION 3. The City hereby acknowledges that the proposed annexation area constitutes
only a portion of the existing island or peninsula, but hereby finds and determines that annexation of
only a portion of the existing island or peninsula is in the best interest of the City.

SECTION 4. The City Council hereby authorizes a public hearing on the proposed
annexation and instructs the City Recorder to publish notice thereof to the public and provide

4.6.a
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4.6.a

written notice to the County Commission, and each special district whose boundaries contain some
or all of the area proposed for annexation, all in accordance with the provisions of State Law.

SECTION 5. The provisions of this Resolution shall take effect upon its passage.

PASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF AMERICAN FORK, UTAH, THIS 12 DAY OF
JANUARY 2021.

Bradley J. Frost, Mayor

ATTEST:

Terilyn Lurker, City Recorder

Attachment: Notice of Intent to Annex (North Binch Annexation NOI)
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M Exhibit "A” ) 46a

REQUEST TO INITIATE ANNEXATION
OF LAND WITHIN AN ISLAND OR PENINSULA

DATE: - 12-3=2020

We the undersigned, by virtue of our signatures affixed hereto, do hereby request the City
of American Fork, Utah, to annex the parcel(s) identified on the attached map, in accordance
with the procedures for “Annexation Without Petition” as set forth under Section 10-2-
418(1)(a)(ii) of the Utah State Code.

We hereby further acknowledge and affirm as follows:

A. The area to be annexed is contiguous to the municipality and has fewer than 800
residents, and

B. The municipality has provided one or more municipal type services to the area for at
least one year.

Tax I.D. No. Name(s) of Owner Signature of Owner(s)

13:043:0115 Williamson Farms LLC

U amtoor~ Favus
13:043:0121 M%LC

Attachment: Notice of Intent to Annex (North Binch Annexation NOI)
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e

Scale 1" = 100’

: ZTEC ENGINEERING INC.

732 N. 780 W.
AMERICAN FORK, UT. 84003
AZTECENGINEERING@GMAIL.COM

SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATE

I, AARON D. THOMAS, DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT | AM A PROFESSIONAL LAND
SURVEYOR, AND THAT | HOLD LICENSE NO. 6418780 AS PRESCRIBED UNDER
LAWS OF THE STATE OF UTAH. | FURTHER CERTIFY THAT THIS PLAT OF
ANNEXATION TO THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF AMERICAN FORK CITY, UTAH
COUNTY, UTAH IS A TRUE AND CORRECT REPRESENTATION OF DATA COMPILED
FROM RECORDS ON FILE IN THE OFFICE OF THE UTAH COUNTY RECORDER.

SURVEYOR'S NAME (SEE SEAL BELOW)

DATE

BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION

BEGINNING AT A POINT LOCATED SOUTH 89°52'20" WEST ALONG SECTION LINE 1822.90 FEET AND
NORTH 609.97 FEET FROM THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SECTION 22, TOWNSHIP 5 SOUTH, RANGE
1 EAST, SALT LAKE BASE AND MERIDIAN;

THENCE ALONG THE EXISTING AMERICAN FORK CITY BOUNDARY THE FOLLOWING FOURTEEN
COURSES AND DISTANCES: 1) WEST 1101.18 FEET, 2) NORTH 0°58'07" EAST 20.32 FEET, 3) NORTH
89°01'56" WEST 278.69 FEET, 4) SOUTH 1°02'47" WEST 5.24 FEET, 5) NORTH 36°43'44" WEST 23.84
FEET, 6) NORTH 0°49'10" EAST 293.08 FEET, 7) NORTH 89°58'34" EAST 288.31 FEET, 8) SOUTH
89°11'40" EAST 240.61 FEET, 9) NORTH 0°50'20" EAST 801.80 FEET, 10) NORTH 1°30'57" EAST 0.22
FEET, 11) SOUTH 89°05'07" EAST 856.33 FEET, 12) SOUTH 0°37'36" WEST 1085.33 FEET, 13) SOUTH
89°19'25" EAST 4.66 FEET AND SOUTH 31.62 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.

CONTAINING 26.02 ACRES, MORE OR LESS.
BASIS OF BEARING: UTAH STATE PLANE COORDINATE SYSTEM NAD 1983, CENTRAL ZONE.

ACCEPTANCE BY LEGISLATIVE BODY

WE, THE DULY ELECTED COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF AMERICAN FORK, UTAH, HAVE
RECEIVED A REQUEST TO INITIATE PROCEDURES FOR THE ANNEXATION OF THE
TRACT OF LAND SHOWN HEREON, WHICH TRACT CONSTITUTES A PORTION OF
AN EXISTING ISLAND OR PENINSULA WITHIN OR CONTIGUOUS TO THE CITY, AND
DO HEREBY CERTIFY: (1) THE COUNCIL HAS ADOPTED A RESOLUTION SETTING
FORTH IT'S INTENT TO ANNEX THE TRACT, PROVIDED NOTICE AND CONDUCTED
HEARINGS ON THE MATTER, AND ADOPTED AN ORDINANCE PROVIDING FOR THE
ANNEXATION OF THE TRACT TO THE CITY; ALL IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE
PROVISIONS OF SECTION 10-2-418 UTAH CODE ANNOTATED, AS AMMENDED, AND
(2) THAT THE COUNCIL DOES HEREBY APPROVE AND ACCEPT THE ANNEXATION
OF THE TRACT OF LAND SHOWN HEREON AS A PART OF AMERICAN FORK CITY,
TO BE KNOWN HERE AFTER AS THE NORTH BINCH ANNEXATION.

DATED THIS DAY OF ,AD.

ATTEST

CLERK-RECORDER
(SEE SEAL BELOW)

MAYOR
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4.7

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION
CITY OF AMERICAN FORK
JANUARY 12, 2021

AMERICA

sFORK:s:
Department___Public Works Director Approval _Scott Qpnqanhaughpr

AGENDA ITEM Review and action of a Reimbursement Agreement for 700 South with
Woodside Homes of Utah.

SUMMARY RECOMMENDATION  Woodside Homes of Utah, LLC proposes a
Reimbursement Agreement for system improvements along 700 South of the recently approved
Stonecreek Plat E development.

BACKGROUND The City Council approved Stonecreek Plat E development at the August
11, 2020 regular session meeting. Woodside Homes of Utah, LLC has been working closely with
the City's Public Works Department on a plan for the upsizing of the underground utilities along
700 South in compliance with the approved Master Plans.

A Reimbursement Agreement was drafted by the developer and reviewed by the City Attorney's
office. The agreement outlines the parameters for the construction cost of the culinary water,
pressurized irrigation and roadway improvements along 700 South.

The system improvement impact fees reimbursement adds up to $10,105.00 for culinary water,
$10,255.60 for pressurized irrigation and ,$42,340.70 for road improvements. The total cost for
the system improvements adds up to $$62,701.30.

BUDGET IMPACT  Anamount no greater than $62,701.30 for the upsizing of the public
improvements along 700 South, which will be applied as culinary water, pressurized irrigation,
and road impact fee reimbursements.

SUGGESTED MOTION  Move to approve the Reimbursement Agreement with Woodside
Homes of Utah, LLC for an amount no greater than $62,701.30_for system improvements along
700 South.

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS
Reimbursement Agreement - Stonecreek Plat E (DOCX)
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REIMBURSEMENT
AGREEMENT

This Reimbursement Agreement ("Agreement™) is entered into as of this 12 day of
January, 2021, by and between Woodside Homes of Utah, LLC with its principal offices located
at 460 West 50 North, Suite 200, Salt Lake City, UT 84101 ("Developer") and American Fork
City, a municipal corporation and political subdivision of the State of Utah with its principal
offices located at 51 East Main Street, American Fork, Utah 84003 ("City").

RECITALS

WHEREAS, Developer owns certain parcels of property located in American Fork, Utah
County, Utah, specifically Parcel 13:065:0069 which consists of approximately 16.41 acres and is
further described in Exhibit A attached hereto (the “Property”).

WHEREAS, the parties have learned that there are certain mutually beneficial,
cooperative and cost-cutting ways their respective properties can assist in the development of the
other;

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 13.80.030 of the American Fork Code of Ordinances and
in compliance with Section 11-36a-402 of the Utah Code Annotated, the parties desire to provide
for certain “system improvements,” as that term defined in Section 11-36a-102 of the Utah Code
Annotated, in conjunction with the development of the Property by Developer;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein, and
other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby
acknowledged, the City and Developer hereby agree as follows:

AGREEMENT

1. Culinary Water Line. Developer is proposing to install culinary water lines through
its project at the required minimum size as required by City codes and standards. The City seeks
to have the pipe within development upsized to a 12 inch pipe to accommodate additional off-
site uses. Each upsized pipe is a system improvement. The lengths of pipe, associated materials
and costs are set forth, and agreed to as shown, in the attached Exhibit B.

2. Pressurized Irrigation Line. Developer is proposing to install pressurized irrigation
lines through its project at the required minimum size as required in City codes and standards.
The City seeks to have the pipe within development upsized to a 12 inch pipe to accommodate
additional off-site uses. Each upsized pipe is a system improvement. The lengths of pipe,
associated materials and costs are set forth, and agreed to as shown, in the attached Exhibit B.

3. Road. Developer is proposing to construct asphalt roads necessary for its development.
The City seeks to have some of the asphalt roads within Stonecreek Plat E constructed wider

Revised Feb 01 2018 FORM NUMBER 002-00-002 Page 1 of 5
Approved as to form:
American Fork City Attorney
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than is necessary for the development to accommodate additional off-site uses. Each upsized
asphalt road is a system improvement. The construction of the road beyond that necessary for the
development is reimbursable to the Developer. The additional square footage, associated
materials and costs are set forth, and agreed to as shown, in the attached Exhibit B.

4. System Improvements Reimbursement. The public improvements described above are
each a System Improvement and collectively the “System Improvements.” The City agrees to
reimburse Developer for the System Improvements in an amount equal to the actual costs of the
System Improvements, not to exceed the amounts set forth in Exhibit B.

5. Time of Reimbursement. The City shall provide to Developer a single reimbursement
payment within thirty days of completion of all system improvements for the Project.
Completion shall mean completion of construction, inspection and acceptance by the City
Council.

6. Choice of Law. This Agreement shall be governed by, and construed in accordance
with, the laws of the State of Utah.

7. Entire Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties
regarding the subject matter hereof and supersedes all prior understandings, written or oral,
regarding the subject matter hereof.

8. Modification. This Agreement may only be modified or altered by a writing signed by
both parties.

9. Attorney Fees. In the event either party seeks to enforce the terms hereof in a lawsuit or
other proceeding, the prevailing party shall be entitled to an award of the costs incurred,
including reasonable attorney fees.

10. Execution. This Agreement may be executed in multiple original counterparts, each of
which shall be deemed to be an original and all of which, taken together, shall constitute one and
the same Agreement.

11.  Severability. The provisions of this Agreement shall be deemed to be severable, and if
any provision of this Agreement is determined to be invalid or unenforceable by any court of
competent jurisdiction, such invalidity or unenforceability shall not affect or limit the validity or
unenforceability of the remaining provisions hereof.

12.  Third-Party Beneficiary Interests. Nothing contained in this Agreement is intended
to benefit any person or entity other than the parties to this Agreement and/or their respective
successors and assigns; and no representation or warranty is intended for the benefit of, or to
be relied upon by, any person or entity which is not a party to this Agreement and/or their
respective successors and assigns.

Revised Feb 01 2018 FORM NUMBER 002-00-002 Page 2 of 5
Approved as to form:
American Fork City Attorney
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4.7.a

13. Binding Effect. This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of, and be binding upon,
the parties hereto and their respective heirs, representatives, officers, agents, employees,
members, successors and assigns.

WHEREFORE, the parties have executed the foregoing to be effective on the date
appearing above.

WOODSIDE HOMES OF UTAH, LLC AMERICAN FORK CITY

By: Robert Thomson Bradley J. Frost

Its: Manager Mayor, American Fork City
ATTEST:

City Recorder

Approved as to content:

City Engineer

Attachment: Reimbursement Agreement - Stonecreek Plat E (Reimbursement Agreement for 700 South with Woodside Homes of Utah, LLC)

Revised Feb 01 2018 FORM NUMBER 002-00-002 Page 3 of 5
Approved as to form:
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4.7.a

EXHIBIT A
Parcel Legal Description

Commencing the Northwest Corner of Section 26, Township 5 South, Range 1 East, Salt Lake
Base and Meridian; thence North 00°03°19” East 93.39 feet along the section line, thence South
88°53°07” East 499.08 feet; thence South 01°06°53” West 72.00 feet; thence South 88°53°07”
East 431.77 feet; thence South 01°08°01” West 114.60 feet; thence South 21°08°57” West 65.99
feet; thence South 00°35°07” West 492.73 feet; thence South 13°46°31” East 63.98 feet; thence
South 00°31°47” West 106.00 feet; thence North 89°28°13” West 456.37 feet; thence North
88°18°00” West 62.01 feet; thence North 89°29°00” West 101.00 feet; thence North 00°27°37”
East 300.00 feet; thence South 89°59°37” West 294.61 feet; thence North 00°06°23” West 526.75
feet along the section line to the point of beginning.

Attachment: Reimbursement Agreement - Stonecreek Plat E (Reimbursement Agreement for 700 South with Woodside Homes of Utah, LLC)

Revised Feb 01 2018 FORM NUMBER 002-00-002 Page 4 of 5
Approved as to form:
American Fork City Attorney
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EXHIBIT “B”
Description of Improvements and estimated cost (bid schedule)

4.7.a

700 South Roadway Unit Quantity |Unit Cost Total

Widened Roadway Section |SF 4000| $ 3.41 $13,640.0(
1.5" Asphalt SF 17530( $ 0.59 $10,342.7(
Cycle Track SF 910| $ 5.80 $ 5,278.0(
24" Divider Curb LF 7921 $ 15.00 $11,880.0(
Striping Symbol Each 4/ $ 300.00 $ 1,200.0(
TOTAL $42,340.7(
Culinary & lrrigation Unit Quantity [12" Cost 8" Cost Difference |Total

Culinary Tie-in Each 1] $1,650.00 | $1,350.00 | $ 300.00 | $ 300.0(
Irrigation Tie-in Each 1] $1,650.00 | $1,350.00 | $ 300.00 | $ 300.0(
12" Culinary Water Main  |LF 502 $ 37.20|$ 2470|$ 1250|$ 6,275.0(
12" Pl Main LF 502|$ 3565|3% 2285|$% 1280 (% 6,425.6(
12" x 8" Tee Each 2| $1,850.00 | $1,200.00 [ $ 650.00 [ $ 1,300.0(
12" Gate Valve Each 4| $3,000.00 | $1,885.00 | $1,115.00 | $ 4,460.0(
12" Cap & Blowoff Each 2| $1,850.00 | $1,200.00 | $ 650.00 [ $ 1,300.0(
TOTAL $ 20,360.6(
TOTAL REIMBURSEMENT $62,701.3(
Revised Feb 01 2018 FORM NUMBER 002-00-002 Page 5 of 5

Approved as to form:
American Fork City Attorney
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4.8

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION
CITY OF AMERICAN FORK
JANUARY 12, 2021

AMERICA

sFORK:s:
Department___Public Works Director Approval _Scott Qpnqanhaughpr

AGENDA ITEM Review and action on a revised agreement with Union Pacific Rail Road
(UPRR) for the Construction of a Water Line in 200 South

SUMMARY RECOMMENDATION  Staff recommends approval of the agreement with
UPRR.

BACKGROUND This agreement was previously approved by the Council at the September
22, 2020 Council meeting. After the signed agreement was sent back to UPRR, the UPRR
contact said his auditors found a mistake he had made. The mistake was, the approved agreement
was missing language requiring the City to pay fees associated with the contract. This payment
has already been sent to and received by UPRR. The updated agreement has been reviewed by
the City attorney.

BUDGET IMPACT  The costs associated with this agreement have already been paid to
UPRR and are part of the existing, approved, water capital projects budget.

SUGGESTED MOTION  Mr. Mayor, | move that we approve the agreement with UPPR and
authorize the City to enter into the agreement as presented.

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS
UPRR Agreement Updated (PDF)
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August 25, 2020
Folder: 03147-24

RYAN DUMMER
AMERICAN FORK CITY
275 EAST 200 NORTH
AMERICAN FORK UT 84003

Re: Proposed One (1) Forty Two Inch Steel Casing Containing a Thirty Inch Ductile Iron Pipeline
Conveying Culinary Water and a 1D Bank of Conduits Pipeline Crossing of Railroad Property at
Mile Post 714.21 on the Provo Subdivision at or near American Fork, Utah County, Utah

Ryan:

Attached is an original of the agreement covering your use of the Railroad Company’s right of way.
Please print two copies, execute on your behalf and return ALL DOCUMENTS with a check for any
payments required, as shown below to 1400 Douglas Street, Omaha, NE 68179-1690 Attn: Jon Gargano.

An original copy of the fully-executed document will be returned to you, when approved and processed
by the Railroad Company. Also, please provide a resolution or other authorization for the party executing
the documents, if sighature authorization is required by your Entity.

e Payment in the amount of Nineteen Thousand Eight Hundred Seventy Dollars ($19,870.00) is
due and payable to Union Pacific Railroad Company upon your execution of the agreement.
Please include your payment, with Folder No. 03147-24 noted on that document. If you require
formal billing, you may consider this letter as a formal bill and that 94-6001323 is this
Corporation’s correct Federal Taxpayer Identification Number.

e Railroad Protective Liability Insurance (RPLI) may be obtained from any insurance company
which offers such coverage. Union Pacific has also worked with a national broker, Marsh USA,
to make available RPLI to you or your contractor. You can find additional information, premium
guotes, and application forms at (uprr.marsh.com).

If we have not received the executed documents within six months from the date of this letter, this
proposed offer of an agreement is withdrawn and becomes null and void.

If you have any questions, please contact me at (402) 544-8553.

Sincerely,

Jon Gargano
Manager — Real Estate

Union Pacific Railroad Real Estate 1400 Douglas Street Stop 1690 Omaha, Nebraska 68179-1690 fx. (402) 501-0340

4.8.a

Attachment: UPRR Agreement Updated (200 South Water Line Rail Road Agreement)
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http://uprr.marsh.com/

Pipeline Crossing 080808 Folder No. 03147-24
Last Modified: 06/05/18
Form Approved, AVP-Law

PIPELINE CROSSING
AGREEMENT

Mile Post: 714.21, Provo Subdivision
Location: American Fork, Utah County, Utah

THIS AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and entered into as of August 25, 2020,
(“Effective Date”) by and between UNION PACIFIC RAILROAD COMPANY, a Delaware
corporation, (“Licensor”) and AMERICAN FORK CITY, to be addressed at 275 East 200 North,
American Fork, Utah 84003 (“Licensee”).

IT ISMUTUALLY AGREED BY AND BETWEEN THE PARTIES HERETO AS FOLLOWS:

Article 1. LICENSOR GRANTS RIGHT.

A In consideration of the license fee to be paid by Licensee set forth below and in further
consideration of the covenants and agreements to be performed by Licensee, Licensor hereby grants to
Licensee the right to construct and thereafter, during the term hereof, maintain and operate one (1) forty
two inch (42”) steel casing containing a thirty inch (30”) ductile iron pipeline conveying culinary water
and a 1D bank of conduits pipeline crossing only, including any appurtenances required for the operation
of said pipeline (collectively, "Licensee's Facilities") across Licensor’s real property, trackage, or other
facilities located in American Fork, Utah County, State of Utah ("Railroad Property"). The specific
specifications and limited purpose for Licensee's Facilities on, along, across and under Railroad Property
are described in and shown on the Print and Specifications dated August 25, 2020, attached hereto as
Exhibit A-1 & A-2 and made a part hereof.

B. Licensee represents and warrants that Licensee's Facilities will (i) only be used for one
(1) forty two inch (42”) steel casing containing a thirty inch (30”) ductile iron pipeline conveying culinary
water and a 1D bank of conduits only, and (ii) not be used to convey any other substance, any fiber optic
cable, or for any other use, whether such use is currently technologically possible, or whether such use
may come into existence during the life of this Agreement.

C. Licensee acknowledges that if it or its contractor provides Licensor with digital imagery
depicting Licensee's Facilities ("Digital Imagery"), Licensee authorizes Licensor to use the Digital
Imagery in preparing Exhibit A. Licensee represents and warrants that through a license or otherwise, it
has the right to use the Digital Imagery and to permit Licensor to use the Digital Imagery in said manner.

D. Under no circumstances shall Licensee modify the Wireline or add additional wirelines to
the conduit, or allow any third-parties to modify the Wireline or add additional wirelines to the conduit,
without Licensor’s prior review and approval, which may be withheld in Licensor’s sole discretion. Any
application to modify the Wireline or add additional wirelines to the conduit shall be made in accordance
with Licensor’s then-current wireline crossing application procedures.

Article 2. LICENSE FEE.

Upon execution of this Agreement, the Licensee shall pay to the Licensor a one-time License Fee
of Nineteen Thousand Eight Hundred Seventy Dollars ($19,870.00).

4.8.a
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Article 3. TERM.

This Agreement shall take effect as of the Effective Date first herein written and shall continue in full
force and effect until terminated as provided in the "TERMINATION; REMOVAL OF LICENSEE’S
FACILITIES" Section of Exhibit B.

Article 4. LICENSEE'S COMPLIANCE WITH GENERAL TERMS.

Licensee represents and warrants that all work on Licensee's Facilities performed by Licensee or its
contractors will strictly comply with all terms and conditions set forth herein, including the General
Terms and Conditions, attached hereto as Exhibit B and made a part hereof.

Article 5. INSURANCE.
A. During the term of this Agreement, Licensee shall fully comply or cause its contractor(s) to fully
comply with the insurance requirements described in Exhibit C, attached hereto and made a part hereof.

Upon request only, Licensee shall send copies of all insurance documentation (e.g., certificates,
endorsements, etc.) to Licensor at the address listed in the "NOTICES" Section of this Agreement.

B. If Licensee is subject to statute(s) limiting its insurance liability and/or limiting its ability to
obtain insurance in compliance with Exhibit C of this Agreement, those statutes shall apply.

Article 6. DEFINITION OF LICENSEE.

For purposes of this Agreement, all references in this Agreement to Licensee will include
Licensee's contractors, subcontractors, officers, agents and employees, and others acting under its or their
authority (collectively, a "Contractor"). If a Contractor is hired by Licensee to perform any work on
Licensee's Facilities (including initial construction and subsequent relocation, maintenance, and/or repair
work), then Licensee shall provide a copy of this Agreement to its Contractor(s) and require its
Contractor(s) to comply with all terms and conditions of this Agreement, including the indemnification
requirements set forth in the "INDEMNITY" Section of Exhibit B. Licensee shall require any Contractor
to release, defend, and indemnify Licensor to the same extent and under the same terms and conditions as
Licensee is required to release, defend, and indemnify Licensor herein.

Article 7. ATTORNEYS’ FEES, EXPENSES, AND COSTS.

If litigation or other court action or similar adjudicatory proceeding is undertaken by Licensee or Licensor
to enforce its rights under this Agreement, all fees, costs, and expenses, including, without limitation,
reasonable attorneys’ fees and court costs, of the prevailing Party in such action, suit, or proceeding shall
be reimbursed or paid by the Party against whose interest the judgment or decision is rendered. The
provisions of this Article shall survive the termination of this Agreement.

Article 8. WAIVER OF BREACH.

The waiver by Licensor of the breach of any condition, covenant or agreement herein contained to be
kept, observed and performed by Licensee shall in no way impair the right of Licensor to avail itself of
any remedy for any subsequent breach thereof.

4.8.a
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Article 9. ASSIGNMENT.

A. Licensee shall not assign this Agreement, in whole or in part, or any rights herein granted,
without the written consent of Licensor, which must be requested in writing by Licensee. Any assignment
or attempted transfer of this Agreement or any of the rights herein granted, whether voluntary, by
operation of law, or otherwise, without Licensor's written consent, will be absolutely void and may result
in Licensor's termination of this Agreement pursuant to the "TERMINATION; REMOVAL OF
LICENSEE'S FACILITIES" Section of Exhibit B.

B. Upon Licensor's written consent to any assignment, this Agreement will be binding upon and
inure to the benefit of the parties thereto, successors, heirs, and assigns, executors, and administrators.

Article 10. SEVERABILITY.

Any provision of this Agreement which is determined by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid or
unenforceable shall be invalid or unenforceable only to the extent of such determination, which shall not
invalidate or otherwise render ineffective any other provision of this Agreement.

Article 11. NOTICES.

Except Licensee's commencement of work notice(s) required under Exhibit B, all other notices
required by this Agreement must be in writing, and (i) personally served upon the business address listed
below ("Notice Address"), (ii) sent overnight via express delivery by a nationally recognized overnight
delivery service such as Federal Express Corporation or United Parcel Service to the Notice Address, or
(iii) by certified mail, return receipt requested to the Notice Address. Overnight express delivery notices
will be deemed to be given upon receipt. Certified mail notices will be deemed to be given three (3) days
after deposit with the United States Postal Service.

If to Licensor: Union Pacific Railroad Company
Attn: Analyst — Real Estate Utilities (Folder No. 03147-24)
1400 Douglas Street, MS 1690
Omaha, Nebraska 68179

If to Licensee: AMERICAN FORK CITY
275 East 200 North
American Fork, Utah, 84003

Article 12. SPECIAL PROVISION — ONSITE OBSERVATION.

Licensor requires Licensee to provide monitoring of tracks and on-site observation through
Licensor approved observer named below during all construction and installation work. Licensee is to
directly coordinate services with the named inspector:

Railpros Field Services
Email: RP.Utility@railpros.com
Phone (682)223-5271

4.8.a
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mailto:RP.Utility@railpros.com

UNION PACIFIC RAILROAD COMPANY

By:

4.8.a

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed as of
the date first herein written.

Greg Brigham
Director — Real Estate
Real Estate - Utilities

AMERICAN FORK CITY

By:

Name Printed:

Title:

Attachment: UPRR Agreement Updated (200 South Water Line Rail Road Agreement)
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EXHIBIT B

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

Section 1. LIMITATION AND SUBORDINATION OF RIGHTS GRANTED.

A. The foregoing grant is subject and subordinate to the prior and continuing right and
obligation of Licensor to use and maintain its entire property including the right and power of Licensor to
construct, maintain, repair, renew, use, operate, change, modify or relocate railroad tracks, signal,
communication, fiber optics, or other wirelines, pipelines and other facilities upon, along or across any or
all parts of its property, all or any of which may be freely done at any time or times by Licensor without
liability to Licensee or to any other party for compensation or damages.

B. The foregoing grant is also subject to all outstanding superior rights (including those in
favor of licensees and lessees of Railroad Property) and the right of Licensor to renew and extend the
same, and is made without covenant of title or for quiet enjoyment. It shall be Licensee's sole obligation
to obtain such additional permission, license and grants necessary on account of any such existing rights.

Section 2. ENGINEERING REQUIREMENTS; PERMITS.

A Licensee's Facilities will be designed, constructed, operated, maintained, repaired,
renewed, modified, reconstructed, removed, or abandoned in place on Railroad Property by Licensee or
its contractor to Licensor's satisfaction and in strict conformity with: (i) Licensor’s current engineering
standards and specifications, including those for shoring and cribbing to protect Licensor's railroad
operations and facilities ("UP Specifications"), except for variances approved in advance in writing by
Licensor’s Assistant Vice President Engineering — Design or its authorized representative
("UP Engineering Representative™); (ii) such other additional safety standards as Licensor, in its sole
discretion, elects to require, including, without limitation, American Railway Engineering and
Maintenance-of-Way Association ("AREMA") standards and guidelines (collectively, "UP Additional
Requirements™); and (iii) all applicable laws, rules, and regulations, including any applicable Federal
Railroad Administration and Federal Energy Regulatory Commission regulations and enactments
(collectively, "Laws"). If there is any conflict between UP Specifications, UP Additional Requirements,
and Laws, the most restrictive will apply.

B. Licensee shall keep the soil over Licensee's Facilities thoroughly compacted, and
maintain the grade over and around Licensee's Facilities even with the surface of the adjacent ground.

C. If needed, Licensee shall secure, at Licensee's sole cost and expense, any and all
necessary permits required to perform any work on Licensee's Facilities.

Section 3. NOTICE OF COMMENCEMENT OF WORK: EMERGENCIES.

A. Licensee and it contractors are strictly prohibited from commencing any work associated
with Licensee's Facilities without Licensor's written approval that the work will be in strict compliance
with the "ENGINEERING REQUIREMENTS; PERMITS" Section of this Exhibit B. Upon Licensor's
approval, Licensee shall contact both of Licensor's field representatives ("Licensor's Field
Representatives™) at least ten (10) days before commencement of any work on Licensee's Facilities.
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B. Licensee shall not commence any work until: (1) Licensor has determined whether
flagging or other special protective or safety measures ("Safety Measures") are required for performance
of the work pursuant to the "FLAGGING" Section of this Exhibit B and provided Licensee written
authorization to commence work; and (2) Licensee has complied with the "PROTECTION OF FIBER
OPTIC CABLE SYSTEMS" Section of this Exhibit B.

C. If, at any time, an emergency arises involving Licensee's Facilities, Licensee or its
contractor shall immediately contact Licensor's Response Management Communications Center at
(888) 877-7267.

Section 4. FLAGGING.

A. Following Licensee's notice to Licensor's Field Representatives required under the
"NOTICE OF COMMENCEMENT OF WORK; EMERGENCIES" Section of this Exhibit B, Licensor
shall inform Licensee if Safety Measures are required for performance of the work by Licensee or its
contractor on Railroad Property. If Safety Measures are required, no work of any kind may be performed
by Licensee or its contractor(s) until arrangements for the Safety Measures have been made and
scheduled. If no Safety Measures are required, Licensor will give Licensee written authorization to
commence work.

B. If any Safety Measures are performed or provided by Licensor, including but not limited
to flagging, Licensor shall bill Licensee for such expenses incurred by Licensor, unless Licensor and a
federal, state, or local governmental entity have agreed that Licensor is to bill such expenses to the
federal, state, or local governmental entity. Additional information regarding the submission of such
expenses by Licensor and payment thereof by Licensee can be found in the "LICENSEE’S PAYMENT
OF EXPENSES" Section of this Exhibit B. If Licensor performs any Safety Measures, Licensee agrees
that Licensee is not relieved of any of responsibilities or liabilities set forth in this Agreement.

C. For flagging, the rate of pay per hour for each flagger will be the prevailing hourly rate in
effect for an eight-hour day for the class of flagmen used during regularly assigned hours and overtime in
accordance with Labor Agreements and Schedules in effect at the time the work is performed. In addition
to the cost of such labor, a composite charge for vacation, holiday, health and welfare, supplemental
sickness, Railroad Retirement and unemployment compensation, supplemental pension, Employees
Liability and Property Damage, and Administration will be included, computed on actual payroll. The
composite charge will be the prevailing composite charge in effect at the time the work is performed. One
and one-half times the current hourly rate is paid for overtime, Saturdays and Sundays, and two and one-
half times current hourly rate for holidays. Wage rates are subject to change, at any time, by law or by
agreement between Licensor and its employees, and may be retroactive as a result of negotiations or a
ruling of an authorized governmental agency. Additional charges on labor are also subject to change. If
the wage rate or additional charges are changed, Licensee (or the governmental entity, as applicable) shall
pay on the basis of the new rates and charges.

D. Reimbursement to Licensor will be required covering the full eight-hour day during
which any flagger is furnished, unless the flagger can be assigned to other railroad work during a portion
of such day, in which event reimbursement will not be required for the portion of the day during which
the flagger is engaged in other railroad work. Reimbursement will also be required for any day not
actually worked by the flaggers following the flaggers' assignment to work on the project for which
Licensor is required to pay the flaggers and which could not reasonably be avoided by Licensor by
assignment of such flaggers to other work, even though Licensee may not be working during such time.
When it becomes necessary for Licensor to bulletin and assign an employee to a flagging position in
compliance with union collective bargaining agreements, Licensee must provide Licensor a minimum of
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five (5) days notice prior to the cessation of the need for a flagger. If five (5) days notice of cessation is
not given, Licensee will still be required to pay flagging charges for the days the flagger was scheduled,
even though flagging is no longer required for that period. An additional ten (10) days notice must then be
given to Licensor if flagging services are needed again after such five day cessation notice has been given
to Licensor.

Section 5. SAFETY.

A. Safety of personnel, property, rail operations and the public is of paramount importance
in the prosecution of any work on Railroad Property performed by Licensee or its contractor, and takes
precedence over any work on Licensee's Facilities to be performed Licensee or its contractors. Licensee
shall be responsible for initiating, maintaining and supervising all safety operations and programs in
connection with any work on Licensee's Facilities. Licensee and its contractor shall, at a minimum
comply, with Licensor's then current safety standards located at the below web address (“Licensor's
Safety Standards™) to ensure uniformity with the safety standards followed by Licensor's own forces. As
a part of Licensee's safety responsibilities, Licensee shall notify Licensor if it determines that any of
Licensor's Safety Standards are contrary to good safety practices. Licensee and its contractor shall
furnish copies of Licensor's Safety Standards to each of its employees before they enter Railroad
Property.

Union Pacific Current Safety Requirements

B. Licensee shall keep the job site on Railroad Property free from safety and health hazards
and ensure that their employees are competent and adequately trained in all safety and health aspects of
the work.

C. Licensee represents and warrants that all parts of Licensee's Facilities within and outside
of the limits of Railroad Property will not interfere whatsoever with the constant, continuous, and
uninterrupted use of the tracks, property, and facilities of Licensor, and nothing shall be done or suffered
to be done by Licensee at any time that would in any manner impair the safety thereof.

D. Licensor's operations and work performed by Licensor’s personnel may cause delays in
Licensee's or its contractor's work on Licensee's Facilities. Licensee accepts this risk and agrees that
Licensor shall have no liability to Licensee or any other person or entity for any such delays. Licensee
must coordinate any work on Railroad Property by Licensee or any third party with Licensor's Field
Representatives in strict compliance with the "NOTICE OF COMMENCEMENT OF WORK;
EMERGENCIES" Section of this Exhibit

E. Licensor shall have the right, if it so elects, to provide any support it deems necessary for
the safety of Licensor's operations and trackage during Licensee's or its contractor's construction,
maintenance, repair, renewal, modification, relocation, reconstruction, or removal of Licensee's Facilities.
In the event Licensor provides such support, Licensor shall invoice Licensee, and Licensee shall pay
Licensor as set forth in the "LICENSEE'S PAYMENT OF EXPENSES" Section of this Exhibit B.

F. Licensee may use unmanned aircraft systems ("UAS") to inspect Licensee's Facilities
only upon the prior authorization from and under the direction of Licensor's Field Representatives.
Licensee represents and warrants that its use of UAS on Railroad Property will comply with Licensor's
then-current Unmanned Aerial Systems Policy and all applicable laws, rules and regulations, including
any applicable Federal Aviation Administration regulations and enactments pertaining to UAS.
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Section 6. PROTECTION OF FIBER OPTIC CABLE SYSTEMS.

Fiber optic cable systems may be buried on Railroad Property. Protection of the fiber optic cable
systems is of extreme importance since any break could disrupt service to users resulting in business
interruption and loss of revenue and profits. In addition to the notifications required under the "NOTICE
OF COMMENCEMENT OF WORK; EMERGENCIES" Section of this Exhibit B, Licensee shall
telephone Licensor during normal business hours (7:00 a.m. to 9:00 p.m. Central Time, Monday through
Friday, except for holidays) at 1-800-336-9193 (also a 24-hour, 7-day number for emergency calls) to
determine if fiber optic cable is buried anywhere on Railroad Property to be used by Licensee. If it is,
Licensee shall telephone the telecommunications company(ies) involved, and arrange for a cable locator,
make arrangements for relocation or other protection of the fiber optic cable, all at Licensee’s expense,
and will not commence any work on Railroad Property until all such protection or relocation has been
completed.

Section 7. LICENSEE'S PAYMENT OF EXPENSES.

A. Licensee shall bear the entire cost and expense of the design, construction, maintenance,
modification, reconstruction, repair, renewal, revision, relocation, or removal of Licensee's Facilities.

B. Licensee shall fully pay for all materials joined, affixed to and labor performed on
Railroad Property in connection with the construction, maintenance, modification, reconstruction, repair,
renewal, revision, relocation, or removal of Licensee's Facilities, and shall not permit or suffer any
mechanic’s or materialman’s lien of any kind or nature to be enforced against the property for any work
done or materials furnished thereon at the instance or request or on behalf of Licensee. Licensee shall
promptly pay or discharge all taxes, charges, and assessments levied upon, in respect to, or on account of
Licensee's Facilities, to prevent the same from becoming a charge or lien upon any property of Licensor,
and so that the taxes, charges, and assessments levied upon or in respect to such property shall not be
increased because of the location, construction, or maintenance of Licensee's Facilities or any
improvement, appliance, or fixture connected therewith placed upon such property, or on account of
Licensee’s interest therein. Where such tax, charge, or assessment may not be separately made or assessed
to Licensee but shall be included in the assessment of the property of Licensor, then Licensee shall pay to
Licensor an equitable proportion of such taxes determined by the value of Licensee’s property upon
property of Licensor as compared with the entire value of such property.

C. As set forth in the "FLAGGING" Section of this Exhibit B, Licensor shall have the right,
if it so elects, to provide any Safety Measures Licensor deems necessary for the safety of Licensor's
operations and trackage during Licensee's or its contractor's construction, maintenance, modification,
reconstruction, repair, renewal, revision, relocation, or removal of Licensee's Facilities, including, but not
limited to supervision, inspection, and flagging services. In the event Licensor provides such Safety
Measures, Licensor shall submit an itemized invoice to Licensee's notice recipient listed in the
"NOTICES" Article of this Agreement. Licensee shall pay to Licensor the total amount listed on such
invoice within thirty (30) days of Licensee's receipt of such invoice.

Section 8. MODIFICATIONS TO LICENSEE'S FACILITIES.

A. This grant is subject to Licensor's safe and efficient operation of its railroad, and
continued use and improvement of Railroad Property (collectively, "Railroad's Use™). Accordingly,
Licensee shall, at its sole cost and expense, modify, reconstruct, repair, renew, revise, relocate, or remove
(individually, "Modification™, or collectively, "Modifications") all or any portion of Licensee's Facilities
as Licensor may designate or identify, in its sole discretion, in the furtherance of Railroad's Use.
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B. Upon any Modification of all or any portion of Licensee's Facilities to another location
on Railroad Property, Licensor and Licensee shall execute a Supplemental Agreement to this Pipeline
Agreement to document the Modification(s) to Licensee's Facilities on Railroad Property. If the
Modifications result in Licensee's Facilities moving off of Railroad Property, this Agreement will
terminate upon Licensee's completion of such Modification(s) and all requirements contained within the
"TERMINATION; REMOVAL OF LICENSEE’S FACILITIES" Section of this Exhibit B. Any such
Modification(s) off of Railroad Property will not release Licensee from any liability or other obligation of
Licensee arising prior to and upon completion of any such Modifications to the Licensee's Facilities.

Section 9. RESTORATION OF RAILROAD PROPERTY.

In the event Licensee, in any manner moves or disturbs any property of Licensor in connection
with the construction, maintenance, modification, reconstruction, repair, renewal, revision, relocation, or
removal of Licensee's Facilities, then, Licensee shall, as soon as possible and at Licensee’s sole cost and
expense, restore Licensor’s property to the same condition as the same were before such property was
moved or disturbed.

Section 10. INDEMNITY.
A. Definitions. As used in this Section:

1. "Licensor" includes Licensor, its affiliates, its and their officers, directors, agents
and employees, and other railroad companies using Railroad Property at or near
the location of Licensee’s installation and their officers, directors, agents, and
employees.

2. "Licensee" includes Licensee and its agents, contractors, subcontractors,
sub-subcontractors, employees, officers, and directors, or any other person or
entity acting on its behalf or under its control.

3. "Loss" includes claims, suits, taxes, loss, damages (including punitive damages,
statutory damages, and exemplary damages), costs, charges, assessments,
judgments, settlements, liens, demands, actions, causes of action, fines, penalties,
interest, and expenses of any nature, including court costs, reasonable attorneys’
fees and expenses, investigation costs, and appeal expenses.

B. Licensee shall release, defend, indemnify, and hold harmless Licensor from and against
any and all Loss, even if groundless, fraudulent, or false, that directly or indirectly arises out of or is
related to Licensee’s construction, maintenance, modification, reconstruction, repair, renewal, revision,
relocation, removal, presence, use, or operation of Licensee's Facilities, including, but not limited to, any
actual or alleged:

1. Bodily harm or personal injury (including any emotional injury or disease) to, or the
death of, any person(s), including, but not limited to, Licensee, Licensor, any
telecommunications company, or the agents, contractors, subcontractors,
sub-subcontractors, or employees of the foregoing;

2. Damage to or the disturbance, loss, movement, or destruction of Railroad Property,
including loss of use and diminution in value, including, but not limited to, any
telecommunications system(s) or fiber optic cable(s) on or near Railroad
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Property, any property of Licensee or Licensor, or any property in the care,
custody, or control of Licensee or Licensor;

3. Removal of person(s) from Railroad Property;

4.  Any delays or interference with track or Railroad’s Use caused by Licensee's
activity(ies) on Railroad Property, including without limitation the construction,
maintenance, modification, reconstruction, repair, renewal, revision, relocation,
or removal of Licensee's Facilities or any part thereof, any activities, labor,
materials, equipment, or machinery in conjunction therewith ;

5. Right(s) or interest(s) granted pursuant to this Agreement;

6. Contents escaping from Licensee's Facilities, including without limitation any actual
or alleged pollution, contamination, breach, or environmental Loss;

7. Licensee’s breach of this Agreement or failure to comply with its provisions,
including, but not limited to, any violation or breach by Licensee of any
representations and warranties Licensee has made in this Agreement; and

8. Violation by Licensee of any law, statute, ordinance, governmental administrative
order, rule, or regulation, including without limitation all applicable Federal
Railroad Administration regulations.

C. THE FOREGOING OBLIGATIONS SHALL APPLY TO THE FULLEST EXTENT
PERMITTED BY LAW FOR THE BENEFIT OF LICENSOR TO LOSSES CAUSED BY, ARISING
FROM, RELATING TO, OR RESULTING FROM, IN WHOLE OR IN PART, THE NEGLIGENCE OF
LICENSOR, AND SUCH NEGLIGENCE OF LICENSOR SHALL NOT LIMIT, DIMINISH, OR
PRECLUDE LICENSEE’S OBLIGATIONS TO LICENSOR IN ANY RESPECT. NOTWITHSTANDING
THE FOREGOING, SUCH OBLIGATION TO INDEMNIFY LICENSOR SHALL NOT APPLY TO THE
EXTENT THE LOSS IS CAUSED BY THE SOLE, ACTIVE AND DIRECT NEGLIGENCE, GROSS
NEGLIGENCE, OR WILLFUL MISCONDUCT OF LICENSOR AS DETERMINED IN A FINAL
JUDGMENT BY A COURT OF COMPETENT JURISDICTION.

Section 11. TERMINATION; REMOVAL OF LICENSEE'S FACILITIES.

A. If Licensee does not use the right herein granted on Licensee's Facilities for one (1) year,
or if Licensee continues in default in the performance of any provision of this Agreement for a period of
thirty (30) days after written notice from Licensor to Licensee specifying such default, Licensor may, at
its sole discretion, terminate this Agreement by written notice to Licensee at the address listed in the
"NOTICES" Atrticle of this Agreement. This Agreement will not terminate until Licensee complies with
Paragraphs "C" and "D" of this Section found below.

B. In addition to the provisions of Paragraph "A™ above, this Agreement may be terminated
by written notice given by either party, without cause, upon thirty (30) days written notice to the
non-terminating party at the address listed in the "NOTICES" Article of this Agreement. This Agreement
will not terminate until Licensee complies with Paragraphs "C" and "D" of this Section found below.

C. Prior to the effective date of any termination described in this Section, Licensee shall submit an
application to Licensor's online Utility Contracts System at this link for Licensee's removal, or if applicable,
abandonment in place of Licensee's Facilities located on Railroad Property (“Removal/Abandonment
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Work™). Upon the UP Engineering Representative's approval of Licensee's application for the
Removal/Abandonment Work, Licensor and Licensee shall execute
a separate consent document that will govern Licensee's performance of the Removal/Abandonment
Work from those portions of Railroad Property not occupied by roadbed and/or trackage
("Consent Document™). Licensor shall then restore the impacted Railroad Property to the same or
reasonably similar condition as it was prior to Licensee's installation of Licensee's Facilities. For purposes
of this Section, Licensee's (i) performance of the Removal/Abandonment Work, and (ii) restoration work
will hereinafter be collectively referred to as the "Restoration Work".

D. Following Licensee's completion of the Restoration Work, Licensee shall provide
a written certification letter to Licensor at the address listed in the "NOTICES" Avrticle of this Agreement
which certifies that the Restoration Work has been completed in accordance with the Consent Document.
Licensee shall report to governmental authorities, as required by law, and notify Licensor immediately if
any environmental contamination is discovered during Licensee's performance of the Restoration Work.
Upon discovery, the Licensee shall initiate any and all removal, remedial and restoration actions that are
necessary to restore the property to its original, uncontaminated condition. Licensee shall provide written
certification to Licensor at the address listed in the "NOTICES" Article of this Agreement that
environmental contamination has been remediated and the property has been restored in accordance with
Licensor's requirements. Upon Licensor's receipt of Licensee's restoration completion certifications, this
Agreement will terminate.

E. In the event that Licensee fails to complete any of the Restoration Work, Licensor may,
but is not obligated, to perform the Restoration Work. Any such work actually performed by Licensor will
be at the cost and expense of Licensee. In the event that Licensor performs any of the Restoration Work,
Licensee shall release Licensor from any and all Loss (defined in the "INDEMNITY" Section of this
Exhibit B) arising out of or related to Licensor's performance of the Restoration Work.

F. Termination of this Agreement for any reason will not affect any of rights or obligations
of the parties which may have accrued, or liabilities or Loss (defined in the "INDEMNITY" Section of
this Exhibit B), accrued or otherwise, which may have arisen prior to such termination.
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EXHIBITC

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS
In accordance with Article 5 of this Agreement, Licensee shall (1) procure and maintain at its sole
cost and expense, or (2) require its Contractor(s) to procure and maintain, at their sole cost and expense,
the following insurance coverage:

A Commercial General Liability Insurance. Commercial general liability (CGL) with
a limit of not less than $2,000,000 each occurrence and an aggregate limit of not less than $4,000,000.
CGL insurance must be written on 1SO occurrence form CG 00 01 12 04 (or a substitute form providing
equivalent coverage).

The policy must also contain the following endorsement, WHICH MUST BE STATED ON THE
CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE:

e Contractual Liability Railroads 1SO form CG 24 17 10 01 (or a substitute form providing
equivalent coverage) showing "Union Pacific Railroad Company Property" as the Designated Job
Site.

B. Business Automobile Coverage Insurance. Business auto coverage written on
ISO form CA 00 01 10 01 (or a substitute form providing equivalent liability coverage) with a limit of not
less $2,000,000 for each accident, and coverage must include liability arising out of any auto (including
owned, hired, and non-owned autos).

The policy must contain the following endorsements, WHICH MUST BE STATED ON THE
CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE:

e "Coverage For Certain Operations In Connection With Railroads" 1SO form CA 20 70 10 01 (or a
substitute form providing equivalent coverage) showing "Union Pacific Railroad Company
Property" as the Designated Job Site.

C. Workers' Compensation and Employers' Liability Insurance. Coverage must include
but not be limited to:

o Licensee’s statutory liability under the workers' compensation laws of the state(s) affected by this
Agreement.

e Employers' Liability (Part B) with limits of at least $500,000 each accident, $500,000 disease
policy limit $500,000 each employee.

If Licensee is self-insured, evidence of state approval and excess workers' compensation coverage
must be provided. Coverage must include liability arising out of the U. S. Longshoremen's and Harbor
Workers' Act, the Jones Act, and the Outer Continental Shelf Land Act, if applicable.

D. Environmental Liability Insurance. Environmental Legal Liability Insurance (ELL)
applicable to bodily injury, property damage, including loss of use of damaged property or of property
that has not been physically injured or destroyed, cleanup costs, and defense, including costs and
expenses incurred in the investigation, defense, or settlement of claims, or compliance with statute, all in
connection with any loss arising from the insured’s performance under this Agreement. Except with
respect to the limits of insurance, and any rights or duties specifically assigned to the first named insured,
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this insurance must apply as if each named insured were the only named insured; and separately to the
additional insured against which claim is made or suit is brought. Coverage shall be maintained in an
amount of at least $2,000,000 per loss, with an annual aggregate of at least $4,000,000.

Licensee warrants that any retroactive date applicable to ELL insurance coverage under the
policy is the same as or precedes the Effective Date of this Agreement, and that continuous coverage will
be maintained for a period of five (5) years beginning from the time the work under this Agreement is
completed or if coverage is cancelled for any reason the policies extended discovery period, if any, will
be exercised for the maximum time allowed.

E. Railroad Protective Liability Insurance. Licensee must maintain for the duration of
work "Railroad Protective Liability" insurance written on ISO occurrence form CG 00 35 12 04 (or a
substitute form providing equivalent coverage) on behalf of Licensor only as named insured, with a limit
of not less than $2,000,000 per occurrence and an aggregate of $6,000,000. The definition of "JOB
LOCATION" and "WORK" on the declaration page of the policy shall refer to this Agreement and shall
describe all WORK or OPERATIONS performed under this Agreement. Notwithstanding the foregoing,
Licensee does not need Railroad Protective Liability Insurance after its initial construction work is
complete and all excess materials have been removed from Licensor's property; PROVIDED, however,
that Licensee shall procure such coverage for any subsequent maintenance, repair, renewal, modification,
reconstruction, or removal work on Licensee's Facilities.

F. Umbrella or Excess Insurance. If Licensee utilizes umbrella or excess policies, and
these policies must "follow form™ and afford no less coverage than the primary policy.

Other Requirements

G. All policy(ies) required above (except business automobile, workers' compensation and
employers' liability) must include Licensor as "Additional Insured" using I1SO Additional Insured
Endorsement CG 20 26 (or substitute form(s) providing equivalent coverage). The coverage provided to
Licensor as additional insured shall not be limited by Licensee’s liability under the indemnity provisions
of this Agreement. BOTH LICENSOR AND LICENSEE EXPECT THAT LICENSOR WILL BE
PROVIDED WITH THE BROADEST POSSIBLE COVERAGE AVAILABLE BY OPERATION OF
LAW UNDER ISO ADDITIONAL INSURED FORM CG 20 26.

H. Punitive damages exclusion, if any, must be deleted (and the deletion indicated on the
certificate of insurance), unless (a) insurance coverage may not lawfully be obtained for any punitive
damages that may arise under this Agreement, or (b) all punitive damages are prohibited by all states in
which this Agreement will be performed.

I Licensee waives all rights of recovery, and its insurers also waive all rights of
subrogation of damages against Licensor and its agents, officers, directors and employees for damages
covered by the workers' compensation and employers' liability or commercial umbrella or excess liability
obtained by Licensee required in this Agreement, where permitted by law. This waiver must be stated on
the certificate of insurance.

J. All insurance policies must be written by a reputable insurance company acceptable to
Licensor or with a current Best's Insurance Guide Rating of A- and Class VII or better, and authorized to
do business in the state(s) in which the work is to be performed.

K. The fact that insurance is obtained by Licensee will not be deemed to release or diminish
the liability of Licensee, including, without limitation, liability under the indemnity provisions of this
Agreement. Damages recoverable by Licensor from Licensee or any third party will not be limited by the
amount of the required insurance coverage.
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4.9

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION
CITY OF AMERICAN FORK
JANUARY 12, 2021

AMERICA

sFORK:s:
Department__Finance Director Approval _Anna Maontaya

AGENDA ITEM Review and action on a Tier 1 Auto Dealership amended agreement with
National Buick GMC

SUMMARY RECOMMENDATION
Staff would recommend approval.

BACKGROUND

Tier 1 auto dealerships are an important part of the city’s economic viability. The city approved
the Tier 1 auto dealership agreement with National Buick GMC in American Fork on November
26, 2019. The agreement for the incentive includes a minimum hurdle amount to qualify for an
incentive, a tiered incentive structure, a cap on total incentive and total years of eligibility, a
covenant to remain in the city following the incentive period and a provision for repayment if
agreement conditions are not met. The purpose of the agreement is to encourage performance-
based incentives which will enhance the city’s long term financial position.

The only revision to the agreement for consideration is Section 9, Payment of Tax Increment. In
lieu of a calendar year payment (January through December) payable on May 31, the revised
agreement allows for a fiscal year payment (July through June) payable by October 31. This is
consistent with the eligibility period in Section 5 of the agreement. No other terms or conditions
of the agreement have changed.

BUDGET IMPACT
N/A

SUGGESTED MOTION
I move to approve the Tier 1 Auto Dealership Amended Agreement with National Buick GMC,
Inc.

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS
GMC National Buick Tax Incentive Amended Agreeement 1.12.21(DOCX)
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TIER 1 AUTO DEALERSHIP AGREEMENT

This Agreement (hereinafter "Agreement”) is made and entered into on this __ day of
, 2020, by and between AMERICAN FORK, a municipal corporation of the
State of Utah, whose address is 31 North Church St., American Fork, Utah 84003 (hereinafter
"City"), and NATIONAL BUICK GMC, INC, a Utah corporation, whose address is 629 East 1000
South, American Fork, Utah 84003 (hereinafter "Dealership™). Collectively the parties to this
Agreement may be referred to “the Parties".

RECITALS

WHEREAS, Dealership owns approximately 4.72 acres of real property located within
City; and

WHEREAS, Dealership and City desire to facilitate job creation through commercial
development within American Fork City by incentivizing the improvement of certain facilities that
will accelerate growth and additional tax revenues;

WHEREAS, Dealership operates a car dealership ("Business™) which sells new vehicles
("Tier 1), generating significant tax revenues for the City;

WHEREAS, Dealership is located within a primary commercial corridor of American
Fork, and desires to make certain improvements to its facilities ("Improvements"), and the City is
relying on Improvements to drive retail sales and generate additional tax revenues; and

WHEREAS, City desires to enhance its retail competitive advantage and ensure long-term
sustainability of its commercial tax base through incentivizing development to its highest and best
use;

AGREEMENT
NOW THEREFORE, the parties hereto agree as follows:

1. Effective Date. The date on which the last of the Parties executes this Agreement shall be
the deemed the effective date of this Agreement (hereinafter "Effective Date").

2. Compliance. Dealership assumes responsibility for the design, construction, and financing
of all costs associated with Improvements. Dealership agrees to comply with all City
ordinances relating to Improvements. Nothing in this Agreement constitutes waiver by the
City of its laws, processes, procedures, or requirements for development, neither does this
Agreement grant any development or land-use entitlement or vest Dealership in any way.

3. Qualification of Improvements. Dealership shall submit to City its plans for Improvements
showing necessity of Improvements and how Improvements are expected to increase tax
revenues for City. Only those Improvements which are prequalified by City in writing
("Qualified Improvements™) shall be eligible for tax revenue increment reimbursement
("Tax Increment™).

4. Reimbursement Cap. The maximum cumulative Tax Increment reimbursement Dealership
is entitled to under this Agreement is one million dollars ($1,000,000.00), or the total cost
of Qualified Improvements, whichever is less ("Reimbursement Cap™).
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Eligibility Period. Dealership shall begin to be eligible for Tax Increment reimbursement
in Fiscal Year 2020 (beginning July 1, 2019). The Eligibility Period shall be for ten (10)
years, or until Dealership has reached the Reimbursement Cap, whichever occurs first
("Eligibility Period").

Covenant to Remain in City. Dealership agrees it will remain within the geographical
taxing boundaries of City for a period of five (5) years after the conclusion of Eligibility
Period.

Conditions for Repayment. Dealership shall repay all Tax Increment it has received under
this Agreement to the City within ninety (90) days of any of the following conditions
occurring:

a. Dealership relocates Business outside of City's geographical taxing boundaries
during Eligibility Period or during the five years following the Eligibility Period as
described in Paragraph 6; or

b. Dealership ceases conducting Business or closes Business or declares bankruptcy;
or
C. Dealership fails to complete construction of Qualified Improvements within three

years of obtaining City approval of its plans.

Tax Increment Calculation. The City's obligation to reimburse Dealership from Tax
Increment revenues is subject to the following terms and conditions:

a. Actual Tax Revenue. The City shares point-of-sales tax revenue with the State of
Utah as governed by State law. The Tax Increment shall be calculated using the
sales tax revenue actually received by City (currently, approximately 76% of point-
of-sale sales tax revenue collected by businesses) ("Actual Tax Revenue™).

b. Baseline Amount. The first $100,000.00 in Actual Tax Revenue generated during
each year of the Eligibility Period shall be retained by City and is not subject to
reimbursement ("Baseline Amount™).

C. Tax Increment Reimbursement. Dealership shall be entitled to Tax Increment
reimbursement based on the amount of Actual Tax Revenue generated above the
Baseline Amount ("Hurdle Amounts"):

Actual Tax Revenue % Tax Increment Reimbursed
(@) $100,001 - $150,000 50%
2 $150,001 - $200,000 70%
3) Above $200,001 90%

[By way of illustration, if City's Actual Tax Revenue generated by Dealership was
$221,000 during year, then Dealership would receive, after subtracting the baseline
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10.

11.

12.

13.

amount, 50% of the first $50,000 ($25 ,000), $70% of the next $50,000 (35,000), and 90%
of the remaining $21 ,000 ($18,900) for a one-year total of $78,900.]

Payment of Tax Increment. City shall remit the Tax Increment reimbursement to
Dealership by October 31st of each year for the preceding fiscal year.

Renegotiation of Agreement. In the event the Utah State Legislature modifies, reforms,
alters or amends the sales tax structure on automobile purchases that is in effect on
November 26, 2019, the City may request renegotiation of the Agreement. If the City
makes such request and the parties are unable to agree upon amended terms, in writing,
this Agreement shall be terminated.

Indemnification. Dealership and the City shall indemnify, defend and hold each other's
officers, agents, representatives and employees harmless from any and all claims, demands,
liabilities, damages, injuries, causes of action, costs and expenses, including attorney's fees,
arising out of or in any way related to the performance of each party's duties under this
Agreement caused in whole or in part by any negligent act or omission of the other party
or anyone directly or indirectly employed by the other party.

Assignment. This Agreement shall be binding upon the Dealership and their respective
heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and assigns but shall not be assigned without
the express written consent of City.

This agreement constitutes the entire understanding between the parties relating to Tax
Increment and supersedes and cancels all prior written and oral agreements, including that
dated December 23, 2019, and understandings with respect to the subject matter of this
Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been executed on the day and year first

above written.

NATIONAL BUICK GMC

KOLBY HANSEN Date

Its:

AMERICAN FORK CITY

BRADLEY J. FROST Date

Mayor

ATTEST:

Terilyn Lurker, City Recorder
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